REPUBLIC OF KENYA



MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE AND LIVESTOCK DEVELOPMENT STATE DEPARTMENT OF CROPS DEVELOPMENT SMALL-SCALE IRRIGATION AND VALUE ADDITION PROJECT (SIVAP)

Tender No. MOALD/SIVAP/T047/2023-2024

CONSTRUCTION OF KARINDUNDU LIVESTOCK SALE YARD IN NYERI COUNTY

National Competitive Bidding
Instruction to bids, conditions of contract, Specifications &
Bills of Quantities

Launched on: 8th August, 2023

Closing date: 5th September,2023

| lame of Bidder | • |
|----------------|---|
|----------------|---|

SPECIFIC PROCUREMENT NOTICE



MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE AND LIVESTOCK DEVELOPMENT STATE DEPARTMENT FOR CROPS DEVELOPMENT SMALL SCALE IRRIGATION AND VALUE ADDITION PROJECT (SIVAP) ADVERTISEMENT

Date: 8th August, 2023 Loan No: 2000130014530 Project ID No.: P-KE-AAZ-009

CONSTRUCTION OF KARINDUNDU LIVESTOCK SALE YARD IN NYERI COUNTY

- 1. This Invitation for Bids follows the General Procurement Notice (GPN) for this project that appeared in UNDB online **AfDB811-11/15 of 19th November, 2015** and on the African Development Bank Group's Internet Website.
- 2. The Government of Kenya has received a loan from the African Development Bank towards the cost of the **Small-Scale Irrigation and Value Addition Project (SIVAP).** It is intended that part of the Proceeds of this loan will be applied to eligible payments under the contract for **Construction Of Karindundu Livestock Sale Yard In Nyeri County**
- 3. The Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock Development now invites sealed bids from eligible bidders for the above works as below;

| S/NO | TENDER NUMBER | TENDER DESCRIPTION | BID SECURITY (KES) |
|------|------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------------|
| 1. | MOALD/SIVAP/T001/2023- | Drilling and Equipping of | 310,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Gaterono 1 Borehole in | |
| | | Meru County | |
| 2. | MOALD/SIVAP/T002/2023- | Drilling and Equipping of | 310,000.00 |

| | 2024 | Gaterone 2 Borehole in | |
|-----|--------------------------------|---|-------------|
| | | Meru County | |
| 3. | MOALD/SIVAP/T003/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Rutendene Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 4. | MOALD/SIVAP/T004/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Mwero Muthanga Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 5. | MOALD/SIVAP/T005/2023- 2024 | Drillling And Equipping of Mabacha Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 6. | MOALD/SIVAP/T006/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Lothera Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 7. | MOALD/SIVAP/T007/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Ntugu 'A' (Mwangathia) Community Water Supply | 310,000.00 |
| 8. | MOALD/SIVAP/T008/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Nairuru Primary School (Antubetwe Kiongo) | 310,000.00 |
| 9. | MOALD/SIVAP/T009/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Achoro Kiluencene Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 10. | MOALD/SIVAP/T010/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping Kanatha Primary School Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 11. | MOALD/SIVAP/T011/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Majarene Potato Aggregation Centre Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 12. | MOALD/SIVAP/T012/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Kithima Borehole in Meru County | 310,.000.00 |
| 13. | MOALD/SIVAP/TO13/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Mituguuru Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 14. | MOALD/SIVAP/T014/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Majengo Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 15. | MOALD/SIVAP/T015/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Ngundune Livestock Sale Yard Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 16. | MOALD/SIVAP/T016/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Muthara Grading Marketing Shed Borehole | 290,000,00 |

| | | in Meru County | |
|-----|--------------------------------|--|------------|
| 17. | MOALD/SIVAP/T017/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Mituntu (Kianjai) Community Borehole in Meru County | 300,000.00 |
| 18. | MOALD/SIVAP/T018/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Kamiti- 1 Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 19. | MOALD/SIVAP/T019/2023- 2024 | Drlling And Equipping of Nkiene Primary School Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 20. | MOALD/SIVAP/T020/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Mumone Primary School Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 21. | MOALD/SIVAP/T021/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Gitine (Igoji) Community Water Project (Secondary School in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 22. | MOALD/SIVAP/T022/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Thubai Primary School Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 23. | MOALD/SIVAP/T023/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of St. Mary's Primary School Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 24. | MOALD/SIVAP/T024/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Malaene Primary School Borehole in Meru County | 310,000.00 |
| 25. | MOALD/SIVAP/T025/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Kalonga Primary School Borehole in Kitui County | 260,000.00 |
| 26. | MOALD/SIVAP/T026/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Mavuni Primary School Borehole in Kitui County | 260,000.00 |
| 27. | MOALD/SIVAP/T027/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Matiiia Area Borehole in Kitui County | 260,000.00 |
| 28. | MOALD/SIVAP/T028/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Mang'elu Primary School Borehole in Kitui County | 260,000.00 |
| 29. | MOALD/SIVAP/T029/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Ivulyamuu Primary School Borehole in Kitui County | 260,000.00 |
| 30. | MOALD/SIVAP/T030/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Mang'ola Community Borehole in Kitui County | 260,000.00 |
| 31. | MOALD/SIVAP/T031/2023- | Construction of Ngundune | 270,000.00 |

| | 2024 | 1' ' 1 0 1 37 1' | |
|-----|--------------------------------|---------------------------|------------|
| | 2024 | Livestock Sale Yard in | |
| | | Meru County | |
| 32. | MOALD/SIVAP/T032/2023- | Construction of Mwangeni | 270,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Livestock Sale Yard in | |
| | | Kitui County | |
| 33. | MOALD/SIVAP/T033/2023- | Construction of Maua | 880,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Marketing Shed in Meru | |
| | | County | |
| 34. | MOALD/SIVAP/T034/2023- | Construction Buuri IWUA | 100,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Office in Meru County | |
| 35. | MOALD/SIVAP/T035/2023- | Construction of Muthara | 80,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Marketing Shed Sanitary | |
| | | Facilities in Meru County | |
| 36. | MOALD/SIVAP/T036/2023- | Construction of Kirumi | 290,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Kiamunjari Irrigation | , |
| | | Scheme Grading and | |
| | | Marketing Shed in Tharak | |
| | | Nihi County | |
| 37. | MOALD/SIVAP/T037/2023- | Construction of Meko Ma | 290,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Kongoa Grading and | |
| | | Marketing Shed in Kitui | |
| | | County | |
| 38. | MOALD/SIVAP/TO38/2023- | Spot Improvement of 12 | 400,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Km of Roads in Kitui | , |
| | | County | |
| 39. | MOALD/SIVAP/T039/2023- | Spot Improvement of 18.8 | 450,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Km Roads in Kisima in | , |
| | | Meru County | |
| 40. | MOALD/SIVAP/T040/2023- | Drilling and Equipping of | 240,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Kiseuni Community | 2.0,000.00 |
| | 2021 | Borehole in Machakos | |
| | | County | |
| 41. | MOALD/SIVAP/T041/2023- | Construction of Murang'a | 290,000.00 |
| ' | 2024 | Livestock Sale Yard in | 250,000.00 |
| | 2021 | Murang'a County | |
| 42. | MOALD/SIVAP/T042/2023- | Drilling and Equipping of | 260,000.00 |
| 12, | 2024 | Gikindu | 200,000.00 |
| | 2024 | Grading/Marketing | |
| | | Borehole in Murang'a | |
| | | County | |
| 12 | MOAID /SN/AD/TO42 /0002 | <u> </u> | 240,000,00 |
| 43. | MOALD/SIVAP/T043/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of | 240,000.00 |
| | 404 1 | Utangwa | |
| | | Grading/Marketing Shed | |
| | | Borehole in Makueni | |
| 4 4 | MOAID (OBJAD /DOAA /OOC | County | 040,000,00 |
| 44. | MOALD/SIVAP/T044/2023- | Drilling and Equipping of | 240,000.00 |

| | 2024 | Kiuwini Borehole in Machakos County | |
|-----|--------------------------------|--|------------|
| 45. | MOALD/SIVAP/T045/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Kwasuvu Primary School Borehole in Machakos County | 240,000.00 |
| 46. | MOALD/SIVAP/T046/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Kyondoni Primary School Borehole in Machakos County | 240,000.00 |
| 47. | MOALD/SIVAP/T047/2023- 2024 | Construction of Karindundu Livestock Sale Yard in Nyeri County | 270,000.00 |
| 48. | MOALD/SIVAP/T048/2023- 2024 | Re- Advertisement Construction of Ndiriti Aguthi Marketing and Grading Shed in Nyeri County | 120,000.00 |
| 49. | MOALD/SIVAP/T049/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Galilee Community Borehole in Makueni County | 240,000.00 |
| 50. | MOALD/SIVAP/T050/2023- 2024 | Re- Advertisement of Kako linga Community Borehole in Makueni County | 240,000.00 |
| 51. | MOALD/SIVAP/T051/2023- 2024 | Re- Advertisement of Construction of Kathwana Livestock Market in Tharaka Nithi County | 270,000.00 |
| 52. | MOALD/SIVAP/T052/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Kalanzoni Community Borehole in Makueni County | 240,000.00 |
| 53. | MOALD/SIVAP/T053/2023- 2024 | Drilling and Equipping of Kalamba Village Borehole in Machakos County | 240,000.00 |
| 54. | MOALD/SIVAP/T054/2023- 2024 | Re- Advertisement of Drilling and Equipping of Kanyonga Community Borehole in Makueni County | 240,000.00 |
| 55. | MOALD/SIVAP/T055/2023- 2024 | Spot Improvement Of 15.1 Km of Roads in Nkomo And Thangatha Ward in Meru County | 450,000.00 |

- 4. Interested eligible bidders may obtain further information from the Office of the Project Coordinator, Small-scale Irrigation and Value Addition Project (SIVAP), Hill Plaza 9th Floor, Ngong Road P.O. Box 30028 00100 Nairobi.
- 5. A complete set of bidding documents may be **down loaded** from the Ministry's web site www.kilimo.go.ke
- 6. The provisions in the Instructions to Bidders and in the General Conditions of Contract are the provisions of the **African Development Bank Standard Bidding Document: Procurement of Works.**
- 7. Bids should be clearly marked: Construction Of Karindundu Livestock Sale Yard In Nyeri County Tender No. MOALD/SIVAP/T047/2023-2024 and deposited at State Department for Crop Development Tender Box, situated at the Ground Floor, Kilimo House, Cathedral Road or posted to:

Principal Secretary
State Department for Crop Development
Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock Development
Kilimo House, Cathedral Road
P. O. Box 30028-00100
NAIROBI

and should be received on or before Tuesday 5th September, 2023 at 11.00 am local time and MUST be accompanied by a bid guarantee as indicated in the table above.

Bulky bid documents that cannot fit in the tender box should be dropped at the Head: Supply Chain Management Office at Kilimo House, 4th Floor Room 4-2B.

8. Bids will be opened in the presence of bidders' representatives who choose to attend at 11.00am on Tuesday 5th September, 2023 at the Conference Room Kilimo House 7th Floor.

Head, Supply Chain Management Unit State Department for Crop Development

FOR: PRINCIPAL SECRETARY

PART 1 – BIDDING PROCEDURES

Section I. Instructions to Bidders (ITB)

This Section provides relevant information to help Bidders prepare their bids. Information is also provided on the submission, opening, and evaluation of bids and on the award of Contracts.

Section II. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

This Section consists of provisions that are specific to each procurement and that supplement the information or requirements included in Section I, **Instructions to Bidders**.

Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

This Section contains the criteria to determine the lowest evaluated bid and the qualifications of the Bidder to perform the contract.

Section IV. Bidding Forms

This Section contains the forms which are to be completed by the Bidder and submitted as part of his Bid

Section V. Eligible Countries

This Section contains information regarding eligible countries.

PART 2 – EMPLOYER'S REQUIREMENTS

Section VI. Requirements

This Section contains the Specification, the Drawings, and supplementary information that describe the Works to be procured.

PART 3 – CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS

Section VII. General Conditions (GC)

This Section contains the general clauses to be applied in all contracts.

Section VIII. Particular Conditions (PC)

This Section consists of Contract Data and Specific Provisions which contains clauses specific to each contract. The contents of this Section supplement the General Conditions and shall be prepared by the Employer.

Section IX. Contract Forms

This Section contains forms which, once completed, will form part of the Contract. The forms for **Performance Security** and **Advance Payment Security**, when required, shall only be completed by the successful Bidder after contract award.

Table of Contents

| PART 1 – Bidding Procedures | 10 |
|--|-----|
| Section I. Instructions to Bidders | 11 |
| Section II. Bid Data Sheet | 34 |
| Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria | |
| Section IV. Bidding Forms | 47 |
| Section V. Eligible Countries | 101 |
| PART 2 – Employer's Requirements | 102 |
| Section VI. Requirements | 103 |
| PART 3 – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms | 133 |
| Section VII. General Conditions (GC) | 135 |
| Section VIII. Particular Conditions | 173 |
| Section IX. Contract Forms | 177 |



Section I. Instructions to Bidders

Table of Clauses

| A. | General | 13 |
|-----|--|----|
| 1. | Scope of Bid | 13 |
| 2. | Source of Funds | 13 |
| 3. | Fraud and Corruption | 13 |
| 4. | Eligible Bidders. | 15 |
| 5. | Eligible Goods and Related Services | |
| В. | Contents of Bidding Document | 18 |
| 6. | Sections of Bidding Document | 18 |
| 7. | Clarification of Bidding Document, Site Visit, Pre-Bid Meeting | 19 |
| 8. | Amendment of Bidding Document | |
| C. | Preparation of Bids | 20 |
| 9. | Cost of Bidding | 20 |
| 10. | Language of Bid | |
| 11. | Documents Comprising the Bid | 20 |
| 12. | Letter of Bid and Price Schedules | 21 |
| 13. | Alternative Bids | 21 |
| 14. | Bid Prices and Discounts | 22 |
| 15. | Currencies of Bid and Payment | 23 |
| 16. | Documents Establishing the Qualifications of the Bidder | 23 |
| 17. | Documents Establishing the Eligibility of the Goods and Related Services | 23 |
| 18. | Period of Validity of Bids | 23 |
| 19. | Bid Security | 24 |
| 20. | Format and Signing of Bid | 25 |
| D. | Submission and Opening of Bids | 26 |
| 21. | Submission, Sealing and Marking of Bids | 26 |
| 22. | Deadline for Submission of Bids | |
| 23. | Late Bids | 26 |
| 24. | Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids | 27 |
| 25. | Bid Opening | 27 |

| Examination of Bids | 28 |
|-----------------------------------|--|
| Confidentiality | 28 |
| | |
| | |
| Bid Evaluation and Comparison | 30 |
| Correction of Arithmetical Errors | 30 |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| 1 | |
| Award of Contract | 32 |
| Award Criteria. | 32 |
| | |
| Signing of Contract | 32 |
| Performance Security | |
| | Examination of Bids Confidentiality Clarification of Bids Determination of Responsiveness Bid Evaluation and Comparison Correction of Arithmetical Errors Conversion to Single Currency Bid Adjustments. Qualification of the Bidder Comparison of Bid Employer's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids Award of Contract Award Criteria. Notification of Award Signing of Contract Performance Security |

Section I. Instructions to Bidders

A. General

1. Scope of Bid

- 1.1 The Employer indicated in Section II, **Bid Data Sheet (BDS)** issues this Bidding Document for the procurement of Works, as specified in Section VI, Requirements. The name, identification, and number of lots are provided in the **BDS**.
- 1.2 Unless otherwise stated, throughout this Bidding Document definitions and interpretations shall be as prescribed in Section VII, General Conditions.

2. Source of Funds

- 2.1 The Borrower or Recipient (hereinafter called "Borrower") indicated in the **BDS** has applied for or received financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the African Development Bank¹ (hereinafter called "the Bank") toward the cost of the project named in the **BDS**. The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract(s) for which this Bidding Document is issued.
- 2.2 Payments by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank in accordance with the terms and conditions of the financing agreement between the Borrower and the Bank (hereinafter called the Loan Agreement), and will be subject in all respects to the terms and conditions of that Loan Agreement. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan Agreement or have any claim to the funds.

3. Fraud and Corruption

- 3.1 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank Financing), as well as bidders, suppliers, and contractors, and their agents (whether declared or not), subcontractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, under Bank-financed contracts, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts². In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:
- (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:

The specific financing institution shall be as stipulated in the **BDS**.

 $^{^2}$ In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

- (i) "Corrupt Practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party³;
- (ii) "Fraudulent Practice" any act or omission, including a misrepresentation that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- (iii) "Collusive Practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties⁴, designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party; and
- (iv) "Coercive Practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party⁵;
- (v) "Obstructive practice" is
 - (v.1) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or

(v.2) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 3.1(e) below.

(b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its subconsultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees has, directly or indirectly, engaged in Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, Coercive, or Obstructive Practices in competing for the

³ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

⁴ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

⁵ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

contract in question;

- (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the Financing allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of such Financing engaged in Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, Coercive or Obstructive Practices during the procurement or the implementation of that contract, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures⁶ including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible to bid for, or to be awarded Bank-financed contracts either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, (i) to be awarded a Bank-fianced contract; (ii) to be a nominated⁷ sub-contractor, consultant, supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by the Bank, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts and records and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.
- 3.2 Furthermore, Bidders shall be aware of the provisions stated in Section VII, **General Conditions**.

4. Eligible Bidders

4.1 A Bidder may be a natural person, private entity, government-owned entity—subject to **ITB** 4.5—or any combination of such entities supported by a letter of intent to enter into an agreement or under an existing agreement in the form of a joint venture, consortium, or

⁶ A firm or an individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract: (i) upon completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, or otherwise decided by the Bank; and through the application of the Proposal for the Implementation of a Sanctions Process within the African Development Bank Group; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an on-going sanction proceeding. See footnote 18 and paragraph 9 of Appendix 1 of the Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works.

⁷ A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding documents) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirement for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower."

association (JVCA). In the case of a joint venture, consortium, or association:

- (a) unless otherwise specified in the **BDS**, all partners shall be jointly and severally liable, and
- (b) the JVCA shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all businesses for and on behalf of any and all the partners of the JVCA during the bidding process and, in the event the JVCA is awarded the Contract, during contract execution.
- 4.2 A Bidder, and all parties constituting the Bidder, shall have the nationality of an eligible country, in accordance with the Bank's **Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works**, and as listed in Section V, Eligible Countries. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is a citizen or is constituted, incorporated, or registered and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country. This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the Contract including Related Services.
- 4.3 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. All Bidders found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest with one or more parties in this bidding process, if:
 - (a) they have controlling partners in common; or
 - (b) they receive or have received any direct or indirect subsidy from any of them; or
 - (c) they have the same legal representative for purposes of this bid; or
 - (d)they have a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties, that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on the bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Employer regarding this bidding process; or
 - (e) a Bidder participates in more than one bid in this bidding process. Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in which it is involved. However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same subcontractor, not otherwise participating as a Bidder, in

⁸ Including eligibility criteria for participation in the supply of goods, works and related services.

more than one bid; or

- (f) a Bidder participated as a consultant in the preparation of Section VI, Requirements that are the subject of the bid.
- (g) a Bidder or any of its affiliates has been hired, or is proposed to be hired, by the Employer or the Borrower for the supervision of the contract.
- 4.4 A Bidder that is under a declaration of ineligibility by the Bank in accordance with **ITB** Clause 3, at the date of the deadline for bid submission or thereafter, shall be disqualified.
- 4.5 Government-owned entities in the Borrower's country shall be eligible only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous, (ii) operate under the principles of commercial law, and (iii) are not dependent agencies of the Employer or the Borrower.
- 4.6 Bidders shall not be under execution of a Bid–Securing Declaration in the Employer's Country.
- 4.7 Bidders shall provide such evidence of their continued eligibility satisfactory to the Employer, as the Employer shall reasonably request.
- 4.8 Firms from an eligible country shall be excluded if:
 - (a) as a matter of law or official regulation, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
 - (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's country prohibits any import of Goods from that country or any payments to persons or entities in that country.
- 4.9 In case a prequalification process has been conducted prior to the bidding process, this bidding is open only to prequalified Bidders.
- 4.10 A firm sanctioned by the Bank in accordance with the above ITB Clause 3.1 (d), or in accordance with the Bank's policies on anti-corruption and fraud and Bank's sanctions procedures⁹, shall be ineligible to be awarded a Bank-financed contract, or to benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner,

⁹ See the Proposal for the Implementation of a Sanctions Process within the African Development Bank Group and the Bank's Whistleblowing and Complaints Handling Policy. The Bank's sanctions procedures are publicly disclosed on the Bank's external website."

during the period of time determined by the Bank

5. Eligible Goods and Related Services

- 5.1 All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank, shall have as their country of origin an eligible country of the Bank in accordance with the Bank's **Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works**, as listed in Section V, Eligible Countries.
- 5.2 For purposes of this Clause, the term "Goods" includes commodities, raw material, machinery, equipment, and industrial plants; and "Related Services" includes services such as insurance, transportation, installation, and commissioning, training, and initial maintenance.
- 5.3 The term "country of origin" means the country where the Goods have been mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its imported components.
- 5.4 The nationality of the firm that produces, assembles, distributes, or sells the Goods shall not determine their origin.

B. Contents of Bidding Document

6. Sections of Bidding Document

6.1 The Bidding Document consist of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with **ITB** 8.

PART 1 Bidding Procedures

- Section I. Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section II. Bid Data Sheet (**BDS**)
- Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- Section IV. Bidding Forms
- Section V. Eligible Countries

PART 2 Employer's Requirements

• Section VI. Requirements

PART 3 Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms

- Section VII. General Conditions (GC)
- Section VIII. Particular Conditions (PC)
- Section IX. Contract Forms

- 6.2 The Invitation for Bids issued by the Employer is not part of the Bidding Document.
- 6.3 The Bidder shall obtain the Bidding Document from the source stated by the Employer in the Invitation for Bids; otherwise the Employer is not responsible for the completeness of the Bidding Document.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Document. Failure to furnish all information or documentation required by the Bidding Document may result in the rejection of the bid.
- 7. Clarification of Bidding Document, Site Visit, Pre-Bid Meeting
- A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Document shall contact the Employer in writing at the Employer's address indicated in the **BDS** or raise his enquiries during the prebid meeting if provided for in accordance with **ITB** 7.4. The Employer will respond to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received prior to the deadline for submission of bids, within the number of days specified in the **BDS**. The Employer response shall be in writing with copies to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Document in accordance with **ITB** 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. Should the Employer deem it necessary to amend the Bidding Document as a result of a request for clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under **ITB** 8 and **ITB** 22.2.
- 7.2 Where applicable, the Bidder is advised to visit and examine the project site and obtain for itself on its own responsibility all information that may be necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for the provision of the Requirements. The costs of visiting the site shall be at the Bidder's own expense.
- 7.3 Pursuant to **ITB** 7.2, where the Bidder and any of its personnel or agents have been granted permission by the Employer to enter upon its premises and lands for the purpose of such visit, the Bidder, its personnel, and agents will release and indemnify the Employer and its personnel and agents from and against all liability in respect thereof, and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property, and any other loss, damage, costs, and expenses incurred as a result of the visit.
- 7.4 The Bidder's designated representative is invited to attend a pre-bid meeting, if provided for in the **BDS**. The purpose of the meeting will be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage. If so provided for in the **BDS**, the Employer will organize a site visit.

- 7.5 The Bidder is requested, as far as possible, to submit any questions in writing, to reach the Employer not later than one week before the meeting.
- 7.6 Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, including the text of the questions raised without identifying the source, and the responses given, together with any responses prepared after the meeting, will be transmitted promptly to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Document in accordance with ITB 6.3. Any modification to the Bidding Document that may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made by the Employer exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to ITB 8 and not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting.
- 7.7 Non-attendance at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a Bidder.

8. Amendment of Bidding Document

- 8.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Employer may amend the Bidding Document by issuing addenda.
- 8.2 Any addendum issued shall be part of the Bidding Document and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Bidding Document from the Employer in accordance with **ITB** 6.3.
- 8.3 To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids, pursuant to **ITB** 22.2

C. Preparation of Bids

9. Cost of Bidding

9.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Bid, and the Employer shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

10. Language of Bid

10.1 The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Employer, shall be written in the language specified in the **BDS**. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in that language, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.

11. Documents Comprising the Bid

11.1 The Bid shall comprise the following:

- (a) Letter of Bid
- (b) Completed Schedules as provided in Section IV, Bidding

Forms;

- (c) Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, in accordance with **ITB** 19:
- (d) at the Bidder's option, alternative proposals, if permissible, in accordance with **ITB** 13:
- (e) written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with **ITB** 20.2;
- (f)documentary evidence establishing the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services offered by the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 17.1;
- (g) documentary evidence establishing the Bidder's qualifications in accordance with the requirements of Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms;
- (h) documentary evidence as specified in the BDS, establishing the conformity of the Technical Proposal offered by the Bidder with the Bidding Document, using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms;
- (i) in the case of a bid submitted by a JVCA, JVCA agreement, or letter of intent to enter into a JVCA including a draft agreement, indicating at least the parts of the Requirements to be executed by the respective partners;
- (j) any other document required in the **BDS**.
- 12. Letter of Bid and Price Schedules
- 12.1 The Bidder shall submit the Letter of Bid using the form furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. This form must be completed without any alterations to its format, and no substitutes shall be accepted. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.
- 13. Alternative Bids
- 13.1 Unless otherwise indicated in the **BDS**, alternative proposals shall not be considered. If alternative proposals are permitted, their method of evaluation shall be as stipulated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 13.2 When alternative times for completion are explicitly invited, a statement to that effect will be included in the **BDS**, as well as the method of evaluating different times for completion.
- 13.3 Except as provided under **ITB** 13.4 below, Bidders wishing to offer technical alternatives to the requirements of the bidding document must first price the Employer's requirements as described in the

bidding document and shall further provide all information necessary for a complete evaluation of the alternative by the Employer, including drawings, design calculations, technical specifications, breakdown of prices, and proposed construction methodology and other relevant details. Only the technical alternatives, if any, of the lowest evaluated Bidder conforming to the basic technical requirements shall be considered by the Employer.

13.4 When specified in the **BDS**, Bidders are permitted to submit alternative technical solutions for specified parts of the requirements, and such parts shall be identified in the **BDS**, as will the method for their evaluation, and described in Section VI, Requirements.

14. Bid Prices and Discounts

- 14.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid and in the Price Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified in **ITB** 14.2.
- 14.2 Unless otherwise provided in the **BDS** and the **General Conditions** (**GC**), the prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed.
- 14.3 The Bidder shall submit a bid for the whole of the works described in ITB 1.1 by filling in prices for all items of the Works, as identified in Section IV, Bidding Forms. In case of admeasurement contracts, the Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Works described in the Bill of Quantities. Items against which no rate or price is entered by the Bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by the rates for other items and prices in the Bill of Quantities.
- 14.4 The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid shall be the total price of the Bid, excluding any discounts offered.
- 14.5 Unconditional discounts, if any, and the methodology for their application shall be quoted in the Letter of Bid, in accordance with **ITB** 12.1.
- 14.6 If, pursuant to **ITB** 14.2, prices are adjustable, the Bidder shall furnish the indices and weightings for the price adjustment formula in the Schedule of Adjustment Data in Section IV (Bidding Forms) and the Employer may require the Bidder to justify its proposed indices and weightings.
- 14.7 If so indicated in **ITB** 1.1, bids are invited for individual contracts or for any combination of contracts (packages). Bidders wishing to offer any price reduction for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Price reductions or discounts shall be submitted in accordance with **ITB** 14.5, provided the bids for all contracts are submitted and

opened at the same time.

- 14.8 All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Contractor under the Contract, or for any other cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids, shall be included in the rates and prices and the total bid price submitted by the Bidder.
- 15. Currencies of Bid and Payment
- 15.1 The currency(ies) of the bid and the currency(ies) for payment shall be as specified in the **BDS**.
- 16. Documents
 Establishing the
 Qualifications of
 the Bidder
- 16.1 To establish its qualifications to perform the Contract in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, the Bidder shall provide the information requested in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 16.2 Bidders, individually or in joint ventures, applying for eligibility for margin of preference, if such margin applies pursuant to **ITB** 31.2, shall supply all information required to satisfy the criteria for eligibility as described in **ITB** 31.2.
- 17. Documents
 Establishing the
 Eligibility of the
 Goods and
 Related Services
- 17.1 To establish the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services in accordance with **ITB** Clause 5, Bidders shall complete the forms, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 18. Period of Validity of Bids
- 18.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the **BDS** after the bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Employer. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
- 18.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the Employer may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a bid security is requested in accordance with ITB 19, the Bidder granting the request shall also extend the bid security for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the deadline of the extended validity period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its bid security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid, except as provided in ITB 18.3.
- 18.3 In the case of fixed price contracts, if the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity, the Contract price shall be adjusted as specified in the request for extension. Bid evaluation shall be based on the Bid Price without taking into consideration the above correction.

19. Bid Security

- 19.1 The Bidder shall furnish as part of its bid, at the option of the Employer, and as stipulated in the **BDS**, the original of either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a bid security using the relevant form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. In the case of a bid security, the bid security amount and currency shall be as specified in the **BDS**.
- 19.2 A Bid-Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 19.3 If a bid security is specified pursuant to **ITB** 19.1, the bid security shall be a demand guarantee in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:
 - (a) an unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or surety;
 - (b) an irrevocable letter of credit; or
 - (c) a cashier's or certified check;

from a reputable source from an eligible country. If the unconditional guarantee is issued by an insurance company or a bonding company located outside the Employer's Country, the issuer shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country to make it enforceable. In the case of a bank guarantee, the bid security shall be submitted either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms or in another substantially similar format approved by the Employer prior to bid submission. In either case, the form must include the complete name of the Bidder. The bid security shall be valid for twenty-eight days (28) beyond the original validity period of the bid, or beyond any period of extension if requested under **ITB** 18.2.

- 19.4 Pursuant to the option stipulated at **ITB** 19.1, any bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive bid security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
- 19.5 If a bid security is specified pursuant to **ITB** 19.1, the bid security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of the performance security pursuant to **ITB** 38.
- 19.6 The bid security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the Contract and furnished the required performance security.
- 19.7 The bid security may be forfeited or the Bid-Securing Declaration executed:
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity

specified by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid or

- (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 37; or
 - (ii) furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 38.
- 19.8 The Bid Security or the Bid Securing Declaration of a JVCA shall be in the name of the JVCA that submits the bid. If the JVCA has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JVCA at the time of bidding, the Bid Security or the Bid Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future partners as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB 4.1.
- 19.9 If a Bid-Securing Declaration is executed in accordance with **ITB** 19.7, the Employer will declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Employer for the period of time stated in the Form of Bid-Securing Declaration.

20. Format and Signing of Bid

- 20.1 The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the bid as described in **ITB** 11 and clearly mark it "ORIGINAL." In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the bid, in the number specified in the **BDS** and clearly mark them "COPY." In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
- 20.2 The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the **BDS** and shall be attached to the bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the bid where entries have been made shall be signed or initialled by the person signing the bid.
- 20.3 A bid submitted by a JVCA shall comply with the following requirements:
 - (a) Unless not required in accordance with **ITB** 4.1 (a), be signed so as to be legally binding on all partners and
 - (b) Include the Representative's authorization referred to in **ITB** 4.1 (b), consisting of a power of attorney signed by those legally authorized to sign on behalf of the JVCA.
- 20.4 Any amendments, interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialled by the person signing the bid.

D. Submission and Opening of Bids

21. Submission, Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 21.1 Bidders may always submit their bids by mail or by hand. If so specified in the **BDS**, bidders shall have the option of submitting their bids electronically. Procedures for submission, sealing and marking are as follows:
 - (a) Bidders submitting bids by mail or by hand shall enclose the original and copies of the Bid in separate sealed envelopes. If so permitted in accordance with **ITB** 13, alternative proposals, and copies thereof, shall also be placed in separate envelopes. The envelopes shall be duly marked as "ORIGINAL," "ALTERNATIVE," "ORIGINAL COPY," and "ALTERNATIVE COPY" These envelopes shall then be enclosed in one single package. The rest of the procedure shall be in accordance with **ITB** 21.2 and 21.3.
 - (b) Bidders submitting bids electronically shall follow the electronic bid submission procedures specified in the **BDS**.
- 21.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - (a) bear the name and address of the Bidder;
 - (b) be addressed to the Employer in accordance with **ITB** 22.1;
 - (c) bear the specific identification of this bidding process pursuant to **ITB** 1.1; and
 - (d) bear a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening
- 21.3 If envelopes and packages are not sealed and marked as required, the Employer will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid.

22. Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 22.1 Bids must be received by the Employer at the address and no later than the date and time indicated in the **BDS**.
- 22.2 The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids by amending the Bidding Document in accordance with **ITB** 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

23. Late Bids

23.1 The Employer shall not consider any bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of bids, in accordance with **ITB** 22. Any bid received by the Employer after the deadline for submission of bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder.

24. Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids

- 24.1 A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its bid after it has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization in accordance with **ITB** 20.2., (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies). The corresponding substitution or modification of the bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
 - (a) prepared and submitted in accordance with **ITB** 20 and **ITB** 21 (except that withdrawals notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "WITHDRAWAL," "SUBSTITUTION," "MODIFICATION;" and
 - (b) received by the Employer prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids, in accordance with **ITB** 22.
- 24.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with **ITB** 24.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders.
- 24.3 No bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof.

25. Bid Opening

- 25.1 The Employer shall conduct the bid opening in public, in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who choose to attend, and at the address, date and time specified in the **BDS**. Any specific electronic bid opening procedures required if electronic bidding is permitted in accordance with **ITB** 21.1, shall be as specified in the **BDS**.
- 25.2 First, envelopes marked "Withdrawal" shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at bid opening. Next, envelopes marked "Substitution" shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding bid being substituted, and the substituted bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at bid opening. Envelopes marked "Modification" shall be opened and read out with the corresponding bid. No bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at bid opening. Only bids that are opened and read out at bid opening shall be considered further.
- 25.3 The Employer shall open all other envelopes one at a time and read

out: the name of the Bidder, the Bid Price(s), any discounts and their application methodology, alternative bids, the presence or absence of a bid security or Bid-Securing Declaration; and any other details as the Employer may consider appropriate. Only discounts and alternative bids read out at bid opening shall be considered for evaluation. No bid shall be rejected at bid opening except for late bids, in accordance with ITB 23.1.

25.4 The Employer shall prepare a record of the bid opening that shall include, as a minimum: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification; the Bid Price, per lot if applicable, including any discounts and alternative proposals; and the presence or absence of a bid security or a Bid-Securing Declaration. The Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Bidders who submitted bids in time, and posted online when electronic bidding is permitted.

E. Examination of Bids

26. Confidentiality

- 26.1 Information relating to the evaluation of bids shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until information on Contract award is communicated to all Bidders.
- 26.2 Any attempt by a Bidder to influence improperly the Employer in the evaluation of the bids or Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its bid.
- 26.3 Notwithstanding **ITB** 26.1, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any matter related to the bidding process, it should do so in writing.

27. Clarification of Bids

27.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Employer may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its bid, allowing a reasonable time for response. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder that is not in response to a request by the Employer shall not be considered. The Employer's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change in the prices or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the bids, in accordance with **ITB** 29.

27.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its bid by the date and time set in the Employer's request for clarification, its bid may be rejected.

28. Determination of Responsiveness

- 28.1 The Employer's determination of a bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself, as defined in **ITB**11.
- 28.2 A substantially responsive bid is one that meets the requirements of the Bidding Document without material deviation, reservation, or omission.
 - (a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the Bidding Document;
 - (b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Document; and
 - (c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the Bidding Document.
- 28.3 A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that,
 - (a) if accepted, would:
 - (i) affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Schedule of Requirements as specified in Section VI; or
 - (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Document, the Employer]'s rights or the Bidder's obligations under the proposed Contract; or
 - (b) if rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.
- 28.4 The Employer shall examine the technical aspects of the bid in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VI have been met without any material deviation, reservation, or omission.
- 28.5 If a bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the Bidding Document, it shall be rejected by the Employer and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.
- 28.6 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may waive any quantifiable nonconformity in the bid that does not

constitute a material deviation, reservation or omission.

- 28.7 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities in the bid related to documentation requirements. Requesting information or documentation on such nonconformities shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its bid.
- 28.8 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of the non-conforming item or component. The adjustment shall be made using the methodology indicated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

F. Bid Evaluation and Comparison

29. Correction of Arithmetical Errors

- 29.1 The Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies indicated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted
- 29.2 Provided that the bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall correct arithmetical errors as indicated in Section III, Evaluation and Oualification Criteria
- 29.3 If a Bidder does not accept the correction of errors, its bid shall be declared non-responsive and its Bid Security shall be forfeited or the Bid-Securing Declaration executed.

30. Conversion to Single Currency

30.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the bid shall be converted into a single currency as specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

31. Bid Adjustments

- 31.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes the Employer shall adjust the bid prices using the criteria and methodology specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 31.2 Unless otherwise specified in the **BDS**, no margin of domestic or regional preference shall apply. If a margin of preference applies, the application methodology shall be as specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, and in accordance with the provisions stipulated in the Bank's **Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works**.
- 31.3 If in the opinion of the Employer the bid which results in the lowest Evaluated Bid, is seriously unbalanced or front loaded or

substantially below the Employer's estimates, the Employer may require the Bidder to produce detailed price analyses for any or all items of the Bill of Quantities, to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices with the methods and schedule proposed. After evaluation of the price analyses, taking into consideration the schedule of estimated Contract payments, the Employer may require that the amount of the performance security be increased at the expense of the Bidder to a level sufficient to protect the Employer against financial loss in the event of default of the successful Bidder under the Contract.

32. Qualification of the Bidder

- 32.1 The Employer shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated and substantially responsive bid meets the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 32.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to **ITB** 16.
- 32.3 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the bid, in which event the Employer shall proceed to the next lowest evaluated bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.
- 32.4 The capabilities of the manufacturers and subcontractors proposed in its Bid to be used by the lowest evaluated Bidder for identified major items of the Requirements will also be evaluated for acceptability in accordance with the criteria and methodologies defined in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. Their participation should be confirmed with a letter of intent between the parties, as needed. Should a manufacturer or subcontractor be determined to be unacceptable, the Bid will not be rejected, but the Bidder will be required to substitute an acceptable manufacturer or subcontractor without any change to the bid price.
- 33. Comparison of Bid
- 34. Employer's
 Right to Accept
 Any Bid, and to
 Reject Any or
 All Bids
- 33.1 Subject to **ITB** 29, 30 and 31, the Employer shall compare all substantially responsive bids to determine the lowest evaluated bid.
- 34.1 The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all bids submitted and specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.

G. Award of Contract

35. Award Criteria

35.1 Subject to **ITB** 34.1, the Employer shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose offer has been determined to be the lowest evaluated bid and is substantially responsive to the Bidding Document, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

36. Notification of Award

- 36.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Employer shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its bid has been accepted. The notification letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the Employer will pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works (hereinafter and in the Contract Forms called "the Contract Price").
- 36.2 Until a formal contract is prepared and executed, the notification of award shall constitute a binding Contract.
- 36.3 At the same time, the Employer shall also notify all other Bidders of the results of the bidding process, and shall publish in **UNDB online** and at the **Bank's website** (www.afdb.org), the results identifying the bid and lot numbers and the following information: (i) name of each Bidder who submitted a Bid; (ii) bid prices as read out at bid opening; (iii) name and evaluated prices of each Bid that was evaluated; (iv) name of bidders whose bids were rejected and the reasons for their rejection; and (v) name of the winning Bidder, and the price it offered, as well as the duration and summary scope of the contract awarded. After publication of the award, unsuccessful bidders may request in writing to the Employer for a debriefing seeking explanations on the grounds on which their bids were not selected. The Employer shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after Publication of contract award, requests a debriefing.

37. Signing of Contract

- 37.1 Promptly upon notification, the Employer shall send the successful Bidder the Contract Agreement.
- 37.2 Within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement, the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return it to the Employer.
- 37.3 Upon the successful Bidder's furnishing of the signed Contract Agreement and Performance Security pursuant to **ITB** 38, the Employer will dischDAMBALA FACHANA its Bid Security, pursuant to **ITB** 19.
- 37.4 Notwithstanding **ITB** 37.2 above, in case signing of the Contract Agreement is prevented by any export restrictions attributable to the

Employer, to the country of the Employer, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, where such export restrictions arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, the Bidder shall not be bound by its bid, always provided, however, that the Bidder can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Employer and of the Bank that signing of the Contract Agreement has not been prevented by any lack of diligence on the part of the Bidder in completing any formalities, including applying for permits, authorizations and licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract Agreement.

38. Performance Security

- 38.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Employer, the successful Bidder shall furnish the performance security in accordance with the conditions of contract, subject to ITB 31.3, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section IX, Contract Forms, or another form acceptable to the Employer. If the performance security furnished by the successful Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or insurance company that has been determined by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Employer. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country.
- 38.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security, or execution of the Bid-Securing Declaration. In that event the Employer may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder whose offer is substantially responsive and is determined by the Employer to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

Section II. Bid Data Sheet

| | A. General | |
|------------|---|--|
| ITB 1.1 | The number of the Invitation for Bids is: MOALD/SIVAP/T047/2023-2024 | |
| ITB 1.1 | The Employer is: Principal Secretary, State Department of Crop Development, Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock Development | |
| ITB 1.1 | The name of the bidding process is: National Competitive Bidding | |
| | The identification number of the bidding process is: MOALD/SIVAP/T047/2023-2024 | |
| | The number and identification of lots comprising this bidding process are: N/A | |
| ITB 2.1 | The Borrower is: Republic of Kenya | |
| ITB 2.1 | The specific Bank financing institution is: African Development Fund | |
| ITB 2.1 | The name of the Project is: Small Scale Irrigation and Value Addition Project | |
| ITB 4.1(a) | The individuals or firms in a joint venture, consortium or association "shall be" jointly and severally liable. | |
| ITB 4.4 | A list of debarred firms is available at http://www.afdb.org/debarred | |
| | B. Contents of Bidding Document | |
| ITB 7.1 | Attention: Project Coordinator Street Address: Hill Plaza, Ngong Road P.O. Box 30028-00100 Nairobi, Kenya Floor/Room number: 9 th Floor City: Nairobi ZIP Code: N/A Country: KENYA Electronic mail address: npcsivap@gmail.com Requests for clarifications should be received by the Employer no later than ten (10) days, prior to the deadline for submission of Bids. | |
| ITB 7.4 | A Pre-Bid meeting "shall not" take place. | |

| C. Preparation of Bids | |
|------------------------|---|
| ITB 10.1 | The language of the bid is: English |
| ITB 11.1 (h) | The Bidder must provide the following Documentary Evidence to establish the conformity of the Technical Proposal with the Bidding Document: Certificate of registration/incorporation Evidence of similar works undertaken in the past two years List of equipment proposed for the works (provide proof of ownership, lease or hire) List of proposed personnel, signed CV's and clear proposed positions/tasks for each Audited financial statements for the last three years Clear work program/plan |
| ITB 11.1 (j) | The Bidder shall submit with its bid the following additional documents: Copy of the Bidder's VAT registration certificate or equivalent A valid tax compliance certificate Written authorization for the person signing the documents from the company/Power of Attorney Joint venture agreement, in the required format, for those submitting bids as joint ventures A bid guarantee from a Bank in the format given/attached and shall be valid for twenty-eight days (28) beyond the original validity period of the bid Duly filled and signed letter of bid in the company letterhead and in the format attached. |
| ITB 13.1 | Alternative bids are not permitted. |
| ITB 13.2 | Alternatives to the Times for Completion "shall not be" permitted. If alternatives to the Times for Completion are permitted, the evaluation method will be as specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. |
| ITB 13.4 | Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Works, as further detailed in the Specification: "none". |
| ITB 14.2 | Prices "shall be" fixed. |
| ITB 14.6 | The prices quoted by the Bidder "shall not be" subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract. |
| ITB 15.1 | The currency of the bid and payment shall be: Kenya Shilling (KES) |
| ITB 18.1 | The bid validity period shall be: 120 days. |

| ITB 19.1 | The Bidder shall furnish a bid security, in the amount Equal to KES 270,000.00 Bank Guarantee |
|--------------|---|
| ITB 20.1 | In addition to the original of the Bid, the number of copies is: 1 copy |
| ITB 20.2 | The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall indicate: |
| | (a) The name and description of the documentation required to demonstrate the authority of the signatory to sign the Bid such as a Power of Attorney, authorization letter in company stationery; and |
| | (b) In the case of Bids submitted by an existing or intended JVCA an undertaking signed by all parties (i) stating that all parties shall be jointly and severally liable, if so required in accordance with ITB 4.1(a), and (ii) nominating a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the parties of the JVCA during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution."] |
| | D. Submission and Opening of Bids |
| ITB 21.1 | Bidders "shall not" have the option of submitting their bids electronically. |
| ITB 21.1 (b) | The electronic bidding submission procedures shall be: None |
| ITB 22.1 | For bid submission purposes only, the Employer's address is: |
| 1110 22.1 | Attention: Principal Secretary, State Department of Crops Development |
| | Street Address: Cathedral Road |
| | Floor/Room number: Ground Floor, Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock |
| | Development Tender Box |
| | City: Nairobi |
| | ZIP Code: P.O. Box 30028-00100 Nairobi, Kenya |
| | Country: KENYA The deadline for bid submission is: |
| | |
| | Date: 05/09/2023 Time: 11.00am |
| ITB 25.1 | The bid opening shall take place at: |
| 11D 25.1 | Street Address: Cathedral Road, State Department of Agriculture, |
| | Floor/Room number: 7th Floor Conference Room, Kilimo House |
| | City: Nairobi |
| | Country: Kenya |
| | Date: 05/09/2023 |
| | Time:11.00am |
| | |

| ITB 25.1 | The electronic bid opening procedures shall be: None |
|----------|--|
| | F. Bid Evaluation and Comparison |
| ITB 31.2 | A margin of domestic or regional preference "shall not" apply. |

Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

1. Evaluation Criteria and Methodology

1.1 Alternative Proposal (If permitted in accordance with ITB 13.1)

Technical Alternative None

Alternative Time for Completion **None**

1.2 Correction of Arithmetical Errors (In accordance with ITB 29.1)

- (a) Where there are errors between the total of the amounts given under the column for the price breakdown and the amount given under the Total Price, the former shall prevail and the latter will be corrected accordingly
- (b) If there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Employer there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the total price as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
- (c) If there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
- (d) If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.

1.3 Conversion to a Single Currency (In accordance with ITB 30)

Not applicable.

1.4 Discounts (In accordance with ITB 14.5)

The Employer will adjust the Bid Price, using the methodology prescribed by the Bidder in its Letter of Bid, to take account of the Discounts offered by the Bidder in its Letter of Bid, as read out at the Bid Opening.

1.5 Quantifiable Nonmaterial Nonconformities (In accordance with ITB 28.8)

The adjustment shall be made using the following methodology: [insert methodology]

1.6 Margin of Domestic or Regional Preference (If permitted in accordance with ITB 31.2)

None

1.7 Any other Criteria or Methodology

See Section II & Section VIII

2. Qualification Criteria

| 2 | Qualification (Without Prequalification) |
|-----|---|
| 2.1 | Eligibility (TABLE) |
| 2.2 | Historical Contract Non-Performance (TABLE) |
| 2.3 | Financial Situation (TABLE) |
| 2.4 | Experience (TABLE) |
| 2.5 | Personnel (TABLE) |
| 2.6 | Equipment (TABLE) |

2. Qualification Tables (Without Prequalification)

| Factor | 2.1 Eligibility | | | | | |
|--|---|-----------------------|---|------------------------------|----------------------|---|
| | | Criter | ia | | | |
| | | | Bio | lder | | |
| Sub-Factor | Requirement | Single Entity | Joint V | enture, Conso Association | rtium or | Documentation Required |
| | | · | All partners combined | Each partner | At least one partner | |
| 2.1.1 Nationality | Nationality in accordance with ITB 4.2. | Must meet requirement | Existing or intended JVCA must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | N/A | Form ELI –1.1 and 1.2, with attachments |
| 2.1.2 Conflict of Interest | No- conflicts of interests as described in ITB 4.3. | Must meet requirement | Existing or intended JVCA must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | N/A | Letter of Bid |
| 2.1.3 Bank Ineligibility | Not having been declared ineligible by the Bank as described in ITB 4.4. | Must meet requirement | Existing JVCA must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | N/A | Letter of Bid |
| 2.1.4 Government Owned Entity | Compliance with conditions of ITB 4.5 | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | N/A | Form ELI –1.1 and 1.2, with attachments |
| 2.1.5 Ineligibility based on a United Nations resolution or Borrower's country law | Not having been excluded as a result of the Borrower's country laws or official regulations, or by an act of compliance with UN Security Council resolution, in accordance with ITB 4.8 | Must meet requirement | Existing JVCA must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | N/A | Letter of Bid |

| Factor | 2.2 Historical Contract Non-Perform | rmance | | | | |
|---|--|--|-----------------------|--|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| | | Criteria | | | | |
| | | |] | Bidder | | |
| Sub-Factor | Requirement | G. I | Joint | Venture, Consor Association | tium or | Documentati on Required |
| | requirement | Single Entity | All partners combined | Each partner | At least one partner | |
| 2.2.1 History of non-performing contracts | Non-performance of a contract did not occur within the last two (2) years prior to the deadline for application submission, based on all information on fully settled disputes or litigation. A fully settled dispute or litigation is one that has been resolved in accordance with the Dispute Resolution Mechanism under the respective contract, and where all appeal instances available to the bidder have been exhausted. | Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JVCA | N/A | Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JVCA | N / A | Form CON - 2 |
| 2.2.2 Failure to Sign Contract | Not being under execution of Bid-Securing Declaration pursuant to ITB 4.6 for two (2No) years | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to a JVCA | N / A | Letter of Bid |
| 2.2.3 Pending Litigation | All pending litigation shall in total not represent more than five percent (5%) of the Bidder's net worth and shall be treated as resolved against the Bidder. | Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JVCA | N / A | Must meet requirement by itself or as partner to past or existing JVCA | N / A | Form CON – 2 |

| Factor | 2.3 Financial Situation | | | | | |
|--|--|-----------------------|-----------------------|--|--|---------------------------------|
| | | | | | | |
| | | | В | idder | | Documentation |
| Sub-Factor | Requirement | G. I | Joint Ventu | re, Consortium | or Association | Required |
| | requirement | Single Entity | All partners combined | Each partner | At least one partner | |
| 2.3.1 Historical Financial Performance | Submission of audited balance sheets or if not required by the law of the bidder's country, other financial statements acceptable to the Employer, for the last three[3No] years to demonstrate the current soundness of the bidders financial position and its prospective long term profitability. (a) Audited accounts in comparative form (b) Valid Tax Compliance (c) Cash flow statements (Supported by Bank statements) | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet requirement | N/A | Form FIN – 3.1 with attachments |
| 2.3.2. Average Annual Turnover | Minimum average annual turnover of KES 5 million, calculated as total certified payments received for contracts in progress or completed, within the last three (3No) years | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | Must meet percent (%) of the requirement | Must meet percent (%) of the requirement | Form FIN –3.2 |

| Factor | 2.3 Financial Situation | | | | | |
|----------------------------|---|-----------------------|-----------------------|---|--|--------------------------------|
| | | Crite | eria | | | |
| | | | В | Bidder | | Documentation |
| Sub-Factor | Requirement | G. I | Joint Ventu | re, Consortium | or Association | Required |
| | Requirement | Single Entity | All partners combined | Each partner | At least one partner | |
| 2.3.3. Financial Resources | The Bidder must demonstrate access to, or availability of, financial resources such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, other than any contractual advance payments to meet: (i) the following cash-flow requirement: Current ratio = Liquid Assets Liquid liabilities Greater than 1 and Debt Ratio = Total Debt Total Assets Less than 1 and (ii) the overall cash flow requirements for this contract and its current commitments. | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirement | Must meet fifty percent (50%) of the requirement | Must meet seventy five percent (75%) of the requirement | Form FIN –3.3 + Form CCC |

| Factor | 2.4 Experience | | | | | |
|------------------------------|---|------------------------|---|------------------------------|---|---------------------------|
| | | Criteria | | | | |
| | | | Bid | lder | | |
| Sub-Factor | Requirement | G! I. | Joint V | enture, Conso Association | ortium or | Documentation Required |
| | | Single Entity | All partners combined | Each partner | At least one partner | |
| 2.4.1 General Experience | Experience under contracts in the role of contractor, subcontractor, or management contractor for at least the last three [3No] years prior to the applications submission deadline, and with an activity in at least nine (9) months in each year. | Must meet requirement | N/A | Must meet requirement | N/A | Form EXP-4.1 |
| 2.4.2 Specific Experience | (a)Participation as contractor, management contractor, or subcontractor, in at least three (3No) construction contracts of over Ksh. 5 million within the last three (3No) years that have been successfully and substantially completed similar to the proposed Works. The similarity shall be based on the physical size, complexity, methods/technology or other characteristics as described in Section VI, Requirements. | Must meet requirement | Must meet requirements for all characteristics | N/A | Must meet requirement for one characteristic | Form EXP 2.4.2(a) |
| 2.4.2 Specific Experience | b) For the above or other contracts executed during the period stipulated in 2.4.2(a) above, a minimum experience in the following key activities: 1. Fencing and building works. | Must meet requirements | Must meet requirements | N/A | Must meet requirements | Form EXP- 2.4.2(b) |

2.5 Personnel

The Bidder must demonstrate that it will have the personnel for the key positions that meet the following requirements:

| NO. | PERSONNEL | QUALIFICATION | NO | Experience | REMARKS |
|-----|-------------|--|----|------------|---------------------------------|
| 1 | Site Agent | Diploma in Civil Engineering/Agricultural Engineering or related fields | 1 | 5 years | All from recognized Institution |
| 2 | Foreman | Certificate in Building Construction | 1 | 5 years | |
| 3 | Arc Welders | Certificate/Experience | 1 | 5 years | |

The Bidder shall provide details of the proposed personnel and their experience records in the relevant Forms included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.

2.6 Equipment

The Bidder must demonstrate that it will have access to the key Contractor's equipment listed hereafter:

| S/NO. | DESCRIPTION | MINIMUM (RATING/CAPACITY) | QUANTITY (NO.) |
|-------|----------------------------|----------------------------------|----------------|
| 1 | Concrete Mixture | capacity over 0.28M ³ | 1 |
| 2 | Van or Utility vehicle | 1 tonne | 1 |
| 4 | Concrete Vibrators (poker) | 3 KVA (Output) | 1 |
| 5 | Generator | 5.5 KW | 1 |
| 6 | Welding Machines | 180Amp | 2 |

Section IV. Bidding Forms

Table of Forms

| Letter of Bid | 48 |
|--|-----------------------|
| Bill of Quantities/Schedules of Prices Error! | Bookmark not defined. |
| Schedule of Adjustment Data | 70 |
| Summary of Payment Currencies | 71 |
| Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee) | 73 |
| Form of Bid Security (Bid Bond) | 75 |
| Form of Bid-Securing Declaration | 77 |
| Technical Proposal | 78 |
| Site Organization | 79 |
| Method Statement | 80 |
| Mobilization Schedule | 81 |
| Construction Schedule Error! B | ookmark not defined. |
| Contractor's Equipment | 83 |
| Proposed Personnel | 84 |
| Resume of Proposed Personnel | 85 |
| Others | |
| Bidder's Qualification | 87 |
| Bidder Information Sheet | 88 |
| Party to JVCA Information Sheet | |
| Historical Contract Non-Performance | |
| Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress | |
| Financial Situation | |
| Average Annual Turnover | 94 |
| Financial Resources | |
| General Experience | |
| Specific Experience | |
| Specific Experience in Key Activities | |
| | |

(e)

| L | ett | er | of | Bi | d |
|---|-----|----|----------|----|---|
| _ | | | U | | |

| The E | Bidder MUST prepare the Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the |
|------------|---|
| Bidd | er's complete name and address. |
| | |
| | |
| | Date: |
| | Bidding No.: |
| | Invitation for Bid No.: |
| | |
| | |
| To: | |
| | |
| We, t | he undersigned, declare that: |
| | |
| (a) | We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including |
| | Addenda issued in accordance with Instructions to Bidders (ITB) Clause 8; |
| <i>a</i> . | |
| (b) | We offer to execute in conformity with the Bidding Documents the following Works: |
| | ; |
| (c) | The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (d) below is: |
| (C) | The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in hell (d) below is. |
| | |
| (d) | The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:; |

(f) If price adjustment provisions apply, the Table(s) of Adjustment Data shall be considered part of this Bid;¹⁰

before the expiration of that period;

Our bid shall be valid for a period of _____ [insert validity period as specified in ITB

18.1.] days from the date fixed for the bid submission deadline in accordance with the Bidding Documents, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time

- (g) If our bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance in accordance with **ITB** 38 and **GC** 5.15, for the due performance of the Contract;
- (h) Our firm, including any subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the Contract, have nationalities from eligible countries;

Include if price adjustment provisions apply in the Contract in accordance with PC Clause <u>5.10 Price</u> <u>Adjustment</u>.

- (i) We, including any subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the contract, do not have any conflict of interest in accordance with **ITB** 4.3;
- (j) We are not participating, as a Bidder or as a subcontractor, in more than one bid in this bidding process in accordance with **ITB** 4.3, other than alternative offers submitted in accordance with **ITB** 13;
- (k) Our firm, its affiliates or subsidiaries (including any Subcontractors or Suppliers for any part of the contract), has not been declared ineligible by the Bank, or under execution of a Bid-Securing Declaration in the Employer's country, or under the Employer's country laws or official regulations, or by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council, in accordance with **ITB** 4.4, 4.6 and 4.8, respectively;
- (l) We are not a government owned entity / We are a government owned entity but meet the requirements of **ITB** 4.5;¹¹
- (m) We are / are not under sanction by the World Bank, the IADB, EBRD or the AsDB for any action of corruption and fraud in accordance with ITB 3. [If under sanction, please provide details including date of start of sanction and duration].
- (n) We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract: 12

| Name of Recipient | Address | Reason | Amount |
|-------------------|---------|--------|--------|
| | | | |
| | | | |

- (o) We undertake that, in competing for (and, if the award is made to us, in executing) the above contract, we will strictly observe the laws against fraud and corruption in force in the country of the Employer, as such laws have been listed by the Employer in the bidding documents for this contract.¹³
- (p) We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed;
- (q) We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any other bid that you may receive; and
- (r) If awarded the contract, the person named below shall act as Contractor's Representative:
- (s) We accept the appointment of [Employer to insert full name and address of suggested appointee] as the Adjudicator. / We do not accept the appointment of [Bidder to insert name suggested by Employer] as the Adjudicator, and propose instead that [Bidder to

12 If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "none".

The Bank will accept the introduction of such undertaking at the request of the Borrowing country, provided the arrangements governing such undertaking are satisfactory to the Bank.

Use one of the two options as appropriate.

| insert | alternative | name] | be | appointed | as | the | Adjudicator, | whose | daily | fees | and |
|---------|----------------|-----------|------|-----------|----|-----|--------------|-------|-------|------|-----|
| biograp | ohical data ai | re attach | ed.1 | .4 | | | | | | | |

| Name: | |
|---|--|
| In the capacity of: | |
| Signed: | |
| Duly authorized to sign the Bid for and on behalf of: | |
| Date: | |

| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | OFFICIAL USE TENDERER | | | R'S USE | |
|------|--|-----------------------|-----|--------|---------|--|
| | GRAND SUMMARY | | | AMOUNT | | |
| A. | TOTALS FOR WORKS | KSH | CTS | KSH | CTS | |
| B. | Contingency Sum (10%) | | | | | |
| | CONTRACT SUM CARRIED TO FORM OF TENDER | | | | | |
| | AMOUNT IN WORDS: | | | | ••••• | |
| | NAME OF TENDERER: | | | | | |
| | | | •• | | | |
| | ADDRESS: | ••••• | | | | |
| | SIGN: | | | | | |
| | DATE: | | | | | |
| | WITNESS NAME: | | | | | |
| | ADDRESS: | | | ••••• | •••••• | |
| | SIGN: | | | | | |
| | DATE: | | | | | |

| | SUMMARY | |
|----|------------------------------|--|
| | | |
| | | |
| A. | BILL NO. 01 PRELIMINARIES | |
| | | |
| B. | SALE YARD BILL NO.02 | |
| C. | KOISK BILL NO.03 | |
| С. | KOISK BILL NO.03 | |
| D. | TOILETS BILL NO. 04 | |
| | | |
| Е | OFFICES BILL NO.05 | |
| F | RAMP BILL NO.06 | |
| G | RAISED PLATFORM BILL NO.07 | |
| | | |
| | | |
| E. | PROVISIONAL SUMS BILL NO. 08 | |
| | | |

| | | UNIT | QTY | RATE | AMOUNT | | |
|------|---|------|-------|------|--------|-----|--|
| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | | | KSHS | KSHS | CTS | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | BILL NO.01 | | | | | | |
| | PRELIMINARIES AND GENERALS | | | | | | |
| A. | Mobilization and demobilization of personnel and equipments | ITEM | 1 | | | | |
| B. | Allow for temporary site office and camp | ITEM | 1 | | | | |
| C. | erect and maintain project sign board as directed by the project Engineer | ITEM | 1 | | | | |
| С. | TOTAL BILL NO. 01 | | | | | | |
| | BILL NO.02 | | | | | | |
| | SALE YARD FENCING | | | | | | |
| | ELEMENT NO.02 | | | | | | |
| | FENCING | | | | | | |
| | (ALL PROVISIONAL) | | | | | | |
| A. | Clearing the site of bushes/trees | SM | 5,000 | | | | |
| В | Excavate for fencing poles bases from exsisting ground level and not exceeding 1.50m deep.(225 mm x 225mmx500mm deep holes) | NO | 236 | | | | |
| | Concrete Work | | | | | | |
| | Mass concrete 1:4: 8- | | | | | | |
| С | 50 mm blinding bed under holes for fencing posts | CM | 1 | | | | |
| | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | | | |
| D | 225x225x450 Bases for SHS columns | CM | 5 | | | | |
| | MILD STEEL TO B.S. 449 | | | | | | |
| | Structural steel welded & Bolted joints | | | | | | |
| Е | 100x100x4.0mm SHS column (Length 2000mm spaced at 3 m c/c) | NO | 120 | | | | |
| F | 75x75x4.0mm SHS column (Length 1800mm spaced at 3 m c/c) | NO | 66 | | | | |

| G | 75x75x3.0mm angle section for bracing at | NO | 48 | | |
|----|--|-------|------|--|--|
| 0 | corners and at every 30m span (Length 3600mm) | 110 | | | |
| ** | 50.50.20. G. H.II. G. C. M. | T 3 4 | 2200 | | |
| Н | 50x50 x2.0mm Square Hollow Section with welded connections, as side rails; spaced @150mm c/c | LM | 2200 | | |
| Ι | 50x50 x2.0mm Square Hollow Section with welded connections, as side rails; spaced @300mm c/c | LM | 1400 | | |
| J | Base Bolts 150mm long 12mm dia Rawl bolts. | NO | 450 | | |
| K | Drill 12mm holes for 12mm diameter bolt | NO | 900 | | |
| L | Base Bolts 200m long 12mm dia Rawl bolts. | NO | 710 | | |
| M | Drill 12mm holes for 12mm diameter bolt | NO | 1420 | | |
| | GATES | | | | |
| | Gate 'A' 4 in NO. Size 1200x1500, Gate B 6 in NO size 1500x 1500mm and Gate C 1 in NO size 5000x1500mm complete hinges and locks | | | | |
| N | Excavate for sides columns poles bases | NO | 22 | | |
| 1, | from exsisting ground level and not exceeding 1.50m deep.(225 x 225x500mm deep holes) | 110 | | | |
| | Concrete Work | | | | |
| | Mass concrete 1:4: 8- | | | | |
| О | 50 mm blinding bed under holes for fencing posts | CM | 1 | | |
| P | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | |
| | 225x225x450 Bases for SHS columns | CM | 1 | | |
| | MILD STEEL TO B.S. 449 | | | | |
| | Structural steel welded & Bolted joints | | | | |
| Q | 100x100x4.0mm SHS column (Length 2500mm) | NO | 22 | | |
| R | 75x75x3.0mm SHS | LM | 129 | | |
| S | 50x50x3.0mm SHS | LM | 131 | | |
| | | | | | |

| | 1 | 1 | 1 | 1 | 1 |
|---|---|----|------|---|---|
| T | Heavy duty mild steel hinges welded and fixed to the gates | NO | 15 | | |
| U | Provide for lugs for locking the gates | NO | 10 | | |
| | TOTAL BILL NO. 02 | | | | |
| | BILL NO.03 KIOSKS | | | | |
| | A. <u>SUBSTRUCTURES</u> | | | | |
| | (ALL PROVISIONAL) | | | | |
| A | Excavate oversite to remove vegetable soil average 150mm deep; wheel and deposit on site n.e. 100M away in permanent spoils heaps | SM | 42.3 | | |
| В | Excavate for strip footing not exceeding 1.50m deep. | СМ | 52 | | |
| | <u>Disposal</u> | | | | |
| С | Back filling selected excavated materials around foundation. | CM | 41.3 | | |
| | <u>Hardcore</u> | | | | |
| D | 250mm thick filling: deposit, spread, level and compact: to receive blinding | SM | 42.3 | | |
| Е | 50mm murram blinding to surface of hardcore. | SM | 42.3 | | |
| F | Polythene sheet damp proofing;500gauge | SM | 42.3 | | |
| | Anti-Termite Treatment | | | | |
| G | Chemical anti-termite treatment executed by Rentokil Laboratoties Limited or equal and approved pest control firm under a ten year gurantee, applied to surface of excavation and floor | SM | 42.3 | | |
| | Plain Concrete 1:4:8 mix in: | | | | |
| Н | 50 mm blinding bed under strip footing | CM | 1.1 | | |
| | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | |
| | 150 mm floor slab | SM | 42.3 | | |
| I | Strip Footing | CM | 4.2 | | |
| J | Reinforcement | | | | |
| | High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. 4483 | | | | |
| | Mesh Fabric Reinforcement to B.S.4483 | | | | |
| | - | | | | |
| | 150 mm floor slab Strip Footing Reinforcement High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. 4483 | | | | |

| K | Mesh reinforcement reference A 142 weighing 2.22kg per square metre laid in bed with 300mm side and end laps (Measured net allow for laps) | SM | 42.3 | | |
|---|---|------|-------|--|--|
| | MASONRY | | | | |
| | Medium quarry dressed stone walling in cement and sand (1:3)mortar:20 gauge x 25mm wide hoop iron reinforcement and column-wall ties in every alternate course: | | | | |
| M | 200mm walling in Foundation | SM | 52 | | |
| | SUPERSTRUCTURE | | | | |
| | MASONRY | | | | |
| | Medium quarry dressed stone walling in cement and sand (1:3)mortar:20 gauge x 25mm wide hoop iron reinforcement and column-wall ties in every alternate course: | | | | |
| A | 200mm walling | SM | 93.3 | | |
| | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | |
| В | Rings Beams;300x200 | CM | 2.1 | | |
| | Sawn formwork to | | | | |
| С | sides and soffits of beams | SM | 20.7 | | |
| | Reinforcement | | | | |
| | High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. 4483 | | | | |
| D | Y8mm Bars | KG | 65.65 | | |
| Е | Y12mm Bars | KG | 127.9 | | |
| | Sawn Treated Cypress | | | | |
| F | 100mmx50mm Braces, ties, strut, and posts | L.M. | 36 | | |
| G | 75mmx50mm Braces, ties, strut, and posts | L.M. | 49.6 | | |
| Н | 100 x 50mm wall plate | L.M | 37.2 | | |
| | Wrought Treated Cypress | | | | |
| Ι | 225mm x38mm Fascia or barge board | L.M | 20.5 | | |
| | Roof Covering 28 Gauge Corrugated 'Resincot' Iron Sheeting and Accessories as Manufactured by Gal sheet K Ltd or equal and approved | | | | |
| J | Roofing Covering with 1½ Corrugation side laps nailed to timber Purlins with galvanized roofing nails with rubber washers (Measured out and allow for laps) | S.M | 49.6 | | |

| | MILD STEEL TO B.S. 449 | | | | |
|---|---|----|------|--|--|
| | Structural steel welded & Bolted joints | | | | |
| K | 114.0mm Diameter tube column 3mm thick (Length3150mm) | NO | 6 | | |
| | <u>FINISHES</u> | | | | |
| | GALVANISED STEEL CASEMENT | | | | |
| | DOORS | | | | |
| | Standard door complete with hinges, stays, fasteners, permanent vent with mosquito gauze and sheet metal hood ect assembled and fixed to surround including cutting and pinning lugs to concrete or blockwork surround and bedding frame in cement and sand mortar (1:4), steel casement door comprising 40x25x3mm stiles, bottom ⊤ rail, &4No intermediate rails all primed with red oxide | | | | |
| A | 900x2100mm door complete 50x50x3mm fixed angles frame;2.5mm thick checkered plate built into panels,"union"3-lever steel doorlocks,3x200mm lockable tower bolts. WINDOWS | NO | 5 | | |
| | Standard door complete with | | | | |
| | hinges,stays,fasteners,permanent vent with mosquito gauze and sheet metalhood ect assembled and fixed to surround including cutting and pinning lugs to concrete or blockwork surround and bedding frame in cement and sand mortar(1:4),steel casement door comprising 40x25x3mm stiles,bottom ⊤ rail,&4No intermediate rails all primed with red oxide | | | | |
| В | 1500x1200mm with two sides hanglights; one fixed bottom light and one fixed lights | NO | 5 | | |
| | CEILING FINISHES | | | | |
| | 25mm thick T&G | | | | |
| С | 25mm wrot thick T&G cypress boarding prime grade | SM | 49.6 | | |
| | Prepare and apply one undercoat &two finishing coats first grade varnishes and finishes to wood surfaces: | | | | |
| | | | | | |

| | WALLINGS FINISHES | | | | |
|---|---|----|------|--|--|
| | 15mm lime plaster:steel trowelled | | | | |
| | finish:on blockwork:to | | | | |
| Е | Walls(internals) | SM | 93.3 | | |
| | Prepare and apply three coats approved emulsion paint to: | | | | |
| | - | | | | |
| F | Walls(internal walls) | SM | 93.3 | | |
| G | Extra over walling for medium chisel dressing | SM | 93.3 | | |
| | FLOOR FINISHES | | | | |
| | TERRAZO PAVING | | | | |
| Н | 38mm thick(24mm c+s backing & 15mm thick terrazo layer) | SM | 42.3 | | |
| | TOTAL FOR BILL NO. O3 | | | | |
| | BILL NO.04 TOILETS | | | | |
| | SUB STRUCTURE | | | | |
| | (ALL PROVISIONAL) | | | | |
| | Excavation, including maintaining and supporting sides and keeping bottoms free from water and mud or other fallen material | | | | |
| A | Excavate oversite to remove vegetable soil average 150mm deep; wheel and deposit on site n.e. 100M away in permanent spoils heaps | SM | 35 | | |
| В | Excavate for strip footing not exceeding 1.50m deep. | CM | 50 | | |
| | | | | | |
| | PIT LATRINE | | | | |
| С | Excavate for pit latrine not exceeding 1.50m deep. | CM | 21 | | |
| D | Ditto 1.50m-3.0m deep | CM | 21 | | |
| Е | Ditto 3.0m-4.5m deep | CM | 21 | | |
| F | Extra over excavation for excavating in rock Class 1; not exceeding 1.5 m | CM | 21 | | |
| | <u>Disposal</u> | | 1 | | |
| G | Back filling selected excavated materials around foundation. | СМ | 20 | | |
| | <u>Hardcore</u> | | 1 | | |
| Н | 250mm thick filling: deposit, spread, level and compact: to receive blinding | SM | 21 | | |

| I | 50mm murram blinding to surface of hardcore. | SM | 21 | | |
|---|---|----|------|---|---|
| J | Polythene sheet damp proofing;500gauge | SM | 34.7 | | |
| | Anti-Termite Treatment | | | | |
| K | Chemical anti-termite treatment executed by Rentokil Laboratoties Limited or equal and approved pest control firm under a ten year gurantee, applied to surface of excavation and floor | SM | 21 | | |
| | Plain Concrete 1:4:8 mix in: | | | | |
| M | 50 mm blinding bed under strip footing | CM | 1 | | |
| | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | |
| N | 150 mm floor slab | SM | 35 | | |
| О | Strip Footing | CM | 6 | | |
| P | Ground floor beams: | CM | 1 | | |
| | Reinforcement | | | | |
| | High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. 4483 | | | | |
| Q | Y8mm Bars | KG | 327 | | |
| R | Y12mm Bars | KG | 40 | | |
| | Sawn formwork to | | | | |
| S | sides and soffits of beams | SM | 7 | | |
| T | Horizontal soffits of suspended slab | SM | 14 | | |
| | Medium quarry dressed stone walling in cement and sand (1:3)mortar:20 gauge x 25mm wide hoop iron reinforcement and column-wall ties in every alternate course: | | | | |
| U | 200mm walling in Foundation | SM | 49 | | |
| V | 200 mm walling | SM | 47 | | |
| W | 150mm walling | SM | 11 | | |
| X | 100mm walling | SM | 19 | | |
| | ROOFING AND RAINWATER DISPOSAL | | | | |
| | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | |
| | Rings Beams;300x200 | CM | 1 | | |
| | Sawn formwork to | | | | |
| | sides and soffits of beams | SM | 4 | | |
| | | 1 | | 1 | 1 |

| | Reinforcement | | | |
|----|---|------|----|--|
| | High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. | | | |
| | 4483 | | | |
| | Y8mm Bars | KG | 25 | |
| | Y12mm Bars | KG | 43 | |
| | Sawn Treated Cypress | | | |
| A. | 75mmx50mm Braces, ties, strut, and posts | L.M. | 48 | |
| B. | 100 x 50mm wall plate | L.M | 20 | |
| | Wrought Treated Cypress | | | |
| C. | 225mm x38mm Fascia or barge board | L.M | 24 | |
| | Roof Covering 28 Gauge Corrugated 'Resincot' Iron Sheeting and Accessories as Manufactured by Gal sheet K Ltd or equal and approved | | | |
| D | Roofing Covering with 1½ Corrugation side laps nailed to timber Purlins with galvanized roofing nails with rubber washers (Measured out and allow for laps) | S.M | 30 | |
| Е | <u>VENT PIPES</u> | | | |
| | 110 mm Diameter Upvc Pipes | L.M | 18 | |
| | <u>FINISHES</u> | | | |
| | DOOR | | | |
| Α. | Single door; 50 mm thick; 1000 x 2100 mm high inclusive of door frame made of 100x50mm hard wood timber | NO | 5 | |
| | FLOOR | | | |
| | Cement and sand (1:4) paving: steel trowelled: on concrete | | | |
| В | .40mm thick floors to receive tiles | SM | 35 | |
| C. | 12mm thick white hexagonal tiless sizes 210x210x26 units/SM | SM | 35 | |
| | WALL | | | |
| | 12mm lime plaster:steel trowelled finish:on blockwork:to | | | |
| D. | Walls(internals) | SM | 37 | |
| | Prepare and apply three coats approved emulsion paint to: | | | |
| Е | Plastered walls | SM | 37 | |
| | Extra over walling for medium chisel dressing | SM | 37 | |
| | Aluminum strip borders | | + | |
| | 1 | | 1 | |

| F | 200mm Stainless steel edging bent to shape for urinal groove | LM | 3 | | |
|---|---|----|------|--|--|
| | TOTAL FOR BILL NO 04 | | | | |
| | BILL NO.05: OFFICES | | | | |
| | SUBSTRUCTURE | | | | |
| | (ALL PROVISIONAL) | | | | |
| A | Excavate oversite to remove vegetable soil average 150mm deep; wheel and deposit on site n.e. 100M away in permanent spoils heaps | SM | 84 | | |
| В | Excavate for strip footing not exceeding 1.50m deep. | CM | 43.5 | | |
| | <u>Disposal</u> | | | | |
| С | Back filling selected excavated materials around foundation. | CM | 25.1 | | |
| | <u>Hardcore</u> | | | | |
| D | 250mm thick filling: deposit, spread, level and compact: to receive blinding | SM | 62.8 | | |
| Е | 50mm murram blinding to surface of hardcore. | SM | 62.8 | | |
| | Anti-Termite Treatment | | | | |
| F | Chemical anti-termite treatment executed by Rentokil Laboratoties Limited or equal and approved pest control firm under a ten year gurantee, applied to surface of excavation and floor | SM | 62.8 | | |
| | Damp-Proof Membrane | | | | |
| | 500mm Gauge polythene damp-proof membrane laid on blinded hardcore with 100mm folded side and end laps (measured net-allow for laps) | SM | 62.8 | | |
| | Plain Concrete 1:4:8 mix in: | | | | |
| G | 50 mm blinding bed under strip footing | CM | 1.5 | | |
| | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | |
| Н | 150 mm floor slab | SM | 62.8 | | |
| I | 300 mm thick Strip Footing | CM | 6 | | |
| | 600 x 150mm thick pa vement round the perimeter walling | SM | 19.5 | | |
| | Reinforcement | | | | |

| | High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. 4483 | | | | |
|---|--|-----|------|--|--|
| | Y10 | KG | 89.5 | | |
| | Y8 | KG | 67.8 | | |
| | Mesh Fabric Reinforcement to B.S.4483 | | | | |
| J | Mesh reinforcement reference A 142 weighing 2.22kg per square metre laid in bed with 300mm side and end laps (Measured net allow for laps) | SM | 62.8 | | |
| | MASONRY | | | | |
| | Medium quarry dressed stone walling in cement and sand (1:3)mortar:20 gauge x 25mm wide hoop iron reinforcement and column-wall ties in every alternate course: to | | | | |
| K | 200mm walling in Foundation | SM | 63 | | |
| | Hessian Based Bituminous Felt Damp- Proof course to B.S.743 type 4A and setting in cement and sand mortar | | | | |
| | under 200mm walls | L.M | 48.5 | | |
| | CONCRETE WORK AND WALLING | | | | |
| | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | |
| В | Rings Beams;300x200 | CM | 3 | | |
| | Sawn formwork to | | | | |
| | sides and soffits of beams | SM | 29 | | |
| | Reinforcement | | | | |
| | High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. 4483 | | | | |
| С | Y8mm Bars | KG | 92 | | |
| D | Y12mm Bars | KG | 172 | | |
| | Walling | | | | |
| | Medium quarry dressed stone walling in cement and sand (1:3)mortar:20 gauge x 25mm wide hoop iron reinforcement and column-wall ties in every alternate course: to | | | | |
| | 200mm walling | SM | 135 | | |
| | Fair raking cutting 200mm walls | L.M | 43 | | |
| G | 200X200mm High cement and sand (1:4) mortarin eaves filling | L.M | 43 | | |

| | | | T | 1 | 1 |
|------|--|-------|-----|---|---|
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | ROOFING AND RAINWATER | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | DISPOSAL | | | | |
| | concrete and walling sundries | | | | |
| Λ. | | NO. | 22 | | |
| A | Mortice in concrete 100mm deep for 12mm diameter bolt and grout in cement and sand | NO. | 22 | | |
| | (1:4) mortar | | | | |
| В | Cut or leave hole through wall for end of 100x50mm timber | NO. | 4 | | |
| | The following in 8No. Roof Trusses | | | | |
| | Spanning 6 metres and hoisting and | | | | |
| | building 3.0 metres above ground | | | | |
| | Sawn Treated Cypress | | | + | |
| С | 100mmx50mm Braces, ties, strut, and posts | L.M. | 126 | | |
| D | | L.M. | 65 | | |
| E | 75mmx50mm Purlins 100 x 50mm wall plate | L.M | 20 | | |
| L | Galvanized Mild steel | L.IVI | 20 | | |
| | | | | | |
| F | 12 mm Diameter bolt 150mm long with head nut and two washers | NO. | 22 | | |
| G | 12 mm Diameter bolt 250mm long with | NO. | 112 | | |
| O | head nut and two washers | 110. | 112 | | |
| Н | 63mm Diameter double sided toothed | NO. | 20 | | |
| • | timber connector to B.S. 1579 | NO | | | |
| I | Bore 50mm timber for 12mm diameter bolt | NO. | 52 | | |
| J | Bore 100mm timber for 12mm diameter bolt | NO. | 60 | | |
| K | 12mm Diameter holding down bolt 150mm | NO. | 22 | | |
| | long with head nut and washer cast in | | | | |
| | concrete. | | | | |
| | Wrought Treated Cypress | | | | |
| M | 225mm x38mm Fascia or barge board | L.M | 40 | | |
| | | | | | |
| | Roofing | | | | |
| | Roof Covering 28 Gauge Corrugated | | | | |
| | 'Resincot' Iron Sheeting and Accessories | | | | |
| | as Manufactured by Gal sheet K Ltd or | | | | |
|), T | equal and approved | 634 | 0.4 | | |
| N | Roofing Covering with 1 ½ Corrugation side laps nailed to timber Purlins with | S.M | 84 | | |
| | galvanized roofing nails with rubber | | | | |
| | washers (Measured out and allow for laps) | | | | |
| О | Ridge caps | L.M | 11 | | |
| P | Plastic gutters;180mm diameter half round | L.M | 22 | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | - | | | |
| | | | | | |

| Q | Plastic gutters; support brackets spaced at 500mm c/c | NO. | 46 | | |
|---|--|------|-----|--|--|
| R | Plastic downpipes;75mm diameter | L.M | 6 | | |
| | <u>FINISHINGS</u> | | | | |
| | Cement and Sand (1:4) Screed and Paving | | | | |
| | 30mmscreeding and Paving Finished with a steel trowel | S.M | 75 | | |
| | 20mm skirting 150mm high with rounded top edge and cove to junction with paving | L.M. | 60 | | |
| | 12mm Two Coats Lime Plaster with stel Trowel Finished to: | | | | |
| | Stone Work | SM | 180 | | |
| | Ceiling | | | | |
| | 50x50mm sawn cypress brandering | LM | 138 | | |
| | Celotex'or equal and approved termite proffed fibreboard. | | | | |
| | 12mm ceiling lining with V' joints to panels fixed to brandering | SM | 54 | | |
| | 100mm x12mm wrought cypress cornice with 1 labour plugged | LM | 60 | | |
| | Extra over ceiling lining for forming removable trap door size 600x600mm with 100x38mm treated sawn cypress triming foists between beams 120x25mm wrought cypress frame all round and 12 mm panel set loose on top of framing. | NO. | 1 | | |
| | DOORS | 110. | | | |
| | Wrought Hardwood Timber | | | | |
| | 50mm framed battened door size 900x2100mm high constructe of 150mm grooved framed all round filled in with tongued and grooved 'V' jointed vertical boarding in 100mm widths | NO. | 3 | | |
| | 30 X20mm architrave | LM | 17 | | |
| | 100x50mm frame with one labour, plugged | LM. | 17 | | |
| | Ironmongery | | | | |
| | Supply and fix the following ironmongery with matching screws | | | | |

| | 1 | | | | |
|----|---|-----|-----|--|--|
| | 100mm steel butt hinges | NO. | 9 | | |
| | Two lever mortice lock and pairs of chromium plated lever handle furniture. | NO. | 3 | | |
| | Aluminium hat and coat hook | NO. | 3 | | |
| | WINDOWS | | | | |
| | <u>Sundries</u> | | | | |
| A | 12 mm Quary tile cill 100mm wide bedded and jointed in cement and sand (1:4) mortar including pointing in coloured cement mortar. | L.M | 12 | | |
| В | 100x20mm wrought hardwood board plugged | LM | 10 | | |
| | Purpose made metal casement windows with heavy duty sections to comply with B.S. 990 factory primed with red oxide primer complete with lugs and fitted and bedding and pointing frame in non-sitting mastic. | | | | |
| D | window size 1500x1200mm high with two paning lights and one fixed light divided in 12 NO. equalpanes. | NO | 6 | | |
| Е | 12mm Mild Steel burglar bars cut to length and welded to window frame including grinnding welds smooth (in NO. 42) | LM | 144 | | |
| | 5mm Clear sheet glass and glazing to metal with putty in: | | | | |
| | Panes over 0.10 but not exceeding 0.50 square meteres | SM | 11 | | |
| | PAINTING AND DECORATING | | | | |
| | Prepare and apply three coats plastic emulsion paint to: | | | | |
| | <u>Internally</u> | | | | |
| A. | Plastered walls | SM | 155 | | |
| B. | Celotex ceiling | SM | 54 | | |
| | Prepare and apply two under coats and one hard gloss finishining coat on metal work | | | | |
| С | General surface of glazed windows (both sides measured flat overall) | SM | 11 | | |
| | surfaces of small bars | LM | 144 | | |
| | surfaces over 100mm but not exceeding 200mm girth | LM | 30 | | |

| | Prepare and prime woodwork | | | | |
|----|--|-----|----|--|---|
| | Backs of frames, etc not exceeding 100mm girth | LM | 34 | | |
| | Prepare prime and apply three coats hard gloss oil paint to wood work | | | | |
| | General surfaces | S.M | 12 | | |
| | Surfaces not exceeding 100mm girth | LM | 30 | | |
| | Surfaces over 100mm but not exceeding 200mm girth | LM | 48 | | |
| | Surfaces over 200mm but exceeding 300mm girth. | LM | 39 | | |
| | ROOF WATER HARVESTING | | | | |
| A. | Supply and installed one (1) 5,000 litres plastic water container as manufactured by KENTANK (K) LTD or equally approved by the P.M on masonary constructed stand 500 mm above the ground level as directed by the P.M | NO. | 1 | | |
| В | Construct a 3000mmx6000mmx3200mm shed with 75mm x3mm steel columns roofed with timber trusses and covered with 28 Gauge Roof Covering Corrugated 'Resincot' Iron Sheeting and Accessories | NO. | 1 | | |
| | TOTAL FOR BILLNO. 5 | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | BILL NO.06: RAMP | | | | |
| | SUBSTRUCTURES | | | | |
| A | (ALL PROVISIONAL) Excavate oversite to remove vegetable soil average 150mm deep; wheel and deposit on site n.e. 100M away in permanent spoils heaps | SM | 48 | | |
| В | Excavate for strip footing not exceeding 1.50m deep. | СМ | 30 | | |
| | <u>Disposal</u> | | | | |
| С | Back filling selected excavated materials around foundation. | СМ | 13 | | |
| D | Approve filling of selected red soil consolidated in layers of 150mm to achieve slope levels. | CM | 17 | | |
| | | | | | _ |
| | <u>Hardcore</u> | | | | |

| Е | 250mm thick filling: deposit, spread, level and compact: to receive blinding | SM | 17 | | |
|---|---|----|-----|--|--|
| F | 50mm murram blinding to surface of hardcore. | SM | 27 | | |
| G | Polythene sheet damp proofing;500gauge | SM | 27 | | |
| | Anti-Termite Treatment | | | | |
| Н | Chemical anti-termite treatment executed by Rentokil Laboratoties Limited or equal and approved pest control firm under a ten year gurantee, applied to surface of excavation and floor | SM | 0 | | |
| | Plain Concrete 1:4:8 mix in: | | | | |
| | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | |
| I | 150 mm floor slab | SM | 30 | | |
| J | Strip Footing | CM | 4 | | |
| | Reinforcement | | | | |
| | High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. 4483 | | | | |
| | Mesh Fabric Reinforcement to B.S.4483 | | | | |
| K | 2 Layers of Mesh reinforcement reference A 142 weighing 2.22kg per square metre laid in bed with 300mm side and end laps (Measured net allow for laps) | SM | 60 | | |
| | MASONRY | | | | |
| | Medium quarry dressed stone walling in cement and sand (1:3)mortar:20 gauge x 25mm wide hoop iron reinforcement and column-wall ties in every alternate course: to | | | | |
| L | 200mm walling in Foundation | SM | 51 | | |
| | - | | | | |
| | MILD STEEL TO B.S. 449 | | | | |
| | Structural steel welded & Bolted joints | | | | |
| | 75x75x3.0mm SHS column (Length 1700mm) spaced at 2000mm | NO | 30 | | |
| | 50x50x3.0mm SHS spaced at 150mm (runners) | LM | 418 | | |
| | Reinforcement | | | | |
| | High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. 4483 | | | | |

| | Y10 | KG | 161 | | |
|---|--|----|-----|--|--|
| | | KG | 101 | | |
| | TOTAL FOR BILL NO:6 BILL NO.07 RAISED | | | | |
| | PLAFORMS1.Nos | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | SUBSTRUCTURES | | | | |
| | (ALL PROVISIONAL) | | | | |
| A | Excavate for columns footing not exceeding 1.50m deep. | CM | 0.6 | | |
| | Plain Concrete 1:4:8 mix in: | | | | |
| С | 50 mm blinding bed under columns footing | CM | 1 | | |
| | Reinforced Concrete 1:2:4- 20mm gauge mix in | | | | |
| D | Columns bases | CM | 1 | | |
| | Reinforcement | | | | |
| | High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to B.S. 4483 | | | | |
| | Y10 | KG | 50 | | |
| | <u>SUPERSTRUCTURES</u> | | | | |
| | MILD STEEL TO B.S. 449 | | | | |
| | Structural steel welded & Bolted joints | | | | |
| | Columns /staircases bases plate | | | | |
| Е | 200x200x4.0mm | SM | 0.4 | | |
| F | 200x150x4.0mm | SM | 0.1 | | |
| G | Base Bolts 200m long 12mm dia Rawl bolts. | NO | 32 | | |
| | | | | | |
| | <u>Staircase</u> | | | | |
| Н | 100x50x4.0mmRHS stringer beam | NO | 2 | | |
| I | 100x100x3mm angle plates | NO | 14 | | |
| J | 150x50mm Hardwood steps | LM | 14 | | |
| | COLUMNS | | | | |
| K | 100x100x4.0mm SHS | NO | 6 | | |
| | PLATFORM FLOOR | | | | |
| | _ | | | | |
| M | 100x50x4.0mmRHS bearers beam | LM | 6 | | |
| | | | | | |

| N | 75x75x4.0mm SHS bearers beams | LM | 14 | | |
|-----------|---|-------------|------|--|--|
| 0 | 4mm chequered plate | SM | 6 | | |
| | SIDE RAILS | | | | |
| Q | 50x50x2.0mm SHS | LM | 38 | | |
| | ROOF | | | | |
| R | 75x75x4.0mm SHS wall plate bearers beams | LM | 6 | | |
| | 50x50x3.0mm SHS Rafters | LM | 10.8 | | |
| | 50x50x2.0mm SHS Purlins | LM | 18 | | |
| | Roof Covering 28 Gauge Corrugated 'Resincot' Iron Sheeting and Accessories as Manufactured by Gal sheet K Ltd or equal and approved | | | | |
| S | Roofing Covering with 1½ Corrugation side laps nailed to timber Purlins with galvanized roofing nails with rubber washers (Measured out and allow for laps) | S.M | 24 | | |
| | TOTAL BILL 07 | | | | |
| | BILL NO. 08 | | | | |
| | : PROVISIONAL SUMS | | | | |
| | The tender shall include in his/her tender the following Provisional Sums to be expended in whole or part thereof at the discretion and on instructions of the Project Manager. | | | | |
| A. | Allow a Provisional sum of Kenya Shillings five hundred thousand (Kshs 700,000/=) for Project Supervision and Administrative expenses. | LUM PSUM | | | |
| В. | Allow a provisional sum of Kenya shillings five hundred thousand for any necessary access roads for the purpose of gaining access to the site as directed the PM | LUM PSUM | | | |
| C. | Allow for attendance | % | 1 | | |
| | TOTAL FOR BILL NO.8 | | | | |

Schedule of Adjustment Data

Table A - Local Currency

| Index Code | Index Description | Source of Index | Base Value and Date | Bidder's Local Currency Amount | Bidder's Proposed Weighting |
|---------------|----------------------|--------------------|---------------------|--------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| | Nonadjustable | _ | | | A: B: C: D: E: |
| | | | Total | | 1.00 |

| Table B - Foreign Cu | ırrency |
|----------------------|---------|
| Name of Currency: | |

If the Bidder wishes to quote in more than one foreign currency, this table should be repeated for each foreign currency.

| Index Code | Index Description | Source of Index | Base Value and Date | Bidder's Currency in Type/Amount | Equivalent in FC1 | Bidder's Proposed Weighting |
|---------------|----------------------|-----------------|---------------------|--|-------------------|-----------------------------------|
| | Nonadjustable | | | _ | | A: B: C: D: E: |
| | • | • | • | Total | | 1.00 |

Summary of Payment Currencies

Table: Alternative A

| I OI ********************************** | For | insert | name | of | Section | of | the | W | or | k۶ |
|--|-----|--------|------|----|---------|----|-----|---|----|----|
|--|-----|--------|------|----|---------|----|-----|---|----|----|

Separate tables may be required if the various sections of the Works (or of the Bill of Quantities) will have substantially different foreign and local currency requirements. The Employer should insert the names of each Section of the Works.

| | A | В | C | D |
|--|-----------------------|---|---|---|
| Name of Payment Currency | Amount of Currency | Rate of Exchange to Local Currency | Local Currency Equivalent C = A x B | Percentage of Net Bid Price (NBP) 100xC NBP |
| Local currency | | 1.00 | | |
| Foreign Currency #1 | | | | |
| Foreign Currency #2 | | | | |
| Foreign Currency #3 | | | | |
| Net Bid Price | | | | 100.00 |
| Provisional Sums Expressed in Local Currency | | 1.00 | | |
| BID PRICE | | | | |

Table: Alternative B

| To be used only with Alternative | e B Prices | directly | quoted in | the cu | irrencies (| of payment. |
|----------------------------------|------------|----------|-----------|--------|-------------|-------------|
| (Clause ITB 15.1) | | | | | | |

Summary of currencies of the bid for ______ [insert name of Section of the Works]

| Name of currency | Amounts payable | | | | |
|----------------------|-----------------|--|--|--|--|
| Local currency: | | | | | |
| Foreign currency #1: | | | | | |
| Foreign currency #2: | | | | | |
| Foreign currency #3: | | | | | |

Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)

| [Bank's Name, and Address of Issuing Branch or Office] | | | |
|--|---|----|--|
| Beneficiary: [Name and Address of Employer] | | | |
| Date: | | | |
| BID GUAR | RANTEE No.: | | |
| called "the Bid") for the | een informed that [name of the Bidder] (hereinafter Bidder") has submitted to you its bid dated (hereinafter called "the execution of [name of contract] under Invitation for Bids No ("the IFB"). | ne | |
| Furthermore guarantee. | e, we understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a bar | id | |
| undertake t [amount in in writing | lest of the Employer, we [name of Bank] hereby irrevocable to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of figures] () [amount in words] upon receipt by us of your first demand accompanied by a written statement stating that the Bidder is in breach of its) under the bid conditions, because the Bidder: | nd | |
| (a) | has withdrawn its Bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Form of Bid; or | | |
| (b) | having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Employer during the period of bid validity, (i) fails or refuses to execute the Contract Form, if required, or (ii) fails or refuses to furnish the performance security, in accordance with ITB 38. | | |

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Bidder is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the contract signed by the Bidder and the performance security issued to you upon the instruction of the Bidder; and (b) if the Bidder is not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy your notification to the Bidder of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of the Bidder's bid.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office on or before that date.

| This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458. |
|--|
| |
| |
| [signature(s)] |

Form of Bid Security (Bid Bond)

| BOND NO | · | |
|---|---|---|
| legal title, a Employer], Employer] : [amount in | and address of surety], authorize as Surety (hereinafter called "the as Obligee (hereinafter called "the words], for the payment of which do Surety, bind ourselves, our such | ipal (hereinafter called "the Principal"), and [name, ed to transact business in [name of country of e Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto [name of ne Employer") in the sum of [amount of Bond] ¹⁵ h sum, well and truly to be made, we, the said ccessors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by |
| | - | ritten Bid to the Employer dated the day of e of Contract] (hereinafter called the "Bid"). |
| NOW, THE | EREFORE, THE CONDITION (| OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if the Principal: |
| (a) | withdraws its Bid during the po | eriod of bid validity specified in the Form of Bid; or |
| (b) | of Bid validity; (i) fails or refu | reptance of its Bid by the Employer during the period ses to execute the Contract Form, if required; or (ii) reformance Security in accordance with the |
| receipt of the demand, pro | ne Employer's first written dema ovided that in its demand the Em | pay to the Employer up to the above amount upon and, without the Employer having to substantiate its apployer shall state that the demand arises from the ifying which event(s) has occurred. |
| including the Invitation to | ne date 28 days after the date of e | will remain in full force and effect up to and expiration of the Bid validity as stated in the ver at any time prior to this date, notice of which wed. |
| | IONY WHEREOF, the Principal their respective names this | and the Surety have caused these presents to be day of 20 |
| Principal: _ | | Surety: Corporate Seal (where appropriate) |
| | | |

The amount of the Bond shall be denominated in the currency of the Employer's country or the equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency.

| Section IV. Bidding Forms | | |
|---------------------------|--------------------------|--|
| | | |
| (Signature) | (Signature) | |
| (Printed name and title) | (Printed name and title) | |

Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year)]

Bid No.: [insert number of bidding process]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [insert complete name of Employer]

We, the undersigned, declare that:

We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for bidding in any contract with the Borrower for the period of time of [Employer to insert number of months or years] starting on [insert date], if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because we:

- (a) have withdrawn our Bid during the period of bid validity specified in the Letter of Bid; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Employer during the period of bid validity, (i) fail or refuse to execute the Contract, if required, or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with **ITB** 38.

We understand this Bid-Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our Bid.

Signed: [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown] In the capacity of [insert legal capacity of person signing the Bid-Securing Declaration]

| Name: [insert complete: | name of person signing the Bid-Secu | ring Declaration] |
|-------------------------|--|--------------------------|
| Duly authorized to sign | the bid for and on behalf of: [insert co | omplete name of Bidder] |
| Dated on | _ day of,, | [insert date of signing] |
| Corporate Seal (where a | ppropriate) | |

[Note: In case of a Joint Venture, the Bid-Securing Declaration must be in the name of all partners to the Joint Venture that submits the bid.]

Technical Proposal

| Technical Proposal Forms |
|--------------------------|
| Site Organization |
| Method Statement |
| Mobilization Schedule |
| Construction Schedule |
| Contractor's Equipment |
| Personnel |
| Others |
| |

Site Organization

Method Statement

Mobilization Schedule

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

Contractor's Equipment

Form EQU

The Bidder shall provide adequate information to demonstrate clearly that it has the capability to meet the requirements for the key equipment listed in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. A separate Form shall be prepared for each item of equipment listed, or for alternative equipment proposed by the Bidder. The Bidder shall provide all the information requested below, to the extent possible. Fields with asterisk (*) shall be used for evaluation.

| Type of Equip | oment* | | | |
|-----------------------|---|--------------------|------------|------------|
| Equipment Information | Name of manufacturer | Model and power ra | ating | |
| | Capacity* | Year of manufactur | e * | |
| Current Status | Current location | | | |
| | Details of current commitments | | | |
| Source | Indicate source of the equipment | | | |
| | Error! Reference source not found. | Owned Error! | Reference | source not |
| | found. Rented Error! Reference source no source not found. Specially manufactured | | Error! | Reference |

The following information shall be provided only for equipment not owned by the Bidder.

| Owner | Name of owner | | | |
|------------|--|------------------------|--|--|
| | Address of owner | | | |
| | Telephone | Contact name and title | | |
| | Fax | Telex | | |
| Agreements | Details of rental / lease / manufacture agreements specific to the project | | | |
| | | | | |

Proposed Personnel

Form PER - 1

Bidders should provide the names of suitably qualified personnel to meet the specified requirements for each of the positions listed in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The data on their experience should be supplied using the Form below for each candidate.

| 1. | Title of position |
|------|-------------------|
| | Name |
| 2. | Title of position |
| | Name |
| 3. | Title of position |
| | Name |
| 4. | Title of position |
| | Name |
| 5. | Title of position |
| | Name |
| 6. | Title of position |
| | Name |
| etc. | Title of position |
| | Name |

Resume of Proposed Personnel

Form PER - 2

The Bidder shall provide all the information requested below. Fields with asterix (*) shall be used for evaluation.

| Position* | | | | | |
|-----------------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Personnel information | Name * | Date of birth | | | |
| | Professional qualifications | | | | |
| Present employment | Name of Employer | | | | |
| | Address of Employer | | | | |
| | Telephone | Contact (manager / personnel officer) | | | |
| | Fax | E-mail | | | |
| | Job title | Years with present Employer | | | |

Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and managerial experience relevant to the project.

| From* | To* | Company, Project, Position, and Relevant Technical and Management Experience* |
|-------|-----|---|
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |

Others

Bidder's Qualification

To establish its qualifications to perform the contract in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, the Bidder shall provide the information requested in the corresponding Information Sheets included hereunder.

Bidder Information Sheet

| | | | 311000 | | |
|--------------------------------------|---|-------------------|----------------|----------------|----|
| | For | rm ELI - 1.1 | | | |
| | | | Date: | | |
| | | | Bidding N | o.: | |
| | | | | for Bid No.: _ | |
| | | | | of | |
| 1. Bidder's Legal Na | me | | | | |
| 2. In case of Joint Ve | nture, Consortium or A | ssociation (JVCA | A), legal name | of each party: | |
| 3. Bidder's actual or | intended Country of Ro | egistration: | | | |
| 4. Bidder's Year of R | egistration: | | | | |
| 5. Bidder's Legal Ad | dress in Country of Reg | gistration: | | | |
| 6. Bidder's Authorize | ed Representative Infor | mation | | | |
| Name: | | | | | |
| Address: | | | | | |
| Telephone/Fax numb | pers: | | | | |
| Email Address: | | | | | |
| 7. Attached are copi | es of original documer | nts of: | | | |
| Articles of Incor ITB Clauses 4.1 | poration or Registration and 4.2. | n of firm named i | n 1, above, in | accordance wit | :h |
| | letter of intent to form ordance with ITB Clau | | a draft agree | ment, or JVCA | |
| _ | ment owned entity from all autonomy and completed Clause 4.5. | | - | | _ |

Party to JVCA Information Sheet

Form ELI - 1.2

| | Date: | | |
|-------------|--|--------------|-------|
| | Bidding No.: | | |
| | Invitation for | | |
| | Page | of | _ pag |
| | | | |
| 1. E | 1. Bidder's Legal Name: | | |
| | | | |
| 2. J | 2. JVCA's Party legal name: | | |
| 3. J | 3. JVCA's Party Country of Registration: | | |
| | | | |
| 4. J | 4. JVCA's Party Year of Registration: | | |
| | | | |
| 5. J | 5. JVCA's Party Legal Address in Country of Registration: | | |
| | | | |
| 6. J | 6. JVCA's Party Authorized Representative Information | | |
| Naı | Name: | | |
| Ad | Address: | | |
| Tele | Telephone/Fax numbers: | | |
| Em | Email Address: | | |
| | | | |
| 7. <i>A</i> | 7. Attached are copies of original documents of: | | |
| | ☐ Articles of Incorporation or Registration of firm named in 1, above, in acc ITB Clauses 4.1 and 4.2. | cordance wit | th |
| | ☐ In case of government owned entity from the Purchaser's country, docume stablishing legal and financial autonomy and compliance with the principle commercial law, in accordance with ITB Clause 4.5. | | |

Historical Contract Non-Performance

| | | Form CON - 2 | |
|-----------|--|---|---|
| Bidder's | Legal Name: _ | Date: | |
| JVCA Pa | ırtner Legal Na | me: | |
| | | Bidding No.: _ | |
| | | Page | of pages |
| Non | -Performing Co | entracts in accordance with (Evaluation and Qualifica | tion Criteria) |
| | - | mance did not occur during the stipulated period, in action III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. | ecordance with |
| | = | mance during the stipulated period, in accordance wit luation and Qualification Criteria. | h Sub-Factor |
| Year | Outcome as Percent of Total Assets | Contract Identification | TotalContract Amount (current value, US\$ equivalent) |
| | | Contract Identification: Name of Employer: Address of Employer: Matter in dispute: | |
| Pendi | ng Litigation, ir | accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualifi | cation Criteria |
| Qualifica | tion Criteria. | in accordance with Sub-Factor 2.2.3 of Section III, I | |
| | - | a, as indicated below | aution und |
| Year | Outcome as Percent of Total Assets | Contract Identification | TotalContract Amount (current value, US\$ equivalent) |
| | | Contract Identification: Name of Employer: Address of Employer: Matter in dispute: | |
| | | Contract Identification: Name of Employer: Address of Employer: Matter in dispute: | |

Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress

Form CCC

Bidders and each partner to a JVCA should provide information on their current commitments on all contracts that have been awarded, or for which a letter of intent or acceptance has been received, or for contracts approaching completion, but for which an unqualified, full completion certificate has yet to be issued.

| Name of contract | Employer, contact address/tel/fax | Value of outstanding work (current US\$ equivalent) | Estimated completion date | Average monthly invoicing over last six months (US\$/month) |
|------------------|---|---|---------------------------|---|
| 1. | | , | | , |
| 2. | | | | |
| 3. | | | | |
| 4. | | | | |
| 5. | | | | |
| etc. | | | | |

Financial Situation

$Form\,FIN-3.1$

| | | Histor | rical Fina | ncial Perfo | rmance | | |
|------------------------------------|-----------|-------------|------------|-------------|-----------|------|---------------|
| Bidder's Legal N | Jame: | | | | Date: | | |
| JVCA Partner L | egal Name | »: | | B | idding No | .: | |
| Bidder's Legal N JVCA Partner L | | | | | Page | 0 | of page |
| To be completed | | | | | | | |
| Financial | Historic | informatio | n for prev | ious | () years | | |
| information in US\$ equivalent | | uivalent in | | | | | |
| | Year 1 | Year 2 | Year 3 | Year | Year n | Avg. | Avg. Ratio |
| Information fro | m Balance | Sheet | 1 | - | | - | |
| Total Assets (TA) | | | | | | | |
| Total Liabilities (TL) | | | | | | | |
| Net Worth (NW) | | | | | | | |
| Current Assets (CA) | | | | | | | |
| Current Liabilities (CL) | | | | | | | |
| Information fro | m Income | Statement | t | | | T. | |
| Total Revenue (TR) | | | | | | | |
| Profits Before Taxes (PBT) | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

| Section | IV. | Bidding | Forms |
|---------|-----|---------|-------|
| | | | |

- ☐ Attached are copies of financial statements (balance sheets, including all related notes, and income statements) for the years required above complying with the following conditions:
 - Must reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or partner to a JVCA, and not sister or parent companies
 - Historic financial statements must be audited by a certified accountant
 - Historic financial statements must be complete, including all notes to the financial statements
 - Historic financial statements must correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited (no statements for partial periods shall be requested or accepted)

| | Average | Annual | Turnover |
|--|---------|--------|-----------------|
|--|---------|--------|-----------------|

Form FIN - 3.2

| | Form FIIN – 3.2 | | | |
|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------|-------------|-------|
| Bidder's Legal I JVCA Partner L | Name:egal Name: | Date: _ Biddir | ng No.: | |
| | egal Name: | Page | of | pages |
| | Annual turnover data (construct | ion only) | | |
| Year | Amount and Currency | | US\$ equiva | alent |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| *Average | | | | |
| Annual | | | | |
| Construction | | | | |
| Turnover | | | | |

^{*}Average annual turnover calculated as total certified payments received for work in progress or completed over the number of years specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-Factor 2.3.2, divided by that same number of years.

Financial Resources

Form FIN - 3.3

Specify proposed sources of financing, such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means, net of current commitments, available to meet the total construction cash flow demands of the subject contract or contracts as indicated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

| Source of financing | Amount (US\$ equivalent) |
|---------------------|--------------------------|
| 1. | |
| 2. | |
| | |
| 3. | |
| 4. | |
| | |

$Form\,EXP\!-\!2.4.1$

| Bidder's Legal Name: | Date: |
|--------------------------|---------------|
| JVCA Partner Legal Name: | Bidding No.: |
| | Page of pages |

| Starting Month / Year | Ending Month / Year | Years* | Contract Identification | Role of Bidder |
|-----------------------------|---------------------------|--------|---|-------------------|
| | | 10015 | Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address: | |
| | | | Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address: | |
| | | | Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address: | |
| | | | Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address: | |
| | | | Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address: | |
| | | | Contract name: Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Name of Employer: Address: | |

^{*}List calendar year for years with contracts with at least nine (9) months activity per year starting with the earliest year

Telephone/fax number:

E-mail:

Specific Experience

Form EXP - 2.4.2(a)Bidder's Legal Name: _____ Date: _____ Bidding No.: _____ JVCA Partner Legal Name: Page _____ of ____ pages Similar Contract Number: ___ [insert **Information** specific number] of ___[insert total number of contracts required. **Contract Identification** Award date Completion date Role in Contract Management Contractor Subcontractor Contractor US\$____ Total contract amount If partner in a JVCA or subcontractor, specify participation of total contract % US\$____ amount Employer's Name: Address:

Specific Experience (cont.)

Form EXP – 2.4.2(a) (cont.)

| Bidder's Legal Name: | Page | of | pages |
|--------------------------|------|----|-------|
| JVCA Partner Legal Name: | | | |

| Similar Contract No[insert specific number] of[insert total number of contracts] required | Information |
|---|-------------|
| Description of the similarity in accordance with Sub-Factor 2.4.2(a) of Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria: | |
| Amount | |
| Physical size | |
| Complexity | |
| Methods/Technology | |
| Physical Production Rate | |

Specific Experience in Key Activities

Form EXP -2.4.2(b)

| Bidder's Legal Name: JVCA Partner Legal Name: Subcontractor's Legal Name: | B | Date: idding No.: o | f pages |
|---|-------------|-------------------------|---------------|
| | Information | | |
| Contract Identification | | | |
| Award date Completion date | | | |
| Role in Contract | Contractor | ☐ Management Contractor | Subcontractor |
| Total contract amount | | | US\$ |
| If partner in a JVCA or subcontractor, specify participation of total contract amount | % | | US\$ |
| Employer's Name: | | | |
| Address: | | | |
| Telephone/fax number: E-mail: | | | |

Specific Experience in Key Activities (cont.)

Form EXP – 2.4.2(b) (cont.)

| Bidder's Legal Name: | | of | pages |
|---|-------------|--------|-------|
| | Infor | mation | |
| Description of the key activities in accordance with Sub-Factor 2.4.2(b) of Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria: | | | |
| Amount | | | |
| Physical size | | | |
| Complexity | | | |
| Methods/Technology | | | |
| Physical Production Rate | | | |

Section V. Eligible Countries

Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Related Services in Bank-financed Procurement

- A. <u>Provision at Paragraph 1.6 of the Bank's Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works</u>
- 1.6 The African Development Fund permits firms and individuals from all countries to offer goods, works and services for ADF funded projects.

PART 2 – Employer's Requirements

Section VI. Requirements

Table of Contents

| Drawings | |
|---------------------------|--|
| Supplementary Information | |

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION

Specifications

Wherever reference is made in the Contract to specific standards and codes to be met by the goods and materials to be furnished, and work performed or tested, the provisions of the latest current edition or revision of the relevant standards and codes in effect shall apply, unless otherwise expressly stated in the Contract. Where such standards and codes are national, or relate to a particular country or region, other authoritative standards that ensure a substantially equal or higher quality than the standards and codes specified will be accepted subject to the Project Manager's prior review and written consent. Differences between the standards specified and the proposed alternative standards shall be fully described in writing by the Contractor and submitted to the Project Manager at least 28 days prior to the date when the Contractor desires the Project Manager's consent. In the event the Project Manager determines that such proposed deviations do not ensure substantially equal or higher quality, the Contractor shall comply with the standards specified in the documents.

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION

GENERAL

Description of the works

The contract works include:

- i. Excavation works
- ii. Construction substructure and superstructure including reinforcement and walling
- iii. Rainwater harvesting and disposal
- iv. Finishes
- v. Construction of steel fence
- vi. Construction of Toilets

The site for works is located at Karidundu, Karatina, Mathira Subcounty, Nyeri County.

Provision of equipment material and labour

The contractor shall provide all equipment, transport consumable materials and labour necessary for the satisfactory completion of the works in compliance with the specifications herein. The Project Manager reserves the right to inspect plant and materials prior to contractor selection, and may reject plant or material that in his/her opinion is substandard or inappropriate. The contractor shall provide full descriptions of all plants to be deployed for these works. The contactor shall present method statements describing in detail the proposed approach to work.

The contactor shall provide summary detail of the experience of key personnel to be deployed for these works.

Occupation of site

The employer will provide land on which the works shall be constructed. The contractor shall be given possession of such parts of the site that he requires for activities related to construction works including storage of raw materials, equipment and setting up of camp during the period of contract provided his operation does not interfere with the daily activities of the employer.

The Contractor shall not enter upon or occupy with men, tools, equipment and materials any land other than the land or right of way provided by the employer

Diligent performance

The contractor shall at all times perform the Works diligently and in accordance with sound professional practice. He/she shall not proceed from one stage of works to another without the express permission of the Project Manager

Decisions regarding Temporary halt, discontinuing of any element or part of any element of these works, or abandonment of these works, shall be discussed jointly between the contractor and the Project Manager before any further actions are authorized by the Engineer. The Project Manager's decision shall be final.

The Engineer will require a written submission justifying any steps taken by the successful bidder taken without the Project Manager's approval. An unsatisfactory

explanation shall lead to non-payment for works undertaken without prior agreement, and may be included for consideration as liquidated Damages.

Drawings

The project drawings shall comprise

- (a) The drawings attached to tender documents
- (b) Such other drawings and/or sketches as are issued from time to time by the Project Manager to deal with design modifications in response to on-site conditions.

Record drawing

As the work proceeds the Contractor shall mark up 'As Built' details on a set of prints of the contract Drawings modified to portray the works as actually constructed and issue to the Project Manager for approval within 7 days of completion of the works covered by each drawing.

Level datum

The Project Manager will establish on site temporary benchmark and will assign a value to it. The Contractor shall establish and maintain such additional benchmarks as are necessary; the form of such benchmarks shall be approved by the Project Manager.

Contractor's staff, communication, offices etc

General

The contractor shall advice the Project Manager at which of his offices any notices may be served in accordance with the conditions of contract.

Language of correspondence and records

All communication from contractor to the Project Manager and the Project Manager shall be in English language.

All site books, time sheets, records, notes drawings, documents, specifications etc. shall be in English language

Contractor's duty staff & offices

At least one responsible senior representative of the contractor shall be immediately available at all times and he shall be on site during normal working hours.

To such representative shall be delegated full authority to confer with Project Manager and to take all steps and to issue all those instructions which may be required in an emergency to ensure the safety of all personnel of the works and of all the Employer's and other property on the site and in the immediate vicinity thereof. The Project Manager may from time to time at his discretion after taking into consideration all the prevailing conditions allow some relaxation of this clause but

such relaxation shall be made only with his written permission and subject to any special conditions which he may then require.

The contractor shall provide and maintain at the site, offices for the use of representative and to which written instructions by the Project Manager can be delivered. Any instructions delivered to such offices shall be deemed to have been delivered to the contractor.

Public Relations

The contractor shall designate within his site organization competent staff whose responsibility shall be to ensure good relations.

The location of all yards, stores, workshops, offices, etc. shall be agreed beforehand with the Project Manager and shall be such as to avoid obstruction and nuisance to public and/or the client.

The contractor shall provide and maintain at or near the site suitable and sufficient shelters, mess rooms, washrooms, latrines etc. as are necessary and customary, to the satisfaction of the Project Manager Project Manager and in accordance with the law and regulations of the relevant authorities.

Accommodation for workmen

Where the contractor wishes to construct camp to accommodate his labour, the following requirements shall be adhered to and shall also be subject to the requirement made by the District or Provincial Administration or any local Authority.

Demolition of contractor's temporary structures

The Project Manager may at any time before the end of the period of maintenance give the contractor notice in writing to demolish and remove those buildings and works which are no longer required, whereupon the title to such buildings and works and materials connected therewith shall revert to the contractor. After the demolition and removal of building and works as required by the Project Manager and contractor shall level, clear, restore and make good the sites and surrounding ground and fill in and compact all latrines, drains, pits and similar works leaving the satisfaction of the Project Manager.

First aid outfits

The contractors shall provide and maintain in an easily accessible place at the site of the works adequate first aid outfits for the whole duration of the contract, to the satisfaction of the Project Manager. The contractor shall have available at all times a suitable vehicle for conveyance of the sick or injured people to hospital.

Protective clothing

The contractor shall provide all protective or any other special clothing or equipment for his employees that may be necessary.

Inspection by Project Manager during period of defects liability

The Project Manager will give the contractor due notice of his intention to carry out any inspection during the period of Defects Liability and the contractor shall hereupon arrange for a responsible representative to be present at the times and dates named by the Project Manager. This representative shall render all necessary assistance and take note all matters and things to which his attention is directed by the Project Manager.

Advertisement

No advertisements shall be placed on any boarding or scaffolding erected for any purpose connected with the contract without the written permission of the Project Manager.

Site investigations

- (a) Ground levels shown on the drawings are believed to be correct. Should the contractor consider the levels shown to be inaccurate he must draw the attention of the Project Manager to the discrepancy before interfering with the existing ground.
- (b) The Contractor must make such site investigations as he thinks fit and satisfy him/her as to the nature of the ground and availability of materials.

Work Programme

The contractor shall submit a work programme showing the sequence and timing of the various stages in the execution of the works as per the conditions of contract.

Facilities for the Project Manager

The Contractor shall provide for the Project Manager or his representative:

- (a) Such instruments as are necessary to enable the Project Manager to check the setting out and make such inspections as he may deem necessary.
- (b) Such labour and assistance as may be required.
- (c) Any facilities necessary to enable the Engineer to take samples
- (d) Provide a temporary site office during the contract period.

Water supply

The contractor will arrange to provide water for use in the camps and on the works. The Contractor must provide any treatment necessary to ensure it is suitable for use as in accordance to health regulations.

Security

The Contractor will be responsible for the security of the Works and of site installations during the Contract period. He must provide such fencing, watching & lighting as he deems necessary.

Description of the materials and workmanship

The following apply to all sections hereafter.

(a) Materials

Materials, commodities, components and equipment are to be new and unused unless otherwise specified. Handle, store, fix and protect all commodities with care to ensure that they are in perfect condition when incorporated into the work and handed over on completion.

(b) Manufacturer's recommendation

Handle, store and fix every commodity strictly in accordance with the printed or written recommendations of the manufacturer and/or supplier. Supply the Project Manager with copies of the manufacturer's recommendations. Inform the Project Manager if the manufacturer's recommendations conflict with any other specified requirements, and obtain his instructions before proceeding.

(c) Standards

Where commodities or workmanship are specified by reference to Kenya Bureau of Standards (K.S.), or British Standards (B.S.) or Codes of Practice (C.P.) or International (I.S.O.), or other standards, such standards are deemed to be the latest published at the time of tendering. The Contractor will be deemed to have read and understood the standards specified, and no claim for want of knowledge will be allowed. The substitution of commodities or standards of workmanship complying with other standards may be allowed at the discretion of the Project Manager, but application for permission for such substitution must be made in writing in sufficient time to allow adequate investigation. Obtain Certificates of Compliance with standards and supply to the Project Manager on request.

(d) Local conditions

All materials, commodities, components and equipment must be suitable for use in tropical climates.

Samples

The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager samples of materials to be used in the works, the samples must be fairly representative of the bulk to be supplied. Samples should be subject to relevant tests before submission and Test Certificates should accompany the samples.

Clearing site on completion

The site, including borrow pits and spoil dumps shall be carefully tidied up on completion, and shaped to avoid ponding, holes, and dangerous slopes. The borrow pits and spoil

dumps must be covered with topsoil neatly trimmed and the whole site left in a tidy and satisfactory condition.

EARTHWORKS

Clearing in general

Clear the area of the permanent works, and borrow pits of all vegetation and destroy by burning or otherwise.

Excavation and classification

Excavation shall be carried out to the lines and levels shown on the drawings or to such other lines and levels as the Engineer may direct.

Excavation in excess of the lines and levels shown on the drawings or without the approval of the Engineer will be rectified by the Contractor at his expense in a manner approved by the Engineer.

Any patches of unsuitable ground in the bottom of the excavations shall be excavated to such additional depth as the Engineer may direct.

Excavated material shall be taken to embankment fill or to spoil tip or as the Engineer may direct.

Excavation must be kept dry and the sides supported as necessary.

Borrow areas

Soil from borrow pits for use in the works should be approved by the Project Manager.

Spoil tips

Surplus or unsuitable materials are to be disposed of in spoil tips to be approved by the Project Manager. Spoil tips must be neatly graded, properly drained, and have stable slopes and a tidy appearance.

Earthfill

The embankment is to be built of selected soil as specified and shown on the drawings. The earthfill shall be of cohesive material of low permeability, with negligible organic matter.

Specially selected material free from stones shall be used in the cut off and central zone; the upstream zone shall also be free of stones, the downstream zone may have small quantities of stone not exceeding 25 mm.

Compaction of earthfill

Earth fill shall be placed and mechanically compacted in layers, approximately horizontal, to give a finished thickness of not more than 150 mm after compaction to 95% of Proctor Maximum Dry Density. Each layer shall be scarified to ensure a satisfactory bond with the next overlying layer, and water shall be added if necessary

to ensure uniform moisture content. Subsequent layers will be placed only after the previous layer has been ratified by the Project Manager.

Heavy machinery/rollers of a type and weight to be approved by the Project Manager shall be used for compaction

Specification

PARTICULAR SPECIFICATIONS

A PRICING ITEMS OF PRELIMINARIES

Prices **SHALL BE INSERTED** against items of "preliminaries" in the tenderer's priced Bills of Quantities. The contractor is advised to read and understand all preliminary items.

B DESCRIPTION OF THE WORKS

The contract works include:

The contract works include:

- i. Excavation works
- ii. Construction substructure and superstructure including reinforcement and walling
- iii. Rainwater harvesting and disposal
- iv. Finishes
- v. Goods display tables and shelves
- vi. Construction of Toilets

C FLOOR AREAS

To be done as per description in bill of quantities and technical drawings

D MEASUREMENTS

In the event of any discrepancies arising between the Bills of Quantities and the actual works, the site measurements shall generally take precedence. However, such discrepancies between any contract documents shall immediately be referred to the PROJECT MANAGER in accordance with the Conditions of Contract. The discrepancies shall then be treated as a variation and be dealt with in accordance with the said Conditions.

LOCATION OF SITE

 \mathbf{E}

The site for works is located at Karidundu, Karatina, Mathira Subcounty, Nyeri County..

F SIGNING OF THE TENDER DOCUMENTS

The authorized person shall append his / her signature and / or company's rubberstamp on each and every page of tender document in which entries have been made.

G DEMOLITIONS AND ALTERATIONS

The Contractor is to allow for all temporary protection required during the works including ordinary and special dust screens, hoardings, barriers, warning signs, etc as directed by the Project Manager and as necessary for the adequate propping and protection of existing property, finishes, workmen employed on the site, employer's agents and the public. Any damage or loss incurred due to the insufficiency of such protection must be made good by the Contractor. All protective devices are to be removed on completion of the works and any necessary making good consequent upon this is to be executed to the satisfaction of the Project Manager

The works shall be propped, strutted and supported as necessary before any alteration or demolition work commences. Prices shall include for all cleaning and preparatory work to structure and finishes and for making good to all finishes on completion whether or not specifically described.

Unless described as set aside for re-use all arising debris and surplus materials shall be carefully removed from building and cart away from site.

The Contractor shall be entirely responsible for any breakage or damage which may occur to materials required for re-use during their removal unless it is certified by the Project Manager that such damage or breakage was inevitable as a result of the condition of the item concerned

H CLEARING AWAY

The Contractor shall remove all temporary works, rubbish, debris and surplus materials from the site as they accumulate and upon completion of the works, remove and clear away all plant, equipment, rubbish, unused materials and stains and leave in a clean and tidy state to the reasonable satisfaction of the Project Manager.

The whole of the works shall be delivered up clean, complete and in perfect condition in every respect to the satisfaction of the Project Manager.

I CLAIMS

It shall be a condition of this contract that upon it becoming reasonably apparent to the Contractor that he has incurred losses and / or expenses due to any of the contract conditions, or by any other reason whatsoever, he shall present such a claim or intent to claim notice to the PROJECT MANAGER within the contract period. No claim shall be entertained upon the expiry of the said contact period.

J PAYMENTS

The tenderer's attention is drawn to the General Conditions of Contract and the Particular Conditions of Contract

K PREVENTION OF ACCIDENT, DAMAGE OR LOSS

The Contractor is notified that these works are to be carried out on a restricted site where the client is going on with other normal activities. The Contractor is thus instructed to take reasonable care in the execution of the works as to prevent accidents, damage or loss and disruption of activities being carried out by the Client. The Contractor shall allow in his rates any expense he deemed necessary by taking such care within the site.

L WORKING CONDITIONS

The Contractor shall allow in his rates for any interference that he may encounter in the course of the works for the Client may in some cases ask the Contractor not to proceed with the works until some activities within the site are completed, as the facility will be operating as usual during the course of the contract.

M | SIGNBOARD

Allow for providing, erecting, maintaining throughout the course of the Contract and afterwards clearing away a signboard as designed, specified and approved by the Project Manager.

N LABOUR CAMPS

The Contractor shall be allowed to house labour on site

O MATERIALS FROM DEMOLITIONS

Any materials arising from demolitions and not re-used shall become the property of the Client.

P PRICING RATES

The tenderer shall include for all costs in executing the whole of the works, including transport, replacing damaged items, fixing, all to comply with the said Conditions of Contract.

O SECURITY

The Contractor shall allow for providing adequate security for the works and the workers in the course of execution of this contract. No claim will be entertained from the Contractor for not maintaining adequate security for both the works and workers.

R URGENCY OF THE WORKS

The Contractor is notified that these "works are urgent" and should be completed within the period stated in these Particular Preliminaries.

The Contractor shall allow in his rates for any costs he/ she deems that he/she may incur by having to complete these works within the stipulated contract period.

S PAYMENT FOR MATERIALS ON SITE

All materials for incorporation in the works must be stored on site before payment is effected, unless specifically exempted by the Project Manager. This is to include materials of the Contractor, nominated sub-Contractors and nominated suppliers.

T EXISTING SERVICES

Prior to the commencement of any work, the Contractor is to ascertain from the relevant authority the exact position, depth and level of all existing services in the area and he/she shall make whatever provisions may be required by the authorities concerned for the support, maintenance and protection of such services.

U CONTRACT COMPLETION PERIOD

The contract completion period in accordance with clause 31 of the Conditions of Contract must be adhered to.

The 'PROJECT MANAGER' shall strictly monitor the Contractors progress in relation to the progress chart and should it be found necessary the 'PROJECT MANAGER' shall inform the Contractor in writing that his actual performance on site is not satisfactory. In all such cases the Contractor shall accelerate his rate of performance production and progress by all means such as additional labour, plant, e.t.c and working overtime all at his cost.

V PERFORMANCE BOND

A guarantee of 10 % of the contract sum will be required in accordance. No payment on account for the works executed will be made to the contractor until he has submitted the Performance guarantee to the Project Manager duly signed, sealed and stamped from an approved Bank.

W DELIVERY OF TENDER

Tenders and all documents in connection therewith, as specified above must be delivered in the addressed envelope which should be properly sealed and deposited at the offices as specified in the letter accompanying these documents or as indicated in the advertisement.

Tenders will be opened at the time specified in the letter accompanying these Tender Documents or as indicated in the advertisement. Tenders delivered/received later than the above time will not be opened.

X VALUE ADDED TAX

The Contractor's attention is drawn to the Legal Notice in the Finance Act part 3 Section 21(b) operative from 1st September, 1993 which requires payment of VAT on all contracts. The Contractor should therefore include allowance in his rates and prices for prices for VAT and any other Government taxes currently in force.

| 2-117 | | Section VI. Requirements | |
|-----------|--|---|--|
| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | | |
| | GENERAL PRELIMINARIES | | |
| | | | |
| A. | PRICING ITEMS OF PRELIMINARIES AND PREAMBLES | | |
| | Prices will be inserte Quantities and Speci | ed against items of Preliminaries in the Contractor's priced Bills of fication. | |
| | items in the Bills of | be deemed to have included in his prices or rates for the various f Quantities or Specification for all costs involved in complying nents for the proper execution of the whole of the works in the | |
| В. | ABBREVIATIONS | | |
| | | ills, units of measurement and terms are abbreviated and shall be for the proper execution of the whole of the works in the Contract. | |
| | На | Shall mean hectares | |
| | C.M. | Shall mean cubic metre | |
| | S.M. | Shall mean square metre | |
| | L.M. | Shall mean linear metre | |
| | MM | Shall mean Millimetre | |
| | Kg. | Shall mean Kilogramme | |
| | No. | Shall mean Number | |
| | Prs. | Shall mean Pairs | |
| | B.S Shall mean the British Standard Specification Published by the British Standards Institution, 2 Park Street, London W.I., England. | | |
| | Ditto - Shall mean the whole of the preceding description except as qualified in the description in which it occurs. | | |
| | m.s. | Shall mean measured separately. | |
| | a.b.d | Shall mean as before described. | |
| | | | |

A. EXCEPTION TO THE STANDARD METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

Attendance; Clause B19(a) of the Standard Method of Measurement is deleted and the following clause is substituted:-

Attendance on nominated Sub-Contractors shall be given as an item in each case shall be deemed to include: allowing use of standing scaffolding, mess rooms, sanitary accommodation and welfare facilities; provision of special scaffolding where necessary; providing space for office accommodation and for storage of plant and materials; providing light and water for their work: clearing away rubbish; unloading checking and hoisting: providing electric power and removing and replacing duct covers, pipe casings and the like necessary for the execution and testing of Sub-Contractors' work and being responsible for the accuracy of the same.

Fix Only:-

"Fix Only" shall mean take delivery at nearest railway station (Unless otherwise stated), pay all demurrage charges, load and transport to site where necessary, unload, store, unpack, assemble as necessary, distribute to position, hoist and fix only.

B. | EMPLOYER

As defined in the conditions of contract

C. PROJECT MANAGER

The term "P.M." wherever used in these Bills of Quantities shall be deemed to imply the Project Manager as defined in of the Conditions of Contract or such person or persons as may be duly authorised to represent him on behalf of the Government.

D. ARCHITECT

The term "Architect" shall be deemed to mean "The P.M." as defined above

A QUANTITY SURVEYOR

The term "Quantity Surveyor" shall be deemed to mean "The P.M." as defined above.

B ELECTRICAL ENGINEER

The term "Electrical Engineer" shall be deemed to mean "The P.M." as defined above

D

C MECHANICAL ENGINEER

The term "Mechanical Engineer" shall be deemed to mean "The P.M." as defined

-

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER

The term "Structural Engineer" shall be deemed to mean "The P.M." as defined above

Particulars of insertions to be made in the Appendix to the Contract Agreement will be found in the Particular Preliminaries part of these Bills of Quantities

A BOND.

The Contractor shall find and submit on the Form of Tender as given in the instructions to bid and SPN

B PLANT, TOOLS AND VEHICLES

Allow for providing all scaffolding, plant, tools and vehicles required for the works except in so far as may be stated otherwise herein and except for such items specifically and only required for the use of nominated Sub-Contractors as described herein. No timber used for scaffolding, formwork or temporary works of any kind shall be used afterwards in the permanent work.

C TRANSPORT.

Allow for transport of workmen, materials, etc., to and from the site at such hours and by such routes as may be permitted by the competent authorities.

D MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP.

All materials and workmanship used in the execution of the work shall be of the best quality and description unless otherwise stated. The Contractor shall order all materials to be obtained from overseas immediately after the Contract is signed and shall also ensure they are onsite when required for use in the works. The Bills of Ouantities shall not be used for the purpose of ordering materials.

E SIGN FOR MATERIALS SUPPLIED.

The Contractor will be required to sign a receipt for all articles and materials supplied by the **PROJECT MANAGER** at the time of taking deliver thereof, as having received them in good order and condition, and will thereafter be responsible for any loss or damage and for replacements of any such loss or damage with articles and/or materials which will be supplied by the **PROJECT MANAGER** at the current market prices including Customs Duty and V.A.T., all at the Contractor's own cost and expense, to the satisfaction of the **PROJECT MANAGER**

A STORAGE OF MATERIALS

The Contractor shall provide at his own risk and cost where directed on the site weather proof lock-up sheds and make good damaged or disturbed surfaces upon completion to the satisfaction of the **PROJECT MANAGER** Nominated Sub-Contractors are to be made liable for the cost of any storage accommodation provided especially for their use.

B SAMPLES

The Contractor shall furnish at his own cost any samples of materials or workmanship including concrete test cubes required for the works that may be called for by the **PROJECT MANAGER** for his approval until such samples are approved by the **PROJECT MANAGER** and the **PROJECT MANAGER**, may reject any materials or workmanship not in his opinion to be up to approved samples. The **PROJECT MANAGER** shall arrange for the testing of such materials as he may at his discretion deem desirable, but the testing shall be made at the expense of the Contractor and not at the expense of the **PROJECT MANAGER**. The Contractor shall pay for the testing in accordance with the current scale of testing charges laid down by the Ministry of Roads, Housing and Public Works.

The procedure for submitting samples of materials for testing and the method of marking for identification shall be as laid down by the **PROJECT MANAGER** The Contractor shall allow in his tender for such samples and tests except those in connection with nominated sub-contractors' work.

C GOVERNMENT ACTS REGARDING WORK PEOPLE ETC.

Allow for complying with all Government Acts, Orders and Regulations in connection with the employment of Labour and other matters related to the execution of the works. In particular the Contractor's attention is drawn to the provisions of the Factory Act 1950 and his tender must include for all costs arising or resulting from compliance with any Act, Order or Regulation relating to Insurances, pensions and holidays for workpeople or so the safety, health and welfare of the workpeople.

The Contractor must make himself fully acquainted with current Acts and Regulations, including Police Regulations regarding the movement, housing, security and control of labour, labour camps, passes for transport, etc. It is most important that the Contractor, before tendering, shall obtain from the relevant Authority the fullest information regarding all such regulations and/or restrictions which may affect the organisation of the works, supply and control of labour, etc., and allow accordingly in his tender. No claim in respect of want of knowledge in this connection will be entertained.

A SECURITY OF WORKS ETC.

The Contractor shall be entirely responsible for the security of all the works stores, materials, plant, personnel, etc., both his own and sub-contractors' and must provide all necessary watching, lighting and other precautions as necessary to ensure security against theft, loss or damage and the protection of the public.

В

B PUBLIC AND PRIVATE ROADS.

Maintain as required throughout the execution of the works and make good any damage to public or private roads arising from or consequent upon the execution of the works to the satisfaction of the local and other competent authority and the **PROJECT MANAGER**

C EXISTING PROPERTY.

The Contractor shall take every precaution to avoid damage to all existing property including roads, cables, drains and other services and he will be held responsible for and shall make good all such damage arising from the execution of this contract at his own expense to the satisfaction of the **PROJECT MANAGER**

D VISIT SITE AND EXAMINE DRAWINGS.

The Contractor is recommended to examine the drawings and visit the site the location of which is described in the Particular Preliminaries hereof. He shall be deemed to have acquainted himself therewith as to its nature, position, means of access or any other matter which, may affect his tender. No claim arising from his failure to comply with this recommendation will be considered.

E ACCESS TO SITE AND TEMPORARY ROADS.

Means of access to the Site shall be agreed with the **PROJECT MANAGER** prior to commencement of the work and Contractor must allow for building any necessary temporary access roads for the transport of the materials, plant and workmen as may be required for the complete execution of the works including the provision of temporary culverts, crossings, bridges, or any other means of gaining access to the Site. Upon completion of the works, the Contractor shall remove such temporary access roads; temporary culverts, bridges, etc., and make good and reinstate all works and surfaces disturbed to the satisfaction of the **PROJECT MANAGER** The Contractor should also allow for relocating existing fence (approx. 30 metres long).

A AREA TO BE OCCUPIED BY THE CONTRACTOR

The area of the site which may be occupied by the Contractor for use of storage and for the purpose of erecting workshops, etc., shall be defined on site by the **PROJECT MANAGER**.

OFFICE ETC. FOR THE PROJECT MANAGER

The Contractor shall provide, erect and maintain where directed on site and afterwards dismantle the site office of the standard type, complete with furniture. He shall also provide a strong metal trunk complete with strong hasp and staple fastening and two keys. He shall provide, erect and maintain a lock-up type water or bucket closet for the sole use of the **PROJECT MANAGER** including making temporary connections to the drain where applicable to the satisfaction of Government and Medical Officer of Health and shall provide services of cleaner and pay all conservancy charges and keep both office and closet in a clean and sanitary condition from commencement to the completion of the works and dismantle and make good disturbed surfaces. The office and closet shall be completed before the Contractor is permitted to commence the works. The Contractor shall make available on the Site as and when required by the "**PROJECT MANAGER**" a modern and accurate level together with leveling staff, ranging rods and 50 metre metallic or linen tape.

C WATER AND ELECTRICITY SUPPLY FOR THE WORKS

The Contractor shall provide at his own risk and cost all necessary water, electric light and power required for use in the works. The Contractor must make his own arrangements for connection to the nearest suitable water main and for metering the water used. He must also provide temporary tanks and meters as required at his own cost and clear away when no longer required and make good on completion to the entire satisfaction of the **PROJECT MANAGER**. The Contractor shall pay all charges in connection herewith. No guarantee is given or implied that sufficient water will be available from mains and the Contractor must make his own arrangements for augmenting this supply at his own cost. Nominated Sub--contractors are to be made liable for the cost of any water or electric current used and for any installation provided especially for their own use.

D SANITATION OF THE WORKS

The Sanitation of the works shall be arranged and maintained by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Government and/or Local Authorities, Labour Department and the **PROJECT MANAGER.**

A SUPERVISION AND WORKING HOURS

The works shall be executed under the direction and to the entire satisfaction in all respects of the **PROJECT MANAGER** who shall at all times during normal working hours have access to the works and to the yards and workshops of the Contractor and sub-Contractors or other places where work is being prepared for the contract.

B PROVISIONAL SUMS.

The term "Provisional Sum" wherever used in these Bills of Quantities shall have the meaning stated in Section A item A7(i) of the Standard Method of Measurement. Such sums are net and no addition shall be made to them for profit.

C PRIME COST (OR P.C.) SUMS.

The term "Prime Cost Sum" or "P.C. Sum" wherever used in these Bills of Quantities shall have the meaning stated in Section A item A7 (ii) of the Standard Method of Measurement. Persons or firms nominated by the **PROJECT MANAGER** to execute work or to provide and fix materials or goods are described herein as Nominated Sub-Contractors. Persons or firms so nominated to supply goods or materials are described herein as Nominated Suppliers.

D PROGRESS CHART.

The Contractor shall provide within two weeks of Possession of Site and in agreement with the **PROJECT MANAGER** a Progress Chart for the whole of the works including the works of Nominated Sub-Contractors; one copy to be handed to the **PROJECT MANAGER** and a further copy to be retained on Site. Progress to be recorded and chart to be amended as necessary as the work proceeds.

C. ADJUSTMENT OF P.C. SUMS.

In the final account all P.C. Sums shall be deducted and the amount properly expended upon the **PROJECT MANAGER'S** order in respect of each of them added to the Contract sum. The Contractor shall produce to the **PROJECT MANAGER** such quotations, invoices or bills, properly receipted, as may be necessary to show the actual details of the sums paid by the Contractor. Items of profit upon P.C. Sums shall be adjusted in the final account pro-rata to the amount paid. Items of "attendance"

A ADJUSTMENT OF P.C. SUMS, Ctd......

Should the Contractor be permitted to tender and his tender be accepted of any work for which a P.C. Sum is included in these Bill of Quantities profit and attendance will be allowed at the same rate as it would be if the work were executed by a Nominated Sub-Contractor.

B ADJUSTMENT OF PROVISIONAL SUMS.

In the final account all Provisional Sums shall be deducted and the value of the work properly executed in respect of them upon the **PROJECT MANAGER's** order added to the Contract Sum. Such work shall be valued as described for Variations, but should any part of the work be executed by a Nominated Sub-Contractor, the value of such work or articles for the work to be supplied by a Nominated Supplier, the value of such work or articles shall be treated as a P.C. Sum and profit and attendance comparable to that contained in the priced Bills of Quantities for similar items added.

C NOMINATED SUB-CONTRACTORS

When any work is ordered by the **PROJECT MANAGER** to be executed by nominated sub-contractors, the Contractor shall enter into sub-contracts and shall thereafter be responsible for such sub-contractors in every respect. Unless otherwise described the Contractor is to provide for such Sub-Contractors any or all of the facilities described in these Preliminaries. The Contractor should price for these with the nominated Sub-contract Contractor's work concerned in the P.C. Sums under the description "add for Attendance".

D DIRECT CONTRACTS

Notwithstanding the foregoing conditions, the Government reserves the right to place a "Direct Contract" for any goods or services required in the works which are covered by a P.C. Sum in the Bills of Quantities and to pay for the same direct. In any such instances, profit relative to the P.C. Sum the priced Bills of Quantities will be adjusted as described for P.C. Sums and allowed.

A ATTENDANCE UPON OTHER TRADESMEN, ETC.

The Contractor shall allow for the attendance of trade upon trade and shall afford any tradesmen or other persons employed for the execution of any work not included in this Contract every facility for carrying out their work and also for use of his ordinary scaffolding. The Contractor, however, shall not be required to erect any special scaffolding for them. The Contractor shall perform such cutting away for and making good after the work of such tradesmen or persons as may be ordered by the **PROJECT MANAGER** and the work will be measured and paid for to the extent executed at rates provided in these Bills.

B INSURANCE

The Contractor shall insure as required in the Conditions of Contract. No payment on account of the work executed will be made to the Contractor until he has satisfied the **PROJECT MANAGER** either by production of an Insurance Policy or and Insurance Certificate that the provision of the foregoing Insurance Clauses have been complied with in all respects. Thereafter the **PROJECT MANAGER** shall from time to time ascertain that premiums are duly paid up by the Contractor who shall if called upon to do so, produce the receipted premium renewals for the **PROJECT MANAGER**'s inspection.

C PROVISIONAL WORK

All work described as "Provisional" in these Bills of Quantities is subject to remeasurement in order to ascertain the actual quantity executed for which payment will be made. All "Provisional" and other work liable to adjustment under this Contract shall left uncovered for a reasonable time to allow all measurements needed for such adjustment to be taken by the **PROJECT MANAGER** Immediately the work is ready for measuring, the Contractor shall give notice to the **PROJECT MANAGER**. If the Contractor makes default in these respects he shall if the **PROJECT MANAGER** so directs uncover the work to enable all measurements to

be taken and afterwards reinstate at his own expense.

D ALTERATIONS TO BILLS, PRICING, ETC.

Any unauthorised alteration or qualification made to the text of the Bills of Quantities may cause the Tender to be disqualified and will in any case be ignored. The Contractor shall be deemed to have made allowance in his prices generally to cover any items against which no price has been inserted in the priced Bills of Quantities. All items of measured work shall be priced in detail and the Tenders containing Lump Sums to cover trades or groups of work must be broken down to show the price of each item before they will be accepted.

A BLASTING OPERATIONS

Blasting will only be allowed with the express permission of the **PROJECT MANAGER** in writing. All blasting operations shall be carried out at the Contractor's sole risk and cost in accordance with any Government regulations in force for the time being, and any special regulations laid down by the **PROJECT MANAGER** governing the use and storage of explosives.

B MATERIALS ARISING FROM EXCAVATIONS

Materials of any kind obtained from the excavations shall be the property of the Government. Unless the **PROJECT MANAGER** directs otherwise such materials shall be dealt with as provided in the Contract. Such materials shall only be used in the works, in substitution of materials which the Contractor would otherwise have had to supply with the written permission of the **PROJECT MANAGER** Should such permission be given, the Contractor shall make due allowance for the value of the materials so used at a price to be agreed.

C PROTECTION OF THE WORKS.

Provide protection of the whole of the works contained in the Bills of Quantities, including casing, casing up, covering or such other means as may be necessary to avoid damage to the satisfaction of the **PROJECT MANAGER** and remove such protection when no longer required and make good any damage which may nevertheless have been done at completion free of cost to the Government.

D REMOVAL OF RUBBISH ETC.

Removal of rubbish and debris from the Buildings and site as it accumulates and at the completion of the works and remove all plant, scaffolding and unused materials at completion.

E WORKS TO BE DELIVERED UP CLEAN

Clean and flush all gutters, rainwater and waste pipes, manholes and drains, wash (except where such treatment might cause damage) and clean all floors, sanitary fittings, glass inside and outside and any other parts of the works and remove all marks, blemishes, stains and defects from joinery, fittings and decorated surfaces generally, polish door furniture and bright parts of metalwork and leave the whole of the buildings watertight, clean, perfect and fit for occupation to the approval of the **PROJECT MANAGER**

A. GENERAL SPECIFICATION.

For the full description of materials and workmanship, method of execution of the work and notes for pricing, the Contractor is referred to the Ministry of Roads, Public Works and Housing General Specification dated 1976 or any subsequent revision thereof which is issued as a separate document, and which shall be allowed in all respects unless it conflicts with the General Preliminaries, Trade Preambles or other items in these Bills of Quantities.

B. MATERIALS ON SITE

All materials for incorporation in the works must be stored on or adjacent to the site before payment is effected unless specifically exempted by the **PROJECT MANAGER.** This includes the materials of the Main Contractor, Nominated Sub-Contractors and Nominated Suppliers.

C. HOARDING

The Contractor shall enclose all the site under construction with a hoarding 2400 mm high consisting of iron sheets gauge 30 on 100 x 50 mm 2nd grade treated sawn cypress timber posts firmly secured at 1800 mm centres with two 75 x 50 mm 2nd grade treated sawn cypress timber rails. The Contractor is in addition required to take all precautions necessary for the safe custody of the works, materials, plant, public and Employer's property on the site.

E. | CONTRACTOR'S SUPERINTENDENCE/SITE AGENT

The Contractor shall constantly keep on the works a literate English speaking Agent or Representative, competent and experienced in the kind of work involved who shall give his whole experience in the kind of work involved and shall give his whole time to the superintendence of the works. Such Agent or Representative shall receive on behalf of the Contractor all directions and instructions from the Project Manager and such directions shall be deemed to have been given to the Contractor in accordance with the Conditions of Contract.

Drawings



Supplementary Information

PART 3 – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms

Section VII. General Conditions (GC)

These General Conditions (GC), read in conjunction with the Particular Conditions (PC) and other documents listed therein, should be a complete document expressing fairly the rights and obligations of both parties.

Table of Clauses

| 1 Ger | neral Provisions | 139 |
|-------|---|-----|
| 1.1 | Definitions | 139 |
| 1.2 | Interpretation | 142 |
| 1.3 | Communications | |
| 1.4 | Law and Language | 143 |
| 1.5 | Priority of Documents | |
| 1.6 | Contract Agreement | |
| 1.7 | Assignment | |
| 1.8 | Care and Supply of Documents | |
| 1.9 | Confidential Details | 145 |
| 1.10 | Compliance with Laws | 145 |
| 1.11 | Joint and Several Liability | |
| 1.12 | Inspections and Audit by the Bank | 146 |
| 1.13 | Project Manager's Decisions | |
| 1.14 | Delegation | 146 |
| 1.15 | Subcontracting | 147 |
| 1.16 | Personnel and Equipment | 147 |
| 1.17 | Other Contractors | 147 |
| 1.18 | Employer's and Contractor's Risks | 147 |
| 1.19 | Employer's Risks | 148 |
| 1.20 | Contractor's Risks | 148 |
| 1.21 | Insurance | 148 |
| 1.22 | Site Investigation Reports | 149 |
| 1.23 | Contractors to Construct the Works | 149 |
| 1.24 | The Works to Be Completed by the Intended Completion Date | 149 |
| 1.25 | Approval by the Project Manager | 149 |
| 1.26 | Safety | 150 |
| 1.27 | Discoveries | 150 |
| 1.28 | Possession of the Site | 150 |
| 1.29 | Access to the Site | 150 |
| 1.30 | Instructions | 150 |
| 1.31 | Appointment of the Adjudicator | |
| 1.32 | Procedure for Disputes | 151 |
| 2 Tin | ne Control | 151 |
| 2.1 | Programme | 151 |
| 2.2 | Extension of the Intended Completion Date | |
| 2.3 | Acceleration | |
| 2.4 | Delays Ordered by the Project Manager | |
| 2.5 | Management Meetings | |
| 2.6 | Early Warning | |

| 3 Qua | ality Control | 153 |
|--------|---|-----|
| 3.1 | Identifying Defects | 153 |
| 3.2 | Tests | 153 |
| 3.3 | Correction of Defects | 153 |
| 3.4 | Uncorrected Defects | 153 |
| 4 Cos | st Control | 154 |
| 4.1 | Contract Price | 154 |
| 4.2 | Changes in the Contract Price | 154 |
| 4.3 | Variations | 154 |
| 4.4 | Cash Flow Forecasts | 155 |
| 4.5 | Payment Certificates | 155 |
| 4.6 | Payments | 156 |
| 4.7 | Compensation Events | 156 |
| 4.8 | Tax | 158 |
| 4.9 | Currencies | 158 |
| 4.10 | Price Adjustment | |
| 4.11 | Retention | 159 |
| 4.12 | Liquidated Damages | |
| 4.13 | Bonus | |
| 4.14 | Advance Payment | |
| 4.15 | Securities | |
| 4.16 | Dayworks | |
| 4.17 | Cost of Repairs | 160 |
| 5 Stat | ff and Labour | 161 |
| 5.1 | Forced Labour | 161 |
| 5.2 | Child Labour | 161 |
| 5.3 | Workers' Organizations | 161 |
| 5.4 | Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity | 162 |
| 6 For | ce Majeure | 163 |
| 6.1 | Definition of Force Majeure | 163 |
| 6.2 | Notice of Force Majeure | |
| 6.3 | Duty to Minimise Delay | 164 |
| 6.4 | Consequences of Force Majeure | 164 |
| 6.5 | Force Majeure Affecting Subcontractor | 164 |
| 6.6 | Optional Termination, Payment and Release | 164 |
| 6.7 | Release from Performance | |
| 7 Fin | ishing the Contract | 166 |
| 7.1 | Completion | 166 |
| 7.2 | Taking Over | |

| 166 |
|-----|
| 100 |
| 166 |
| 167 |
| 169 |
| 169 |
| 170 |
| 170 |
| 170 |
| |

Section VII. General Conditions

| [Name | of Employer] |
|-------|--------------|
| [Name | of Contract] |

1. General Provisions

1.1 Definitions

In the Conditions of Contract ("these Conditions"), which include **Particular Conditions**, and these **General Conditions**, the following words and expressions shall have the meanings stated. Words indicating persons or parties include corporations and other legal entities, except where the context requires otherwise.

1.1.1 The Contract

- 1.1.1.1 "Contract" means the Contract Agreement, the Letter of Acceptance, the Letter of Bid, these Conditions, the Specification, the Schedules, and the further documents (if any) which are listed in the Contract Agreement or in the Letter of Acceptance.
- 1.1.1.2 "Contract Agreement" means the contract agreement referred to in **GC** Clause 1.6 [Contract Agreement].
- 1.1.1.3 "Letter of Acceptance" means the letter of formal acceptance, signed by the Employer, of the Letter of Bid, including any annexed memoranda comprising agreements between and signed by both Parties. If there is no such letter of acceptance, the expression "Letter of Acceptance" means the Contract Agreement and the date of issuing or receiving the Letter of Acceptance means the date of signing the Contract Agreement.
- 1.1.1.4 "Letter of Bid" means the document entitled letter of bid, which was completed by the Contractor and includes the signed offer to the Employer for the Works.
- 1.1.1.5 "Specification" means the document entitled specification, as included in the Contract, and any additions and modifications to the specification in accordance with the Contract. Such document specifies the Works.
- 1.1.1.6 "Drawings" means the drawings of the Works, as included in the Contract, and any additional and modified drawings issued by (or on behalf of) the Employer in accordance with the Contract.
- 1.1.1.7 "Schedules" means the document(s) entitled schedules, completed by the Contractor and submitted with the Letter of Bid, as included in the Contract. Such document may include the Bill of Quantities, data, lists, and schedules of rates and/or prices.

- 1.1.1.8 The Activity Schedule is a schedule of the activities comprising the construction, installation, testing, and commissioning of the Works in a lump sum contract. It includes a lump sum price for each activity, which is used for valuations and for assessing the effects of Variations and Compensation Events.
- 1.1.1.10 "Bid" means the Letter of Bid and all other documents which the Contractor submitted with the Letter of Bid, as included in the Contract.

1.1.1.11 **PC** means **Particular Conditions**

1.1.2 Parties and Persons

- 1.1.2.1 "Party" means the Employer or the Contractor, as the context requires.
- 1.1.2.2 "Employer" means the person named as employer in the **Particular Conditions** and the legal successors in title to this person.
- 1.1.2.3 "Contractor" means the person(s) named as contractor in the Letter of Bid accepted by the Employer and the legal successors in title to this person(s).
- 1.1.2.4 "Project Manager" is the person named in the **PC** (or any other competent person appointed by the Employer and notified to the Contractor, to act in replacement of the Project Manager) who is responsible for supervising the execution of the Works and administering the Contract.
- 1.1.2.5 "Subcontractor" means any person named in the Contract as a subcontractor, or any person appointed as a subcontractor, for a part of the Works; and the legal successors in title to each of these persons.
- 1.1.2.6 "Bank" means the financing institution (if any) named in the **PC**.
- 1.1.2.7 "Borrower" means the person (if any) named as the borrower in the **PC**.
- 1.1.2.8 The "Adjudicator" is the person appointed jointly by the Employer and the Contractor to resolve disputes in the first instance, as provided for in **GC** Clause 1.32.

1.1.3 Dates, Tests, Periods and Completion

- 1.1.3.1 "Base Date" means the date 28 days prior to the latest date for submission of the Bid.
- "Commencement Date" means the date notified under the **PC**.
- 1.1.3.3 "Completion Date" means the date for completion of the Works, or a Section (as the case may be) as certified by the Project Manager, in accordance with GC Clause 7.1.1, and as stipulated in the PC.
- 1.1.3.4 "Test on Completion" means the tests (if any) which are specified in the Contract and which are carried out in accordance with the Specification for the purpose of issuing the "Certificate of Completion of the Works".
- 1.1.3.5 "Taking-Over Certificate" or "Certificate of Completion of the Works" means a certificate issued under **GC** Clause 7.1 [Completion].
- 1.1.3.6 "day" means a calendar day and "year" means 365 days.

1.1.3.7 "Dayworks" are varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Contractor's employees and Equipment, in addition to payments for associated Materials and Plant.

1.1.4 Money and Payments

- 1.1.4.1 "Initial Contract Amount" means the amount accepted in the Letter of Acceptance for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects.
- 1.1.4.2 "Contract Price" means the price defined in GC Clause 4.1 [Contract Price], and includes adjustments in accordance with the Contract.
- 1.1.4.3 "Compensation Events" are those defined in **GC** Clause 4.7 [Compensation Events] hereunder.

1.1.5 Works and Goods

- 1.1.5.1 "Contractor's Equipment" means all apparatus, machinery, vehicles and other things required for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects. However, Contractor's Equipment excludes Temporary Works, Employer's Equipment (if any), Plant, Materials and any other things intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works.
- 1.1.5.2 "Goods" means Contractor's Equipment, Materials, Plant and Temporary Works, or any of them as appropriate.
- 1.1.5.3 "Materials" means things of all kinds (other than Plant) intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works, including the supply-only materials (if any) to be supplied by the Contractor under the Contract.
- 1.1.5.4 "Permanent Works" means the permanent works to be executed by the Contractor under the Contract.
- 1.1.5.5 "Plant" means the apparatus, machinery and other equipment intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works, including vehicles purchased for the Employer and relating to the construction or operation of the Works.
- 1.1.5.6 "Section" means a part of the Works specified in the **PC** as a Section (if any).
- 1.1.5.7 "Temporary Works" means all temporary works of every kind (other than Contractor's Equipment) required on Site for the execution and completion of the Permanent Works and the remedying of any defects.
- 1.1.5.8 "Works" mean the Permanent Works and the Temporary Works, or either of them as appropriate, and as described in the **PC**.

1.1.6 Other Definitions

- 1.1.6.1 "Contractor's Documents" means the calculations, computer programs and other software, drawings, manuals, models and other documents of a technical nature (if any) supplied by the Contractor under the Contract.
- 1.1.6.2 "Country" means the country in which the Site (or most of it) is located.
- 1.1.6.3 "Force Majeure" is defined in GC Clause 6.1 [Force Majeure].

- 1.1.6.4 "Laws" means all national (or state) legislation, statutes, ordinances and other laws, and regulations and by-laws of any legally constituted public authority.
- 1.1.6.5 "Performance Security" means the security (or securities, if any) under GC Clause 4.15 [Securities].
- 1.1.6.6 "Site" means the places where the Permanent Works are to be executed including storage and working areas and to which Plant and Materials are to be delivered, and any other places as may be specified in the **PC** as forming part of the Site.
- 1.1.6.8 "Unforeseeable" or "Unforeseen" means not reasonably foreseeable by an experienced Contractor by the Base Date.
- 1.1.6.9 "Variation" means any change to the Works, which is instructed or approved as a variation under **GC** Clause 4.3 [Variations].

1.2 Interpretation

- 1.2.1 Interpretation In the Contract, except where the context requires otherwise:
 - (a) words indicating one gender include all genders;
 - (b) words indicating the singular also include the plural and words indicating the plural also include the singular;
 - (c) provisions including the word "agree", "agreed" or "agreement" require the agreement to be recorded in writing;
 - (d) "written" or "in writing" means hand-written, type-written, printed or electronically made, and resulting in a permanent record;
 - (e) the word "tender" is synonymous with "bid" and "tenderer" with "bidder" and the words "tender documents" with "bidding documents".
- 1.2.2 The marginal words and other headings shall not be taken into consideration in the interpretation of these Conditions.
- 1.2.3 If sectional completion is specified in the **PC**, references in the **GC** to the Works, the Completion Date, and the Intended Completion Date apply to any Section of the Works (other than references to the Completion Date and Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works).

1.3 Communications

- 1.3.1 Wherever these Conditions provide for the giving or issuing of approvals, certificates, consents, determinations, notices, requests and dischDAMBALA FACHANAs, these communications shall be:
 - (a) in writing and delivered by hand (against receipt), sent by mail or courier, or transmitted using any of the agreed systems of electronic transmission as stated in the **PC**; and

- (b) delivered, sent or transmitted to the address for the recipient's communications as stated in the **PC**. However:
 - (i) if the recipient gives notice of another address, communications shall thereafter be delivered accordingly; and
 - (ii) if the recipient has not stated otherwise when requesting an approval or consent, it may be sent to the address from which the request was issued
- 1.3.2 Approvals, certificates, consents and determinations shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. When a certificate is issued to a Party, the certifier shall send a copy to the other Party.
- 1.3.3 When a notice is issued to a Party, by the other Party or the Project Manager, a copy shall be sent to the Project Manager or the other Party, as the case may be.

1.4 Law and Language

1.4.1 The Contract shall be governed by the law of the country or other jurisdiction stated in the **PC**.

The ruling language of the Contract shall be that stated in the **PC**.

The language for communications shall be that stated in the **PC**. If no language is stated there, the language for communications shall be the ruling language of the Contract.

1.4.2 Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this translation shall govern.

The Contractor shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Contractor.

1.5 Priority of Documents

- 1.5.1 The documents forming the Contract are to be taken as mutually explanatory of one another. For the purposes of interpretation, the priority of the documents shall be in accordance with the following sequence:
 - (a) the Contract Agreement (if any),
 - (b) the Letter of Acceptance,
 - (c) the Bid,
 - (d) the Particular Conditions
 - (e) these General Conditions,
 - (f) the Specification,
 - (g) the Drawings, and
 - (h) the Schedules and any other documents forming part of the Contract.
- 1.5.2 If an ambiguity or discrepancy is found in the documents, the Project Manager shall issue any necessary clarification or instruction.

1.6 Contract Agreement

1.6.1 The Parties shall enter into a Contract Agreement within 28 days after the Contractor receives the Letter of Acceptance, unless the **Particular Conditions** establish otherwise. The Contract Agreement shall be based upon the relevant form provided in Section IX, Contract Forms. The costs of stamp duties and similar chDAMBALA FACHANAs (if any) imposed by law in connection with entry into the Contract Agreement shall be borne by the Employer.

1.7 Assignment

- 1.7.1 Neither Party shall assign the whole or any part of the Contract or any benefit or interest in or under the Contract. However, either Party:
 - (a) may assign the whole or any part with the prior agreement of the other Party, at the sole discretion of such other Party, and
 - (b) may, as security in favour of a bank or financial institution, assign its right to any moneys due, or to become due, under the Contract.

1.8 Care and Supply of Documents

1.8.1 The Specification and Drawings shall be in the custody and care of the Employer. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, two copies of the Contract and of each subsequent Drawing shall be supplied to the Contractor, who may make or request further copies at the cost of the Contractor.

- 1.8.2 Each of the Contractor's Documents shall be in the custody and care of the Contractor, unless and until taken over by the Employer. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, the Contractor shall supply to the Project Manager six copies of each of the Contractor's Documents.
- 1.8.3 The Contractor shall keep, on the Site, a copy of the Contract, publications named in the Specification, the Contractor's Documents (if any), the Drawings and Variations and other communications given under the Contract. The Employer's Personnel shall have the right of access to all these documents at all reasonable times.
- 1.8.4 If a Party becomes aware of an error or defect in a document which was prepared for use in executing the Works, the Party shall promptly give notice to the other Party of such error or defect.

1.9 Confidential Details

1.9.1 The Contractor's and the Employer's Personnel shall disclose all such confidential and other information as may be reasonably required in order to verify the Contractor's compliance with the Contract and allow its proper implementation.

Each of them shall treat the details of the Contract as private and confidential, except to the extent necessary to carry out their respective obligations under the Contract or to comply with applicable Laws. Each of them shall not publish or disclose any particulars of the Works prepared by the other Party without the previous agreement of the other Party. However, the Contractor shall be permitted to disclose any publicly available information, or information otherwise required to establish his qualifications to compete for other projects.

1.9.2 Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor may furnish to its Subcontractor(s) such documents, data and other information it receives from the Employer to the extent required for the Subcontractor(s) to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Contractor shall obtain from such Subcontractor(s) an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Contractor under this Clause.

1.10 Compliance with Laws

- 1.10.1 The Contractor shall, in performing the Contract, comply with applicable Laws.
- 1.10.2 Unless otherwise stated in the **Particular Conditions**:
 - (a) the Employer shall acquire and pay for all permits, approvals and/or licenses from all local, state or national government authorities or public service undertakings in the Employer's Country, which (i) such authorities or undertakings require the Employer to obtain in the Employer's name, and (ii) are necessary for the execution of the Contract, including those required for the performance by both the Contractor and the Employer of their respective obligations under the Contract;

(b) the Contractor shall acquire and pay for all permits, approvals and/or licenses from all local, state or national government authorities or public service undertakings in the Employer's Country, which such authorities or undertakings require the Contractor to obtain in its name and which are necessary for the performance of the Contract, including, without limitation, visas for the Contractor's and Subcontractor's personnel and entry permits for all imported Contractor's Equipment. The Contractor shall acquire all other permits, approvals and/or licenses that are not the responsibility of the Employer under GC Clause 1.10.2(a) hereof and that are necessary for the performance of the Contract. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Employer from and against any and all liabilities, damages, claims, fines, penalties and expenses of whatever nature arising or resulting from the violation of such laws by the Employer or its personnel, including the Subcontractors and their personnel, but without prejudice to GC Clause 1.10.1 hereof.

1.11 Joint and Several Liability

1.11.1 If the Contractor is a joint venture, consortium, or association (JVCA) of two or more persons, all such persons shall be jointly and severally bound to the Employer for the fulfilment of the provisions of the Contract, unless otherwise specified in the **PC**, and shall designate one of such persons to act as a leader with authority to bind the JVCA. The composition or the constitution of the JVCA shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Employer.

1.12 Inspections and Audit by the Bank

- 1.12.1 The Contractor shall permit the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the Site and/or the Contractor's accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Bank if required by the Bank.
- 1.12.2 The Contractor shall maintain all documents and records related to the Contract for a period of three (3) years after completion of the Works. The Contractor shall provide any documents necessary for the investigation of allegations of fraud, collusion, coercion, obstruction or corruption and require its employees or agents with knowledge of the Contract to respond to questions from the Bank.

1.13 Project Manager's Decisions

1.13.1 Except where otherwise specifically stated, the Project Manager shall decide contractual matters between the Employer and the Contractor in the role representing the Employer.

1.14 Delegation

1.14.1 The Project Manager may delegate any of his duties and responsibilities and may cancel any delegation after notifying the Contractor.

1.15 Subcontracting

1.15.1 The Contractor may subcontract with the approval of the Project Manager, but may not assign the Contract without the approval of the Employer in writing. Subcontracting shall not alter the Contractor's obligations.

1.16 Personnel and Equipment

- 1.16.1 The Contractor shall employ the key personnel and use the equipment identified in its Bid, to carry out the Works or other personnel and equipment approved by the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall approve any proposed replacement of key personnel and equipment only if their relevant qualifications or characteristics are substantially equal to or better than those proposed in the Bid.
- 1.16.2 If the Project Manager asks the Contractor to remove a person who is a member of the Contractor's staff or work force, stating the reasons, the Contractor shall ensure that the person leaves the Site within seven days and has no further connection with the work in the Contract.

1.17 Other Contractors

1.17.1 The Contractor shall cooperate and share the Site with other contractors, public authorities, utilities, and the Employer between the dates given in the Schedule of Other Contractors, as referred to in the **PC**. The Contractor shall also provide facilities and services for them as described in the Schedule. The Employer may modify the Schedule of Other Contractors, and shall notify the Contractor of any such modification.

1.18 Employer's and Contractor's Risks

1.18.1 The Employer carries the risks which this Contract states are Employer's risks, and the Contractor carries the risks which this Contract states are Contractor's risks.

1.19 Employer's Risks

- 1.19.1 From the Start Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, the following are Employer's risks:
 - (a) The risk of personal injury, death, or loss of or damage to property (excluding the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment), which are due to
 - (i) use or occupation of the Site by the Works or for the purpose of the Works, which is the unavoidable result of the Works or
 - (ii) negligence, breach of statutory duty, or interference with any legal right by the Employer or by any person employed by or contracted to him except the Contractor.
 - (b) The risk of damage to the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment to the extent that it is due to a fault of the Employer or in the Employer's design, or due to war or radioactive contamination directly affecting the country where the Works are to be executed.
- 1.19.2 From the Completion Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, the risk of loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials is an Employer's risk except loss or damage due to
 - (a) a Defect which existed on the Completion Date,
 - (b) an event occurring before the Completion Date, which was not itself an Employer's risk, or
 - (c) the activities of the Contractor on the Site after the Completion Date.

1.20 Contractor's Risks

1.20.1 From the Starting Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, the risks of personal injury, death, and loss of or damage to property (including, without limitation, the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) which are not Employer's risks are Contractor's risks.

1.21 Insurance

- 1.21.1 The Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the Employer and the Contractor, insurance cover from the Start Date to the end of the Defects Liability Period, in the amounts and deductibles stated in the **PC** for the following events which are due to the Contractor's risks:
 - (a) loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials;
 - (b) loss of or damage to Equipment;
 - (c) loss of or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) in connection with the Contract; and
 - (d) personal injury or death.

- 1.21.2 Policies and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the Contractor to the Project Manager for the Project Manager's approval before the Commencement Date. All such insurance shall provide for compensation to be payable in the types and proportions of currencies required to rectify the loss or damage incurred.
- 1.21.3 If the Contractor does not provide any of the policies and certificates required, the Employer may effect the insurance which the Contractor should have provided and recover the premiums the Employer has paid from payments otherwise due to the Contractor or, if no payment is due, the payment of the premiums shall be a debt due.
- 1.21.4 Alterations to the terms of insurance shall not be made without the approval of the Project Manager.
- 1.21.5 Both parties shall comply with any conditions of the insurance policies.

1.22 Site Investigation Reports

1.22.1 The Contractor, in preparing the Bid, shall rely on any Site Investigation Reports referred to in the **PC**, supplemented by any information available to the Bidder.

1.23 Contractors to Construct the Works

1.23.1 The Contractor shall construct and install the Works in accordance with the Specifications and Drawings.

1.24 The Works to Be Completed by the Intended Completion Date

1.24.1 The Contractor may commence execution of the Works on the Start Date and shall carry out the Works in accordance with the Program submitted by the Contractor, as updated with the approval of the Project Manager, and complete them by the Intended Completion Date.

1.25 Approval by the Project Manager

- 1.25.1 The Contractor shall submit Specifications and Drawings showing the proposed Temporary Works to the Project Manager, who is to approve them if they comply with the Specifications and Drawings.
- 1.25.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for design of Temporary Works.
- 1.25.3 The Project Manager's approval shall not alter the Contractor's responsibility for design of the Temporary Works.
- 1.25.4 The Contractor shall obtain approval of third parties to the design of the Temporary Works, where required.

1.25.5 All Drawings prepared by the Contractor for the execution of the temporary or permanent Works, are subject to prior approval by the Project Manager before this use.

1.26 Safety

1.26.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for the safety of all activities on the Site.

1.27 Discoveries

1.27.1 Anything of historical or other interest or of significant value unexpectedly discovered on the Site shall be the property of the Employer. The Contractor shall notify the Project Manager of such discoveries and carry out the Project Manager's instructions for dealing with them.

1.28 Possession of the Site

1.28.1 The Employer shall give possession of all parts of the Site to the Contractor. If possession of a part is not given by the date stated in the **PC**, the Employer shall be deemed to have delayed the start of the relevant activities, and this shall be a Compensation Event.

1.29 Access to the Site

1.29.1 The Contractor shall allow the Project Manager and any person authorized by the Project Manager access to the Site and to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried out.

1.30 Instructions

1.30.1 The Contractor shall carry out all instructions of the Project Manager which comply with the applicable laws where the Site is located.

1.31 Appointment of the Adjudicator

- 1.31.1 The Adjudicator shall be appointed jointly by the Employer and the Contractor, at the time of the Employer's issuance of the Letter of Acceptance. If, in the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer does not agree on the appointment of the Adjudicator, the Employer will request the Appointing Authority designated in the **PC**, to appoint the Adjudicator within 14 days of receipt of such request.
- 1.31.2 Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should the Employer and the Contractor agree that the Adjudicator is not functioning in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, a new Adjudicator shall be jointly appointed by the Employer and the Contractor. In case of disagreement between the Employer and the Contractor, within 30 days, the Adjudicator shall be designated by the Appointing Authority designated in the **PC** at the request of either party, within 14 days of receipt of such request.

1.32 Procedure for Disputes

- 1.32.1 If the Contractor believes that a decision taken by the Project Manager was either outside the authority given to the Project Manager by the Contract or that the decision was wrongly taken, the decision shall be referred to the Adjudicator within 14 days of the notification of the Project Manager's decision.
- 1.32.2 The Adjudicator shall give a decision in writing within 28 days of receipt of a notification of a dispute.
- 1.32.3 The Adjudicator shall be paid by the hour at the rate specified in the **PC**, together with reimbursable expenses of the types specified in the **PC**, and the cost shall be divided equally between the Employer and the Contractor, whatever decision is reached by the Adjudicator. Either party may refer a decision of the Adjudicator to an Arbitrator within 28 days of the Adjudicator's written decision. If neither party refers the dispute to arbitration within the above 28 days, the Adjudicator's decision shall be final and binding.
- 1.32.4 The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the arbitration procedures published by the institution named and in the place specified in the **PC**.

2. Time Control

2.1 Programme

- 2.1.1 Within the time stated in the **PC**, after the date of the Letter of Acceptance, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval a Programme showing the general methods, arrangements, order, and timing for all the activities in the Works. In the case of a lump sum contract, the activities in the Programme shall be consistent with those in the Activity Schedule.
- 2.1.2 An update of the Programme shall be a program showing the actual progress achieved on each activity and the effect of the progress achieved on the timing of the remaining work, including any changes to the sequence of the activities.
- 2.1.3 The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval an updated Programme at intervals no longer than the period stated in the **PC**. If the Contractor does not submit an updated Programme within this period, the Project Manager may withhold the amount stated in the **PC** from the next payment certificate and continue to withhold this amount until the next payment after the date on which the overdue Programme has been submitted. In the case of a lump sum contract, the Contractor shall provide an updated Activity Schedule within 14 days of being instructed to by the Project Manager.
- 2.1.4 The Project Manager's approval of the Programme shall not alter the Contractor's obligations. The Contractor may revise the Programme and submit it to the Project Manager again at any time. A revised Programme shall show the effect of Variations and Compensation Events.

Extension of the Intended Completion Date

- 2.2.1 The Project Manager shall extend the Intended Completion Date if a Compensation Event occurs or a Variation is issued which makes it impossible for Completion to be achieved by the Intended Completion Date without the Contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work, which would cause the Contractor to incur additional cost.
- 2.2.2 The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much to extend the Intended Completion Date within 21 days of the Contractor asking the Project Manager for a decision upon the effect of a Compensation Event or Variation and submitting full supporting information. If the Contractor has failed to give early warning of a delay or has failed to cooperate in dealing with a delay, the delay by this failure shall not be considered in assessing the new Intended Completion Date.

2.3 Acceleration

- 2.3.1 When the Employer wants the Contractor to finish before the Intended Completion Date, the Project Manager shall obtain priced proposals for achieving the necessary acceleration from the Contractor. If the Employer accepts these proposals, the Intended Completion Date shall be adjusted accordingly and confirmed by both the Employer and the Contractor.
- 2.3.2 If the Contractor's priced proposals for acceleration are accepted by the Employer, they are incorporated in the Contract Price and treated as a Variation.

2.4 Delays Ordered by the Project Manager

2.4.1 The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to delay the start or progress of any activity within the Works.

2.5 Management Meetings

- 2.5.1 Either the Project Manager or the Contractor may require the other to attend a management meeting. The business of a management meeting shall be to review the plans for remaining work and to deal with matters raised in accordance with the early warning procedure.
- 2.5.2 The Project Manager shall record the business of management meetings and provide copies of the record to those attending the meeting and to the Employer. The responsibility of the parties for actions to be taken shall be decided by the Project Manager either at the management meeting or after the management meeting and stated in writing to all who attended the meeting.

2.6 Early Warning

- 2.6.1 The Contractor shall warn the Project Manager at the earliest opportunity of specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the quality of the work, increase the Contract Price, or delay the execution of the Works. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to provide an estimate of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the Contract Price and Completion Date. The estimate shall be provided by the Contractor as soon as reasonably possible.
- 2.6.2 The Contractor shall cooperate with the Project Manager in making and considering proposals for how the effect of such an event or circumstance can be avoided or reduced by anyone involved in the work and in carrying out any resulting instruction of the Project Manager.

3. Quality Control

3.1 Identifying Defects

3.1.1 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's work and notify the Contractor of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Contractor's responsibilities. The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any work that the Project Manager considers may have a Defect.

3.2 Tests

3.2.1 If the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to carry out a test not specified in the Specification to check whether any work has a Defect and the test shows that it does, the Contractor shall pay for the test and any samples. If there is no Defect, the test shall be a Compensation Event.

3.3 Correction of Defects

3.3.1 The Project Manager shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period, which begins at Completion, and is defined in the **PC**. The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.

Every time notice of a Defect is given, the Contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Project Manager's notice.

3.4 Uncorrected Defects

3.4.1 If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Project Manager's notice, the Project Manager shall assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, and the Contractor shall pay this amount.

4. Cost Control

4.1 Contract Price

- 4.1.1 In the case of an admeasurement contract, the Bill of Quantities shall contain priced items for the Works to be performed by the Contractor. The Bill of Quantities is used to calculate the Contract Price. The Contractor will be paid for the quantity of the work accomplished at the rate in the Bill of Quantities for each item.
- 4.1.2 In the case of a lump sum contract, the Activity Schedule shall contain the priced activities for the Works to be performed by the Contractor. The Activity Schedule is used to monitor and control the performance of activities on which basis the Contractor will be paid. If payment for Materials on Site shall be made separately, the Contractor shall show delivery of Materials to the Site separately on the Activity Schedule.

4.2 Changes in the Contract Price

- 4.2.1 In the case of an admeasurement contract:
 - (a) If the final quantity of the work done differs from the quantity in the Bill of Quantities for the particular item by more than 25 percent, provided the change exceeds 1 percent of the Initial Contract Price, the Project Manager shall adjust the rate to allow for the change.
 - (b) The Project Manager shall not adjust rates from changes in quantities if thereby the Initial Contract Price is exceeded by more than 15 percent, except with the prior approval of the Employer.
 - (c) If requested by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a detailed cost breakdown of any rate in the Bill of Quantities.
- 4.2.2 In the case of a lump sum contract, the Activity Schedule shall be amended by the Contractor to accommodate changes of Programme or method of working made at the Contractor's own discretion. Prices in the Activity Schedule shall not be altered when the Contractor makes such changes to the Activity Schedule.

4.3 Variations

- 4.3.1 All Variations shall be included in updated Programs, and, in the case of a lump sum contract, also in the Activity Schedule, produced by the Contractor.
- 4.3.2 The Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a quotation for carrying out the Variation when requested to do so by the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall assess the quotation, which shall be given within seven (7) days of the request or within any longer period stated by the Project Manager and

before the Variation is ordered.

- 4.3.3 If the Contractor's quotation is unreasonable, the Project Manager may order the Variation and make a change to the Contract Price, which shall be based on the Project Manager's own forecast of the effects of the Variation on the Contractor's costs.
- 4.3.4 If the Project Manager decides that the urgency of varying the work would prevent a quotation being given and considered without delaying the work, no quotation shall be given and the Variation shall be treated as a Compensation Event.
- 4.3.5 The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment for costs that could have been avoided by giving early warning.
- 4.3.6 In the case of an admeasurement contract, if the work in the Variation corresponds to an item description in the Bill of Quantities and if, in the opinion of the Project Manager, the quantity of work above the limit stated in GC Clause 4.2.1 or the timing of its execution do not cause the cost per unit of quantity to change, the rate in the Bill of Quantities shall be used to calculate the value of the Variation. If the cost per unit of quantity changes, or if the nature or timing of the work in the Variation does not correspond with items in the Bill of Quantities, the quotation by the Contractor shall be in the form of new rates for the relevant items of work.

4.4 Cash Flow Forecasts

When the Program, or, in the case of a lump sum contract, the Activity Schedule, is updated, the Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with an updated cash flow forecast. The cash flow forecast shall include different currencies, as defined in the Contract, converted as necessary using the Contract exchange rates.

4.5 Payment Certificates

- 4.5.1 The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager monthly statements of the estimated value of the work executed less the cumulative amount certified previously.
- 4.5.2 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's monthly statement and certify the amount to be paid to the Contractor.
- 4.5.3 The value of work executed shall be determined by the Project Manager.
- 4.5.4 The value of work executed shall comprise:
 - (a) In the case of an admeasurement contract, the value of the quantities of work in the Bill of Quantities that have been completed; or
 - (b) In the case of a lump sum contract, the value of work executed shall

comprise the value of completed activities in the Activity Schedule.

- 4.5.5 The value of work executed shall include the valuation of Variations and Compensation Events.
- 4.5.6 The Project Manager may exclude any item certified in a previous certificate or reduce the proportion of any item previously certified in any certificate in the light of later information.

4.6 Payments

- 4.6.1 Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments and retention. The Employer shall pay the Contractor the amounts certified by the Project Manager within 28 days of the date of each certificate. If the Employer makes a late payment, the Contractor shall be paid interest on the late payment in the next payment. Interest shall be calculated from the date by which the payment should have been made up to the date when the late payment is made at the prevailing rate of interest for commercial borrowing for each of the currencies in which payments are made.
- 4.6.2 If an amount certified is increased in a later certificate or as a result of an award by the Adjudicator or an Arbitrator, the Contractor shall be paid interest upon the delayed payment as set out in this clause. Interest shall be calculated from the date upon which the increased amount would have been certified in the absence of dispute.
- 4.6.3 Unless otherwise stated, all payments and deductions shall be paid or chDAMBALA FACHANAd in the proportions of currencies comprising the Contract Price.
- 4.6.4 Items of the Works for which no rate or price has been entered in shall not be paid for by the Employer and shall be deemed covered by other rates and prices in the Contract.

4.7 Compensation Events

- 4.7.1 The following shall be Compensation Events:
 - (a) The Employer does not give access to a part of the Site by the Site Possession Date pursuant to GC Clause 1.29.
 - (b) The Employer modifies the Schedule of Other Contractors in a way that affects the work of the Contractor under the Contract.
 - (c) The Project Manager orders a delay or does not issue Drawings, Specifications, or instructions required for execution of the Works on time.
 - (d) The Project Manager instructs the Contractor to uncover or to carry out additional tests upon work, which is then found to have no Defects.

- (e) The Project Manager unreasonably does not approve a subcontract to be let.
- (f) Ground conditions are substantially more adverse than could reasonably have been assumed before issuance of the Letter of Acceptance from the information issued to bidders (including the Site Investigation Reports), from information available publicly and from a visual inspection of the Site.
- (g) The Project Manager gives an instruction for dealing with an unforeseen condition, caused by the Employer, or additional work required for safety or other reasons.
- (h) Other contractors, public authorities, utilities, or the Employer does not work within the dates and other constraints stated in the Contract, and they cause delay or extra cost to the Contractor.
- (i) The advance payment is delayed.
- (j) The effects on the Contractor of any of the Employer's Risks.
- (k) The Project Manager unreasonably delays issuing a Certificate of Completion.
- 4.7.2 If a Compensation Event would cause additional cost or would prevent the work being completed before the Intended Completion Date, the Contract Price shall be increased and/or the Intended Completion Date shall be extended. The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much the Contract Price shall be increased and whether and by how much the Intended Completion Date shall be extended.
- 4.7.3 As soon as information demonstrating the effect of each Compensation Event upon the Contractor's forecast cost has been provided by the Contractor, it shall be assessed by the Project Manager, and the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly. If the Contractor's forecast is deemed unreasonable, the Project Manager shall adjust the Contract Price based on the Project Manager's own forecast. The Project Manager shall assume that the Contractor shall react competently and promptly to the event.
- 4.7.4 The Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation to the extent that the Employer's interests are adversely affected by the Contractor's not having given early warning or not having cooperated with the Project Manager.

4.8 Tax

4.8.1 The Project Manager shall adjust the Contract Price if taxes, duties, and other levies are changed between the date 28 days before the submission of bids for the Contract and the date of the last Completion certificate. The adjustment shall be the change in the amount of tax payable by the Contractor, provided such changes are not already reflected in the Contract Price or are a result of GC Clause 4.10.

4.9 Currencies

Where payments are made in currencies other than the currency of the Employer's country specified in the **PC**, the exchange rates used for calculating the amounts to be paid shall be the exchange rates stated in the Contractor's Bid.

4.10 Price Adjustment

4.10.1 Prices shall be adjusted for fluctuations in the cost of inputs only if provided for in the **PC.** If so provided, the amounts certified in each payment certificate, before deducting for Advance Payment, shall be adjusted by applying the respective price adjustment factor to the payment amounts due in each currency. A separate formula of the type indicated below applies to each Contract currency:

$$P_c = A_c + B_c Imc/Ioc$$

where:

 P_c is the adjustment factor for the portion of the Contract Price payable in a specific currency "c."

 $\mathbf{A_c}$ and $\mathbf{B_c}$ are coefficients¹⁶ specified in the **PC**, representing the nonadjustable and adjustable portions, respectively, of the Contract Price payable in that specific currency " \mathbf{c} ;" and

Imc is the index prevailing at the end of the month being invoiced and **Ioc** is the index prevailing 28 days before Bid opening for inputs payable; both in the specific currency "c."

4.10.2 If the value of the index is changed after it has been used in a calculation, the calculation shall be corrected and an adjustment made in the next payment certificate. The index value shall be deemed to take account of all changes in cost due to fluctuations in costs.

The sum of the two coefficients A_c and B_c should be 1 (one) in the formula for each currency. Normally, both coefficients shall be the same in the formulae for all currencies, since coefficient A, for the nonadjustable portion of the payments, is a very approximate figure (usually 0.15) to take account of fixed cost elements or other nonadjustable components. The sum of the adjustments for each currency is added to the Contract Price.

4.11 Retention

- 4.11.1 The Employer shall retain from each payment due to the Contractor the proportion stated in the **PC** until Completion of the whole of the Works.
- 4.11.2 Upon the issue of a Certificate of Completion of the Works by the Project Manager, in accordance with GC Clause 7.1.1, half the total amount retained shall be repaid to the Contractor and half when the Defects Liability Period has passed and the Project Manager has certified that all Defects notified by the Project Manager to the Contractor before the end of this period have been corrected. The Contractor may substitute retention money with an "on demand" Bank guarantee.

4.12 Liquidated Damages

- 4.12.1 The Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the **PC** for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the **PC**. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Contractor. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Contractor's liabilities.
- 4.12.2 If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Project Manager shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Contractor by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Contractor shall be paid interest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the date of repayment, at the rates specified in **GC** Clause 4.6.1.

4.13 Bonus

4.13.1 The Contractor shall be paid a Bonus calculated at the rate per calendar day stated in the **PC** for each day (less any days for which the Contractor is paid for acceleration) that the Completion is earlier than the Intended Completion Date. The Project Manager shall certify that the Works are complete, although they may not be due to be complete.

4.14 Advance Payment

4.14.1 The Employer shall make advance payment to the Contractor of the amounts stated in the **PC** by the date stated in the **PC**, against provision by the Contractor of an Unconditional Bank Guarantee in a form and by a bank acceptable to the Employer in amounts and currencies equal to the advance payment. The Guarantee shall remain effective until the advance payment has been repaid, but the amount of the Guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amounts repaid by the Contractor. Interest shall not be chDAMBALA FACHANAd on the advance payment.

- 4.14.2 The Contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for Equipment, Plant, Materials, and mobilization expenses required specifically for execution of the Contract. The Contractor shall demonstrate that advance payment has been used in this way by supplying copies of invoices or other documents to the Project Manager.
- 4.14.3 The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting proportionate amounts from payments otherwise due to the Contractor, following the schedule of completed percentages of the Works on a payment basis. No account shall be taken of the advance payment or its repayment in assessing valuations of work done, Variations, price adjustments, Compensation Events, Bonuses, or Liquidated Damages.

4.15 Securities

4.15.1 The Performance Security shall be provided to the Employer no later than the date specified in the Letter of Acceptance and shall be issued in an amount specified in the **PC**, by a bank or surety acceptable to the Employer, and denominated in the types and proportions of the currencies in which the Contract Price is payable. The Performance Security shall be valid until a date 28 days from the date of issue of the Certificate of Completion in the case of a Bank Guarantee, and until one year from the date of issue of the Completion Certificate in the case of a Performance Bond.

4.16 Dayworks

- 4.16.1 If applicable, the Dayworks rates in the Contractor's Bid shall be used for small additional amounts of work only when the Project Manager has given written instructions in advance for additional work to be paid for in that way.
- 4.16.2 All work to be paid for as Dayworks shall be recorded by the Contractor on forms approved by the Project Manager. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the Project Manager within two days of the work being done.
- 4.16.3 The Contractor shall be paid for Dayworks subject to obtaining signed Dayworks forms.

4.17 Cost of Repairs

Loss or damage to the Works or Materials to be incorporated in the Works between the Start Date and the end of the Defects Correction periods shall be remedied by the Contractor at the Contractor's cost if the loss or damage arises from the Contractor's acts or omissions.

5. Staff and Labour

5.1 Forced Labour

5.1.1 The Contractor shall not employ forced labour, which consists of any work or service, not voluntarily performed, that is exacted from an individual under threat of force or penalty, and includes any kind of involuntary or compulsory labour, such as indentured labour, bonded labour or similar labour-contracting arrangements.

5.2 Child Labour

5.2.1 The Contractor shall not employ children in a manner that is economically exploitative, or is likely to be hazardous, or to interfere with the child's education, or to be harmful to the child's health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral, or social development. Where the relevant labour laws have provisions for employment of minors, the Contractor shall follow those laws applicable to the Contractor. Children below the age of 18 years shall not be employed in dangerous work.

5.3 Workers' Organizations

In countries where the relevant labour laws recognize workers' rights to form and to join workers' organisations of their choosing without interference and to bargain collectively, the Contractor shall comply with such laws. Where the relevant labour laws substantially restrict workers' organisations, the Contractor shall enable alternative means for Contractor's Personnel to express their grievances and protect their rights regarding working conditions and terms of employment. In either case described above, and where the relevant labour laws are silent, the Contractor shall not discourage Contractor's Personnel from forming or joining workers' organisations of their choosing or from bargaining collectively, and shall not discriminate or retaliate against the Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in such organisations and bargain collectively. The Contractor shall engage with such workers representatives. Worker organisations are expected to fairly represent the workers in the workforce.

5.4 Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity

5.4.1 The Contractor shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. The Contractor shall base the employment relationship on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and shall not discriminate with respect to aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and discipline. In countries where the relevant labour laws provide for non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall comply with such laws. When the relevant labour laws are silent on non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall meet this Clause's requirements. Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based on inherent requirements of the job shall not be deemed discrimination.

6. Force Majeure

6.1 Definition of Force Majeure

- 6.1.1 In this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an exceptional event or circumstance:
 - (a) which is beyond a Party's control,
 - (b) which such Party could not reasonably have provided against before entering into the Contract,
 - (c) which, having arisen, such Party could not reasonably have avoided or overcome, and
 - (d) which is not substantially attributable to the other Party.

Force Majeure may include, but is not limited to, exceptional events or circumstances of the kind listed below, so long as conditions (a) to (d) above are satisfied:

- (i) war, hostilities (whether war be declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemies,
- (ii) rebellion, terrorism, sabotage by persons other than the Contractor's Personnel, revolution, insurrection, military or usurped power, or civil war,
- (iii) riot, commotion, disorder, strike or lockout by persons other than the Contractor's Personnel,
- (iv) munitions of war, explosive materials, ionising radiation or contamination by radio-activity, except as may be attributable to the Contractor's use of such munitions, explosives, radiation or radioactivity, and
- (v) natural catastrophes such as earthquake, hurricane, typhoon or volcanic activity.

6.2 Notice of Force Majeure

- 6.2.1 If a Party is or will be prevented from performing its substantial obligations under the Contract by Force Majeure, then it shall give notice to the other Party of the event or circumstances constituting the Force Majeure and shall specify the obligations, the performance of which is or will be prevented. The notice shall be given within 14 days after the Party became aware, or should have become aware, of the relevant event or circumstance constituting Force Majeure.
- 6.2.2 The Party shall, having given notice, be excused performance of its obligations for so long as such Force Majeure prevents it from performing them.

6.2.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Clause, Force Majeure shall not apply to obligations of either Party to make payments to the other Party under the Contract

6.3 Duty to Minimise Delay

- Each Party shall at all times use all reasonable endeavours to minimise any delay in the performance of the Contract as a result of Force Majeure.
- A Party shall give notice to the other Party when it ceases to be affected by the Force Majeure.

6.4 Consequences of Force Majeure

- 6.4.1 If the Contractor is prevented from performing its substantial obligations under the Contract by Force Majeure of which notice has been given under GC Clause 6.2 [Notice of Force Majeure], and suffers delay and/or incurs Cost by reason of such Force Majeure, the Contractor shall be entitled subject to GC Clause 1.32.1 [Procedure for Disputes] to:
 - (a) an extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under GC Clause 2.2 [Extension of the Intended Completion Date], and
 - (b) if the event or circumstance is of the kind described in sub-paragraphs (i) to (iv) of **GC** Clause 6.1 [Definition of Force Majeure] and, in the case of **GC** Clause 6.1.1(d)(ii) to (iv), occurs in the Country, payment of any such Cost, including the costs of rectifying or replacing the Works and/or Goods damaged or destructed by Force Majeure, to the extent they are not indemnified through the insurance policy referred to in **GC** Clause 1.21 [Insurance].
- 6.4.2 After receiving this notice, the Project Manager shall proceed in accordance with **GC** Clause 1.13 [Project Manager's Decisions] to agree or determine these matters.

6.5 Force Majeure Affecting Subcontractor

6.5.1 If any Subcontractor is entitled under any contract or agreement relating to the Works to relief from force majeure on terms additional to or broader than those specified in this Clause, such additional or broader force majeure events or circumstances shall not excuse the Contractor's non-performance or entitle him to relief under this Clause.

6.6 Optional Termination, Payment and Release

6.6.1 If the execution of substantially all the Works in progress is prevented for a continuous period of 84 days by reason of Force Majeure of which notice has been given under GC Clause 6.2 [Notice of Force Majeure], or for multiple periods which total more than 140 days due to the same notified Force Majeure, then either Party may give to the other Party a notice of termination of the

Contract. In this event, the termination shall take effect 7 days after the notice is given, and the Contractor shall proceed in accordance with GC Clause 7.5.5.

- Upon such termination, the Project Manager shall determine the value of the work done and issue a Payment Certificate which shall include:
 - (a) the amounts payable for any work carried out for which a price is stated in the Contract:
 - (b) the Cost of Plant and Materials ordered for the Works which have been delivered to the Contractor, or of which the Contractor is liable to accept delivery: this Plant and Materials shall become the property of (and be at the risk of) the Employer when paid for by the Employer, and the Contractor shall place the same at the Employer's disposal;
 - (c) other Costs or liabilities which in the circumstances were reasonably and necessarily incurred by the Contractor in the expectation of completing the Works:
 - (d) the Cost of removal of Temporary Works and Contractor's Equipment from the Site and the return of these items to the Contractor's works in his country (or to any other destination at no greater cost); and
 - (e) the Cost of repatriation of the Contractor's staff and labour employed wholly in connection with the Works at the date of termination.

6.7 Release from Performance

- 6.7.1 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Clause, if any event or circumstance outside the control of the Parties (including, but not limited to, Force Majeure) arises which makes it impossible or unlawful for either or both Parties to fulfil its or their contractual obligations or which, under the law governing the Contract, entitles the Parties to be released from further performance of the Contract, then upon notice by either Party to the other Party of such event or circumstance:
 - (a) the Parties shall be dischDAMBALA FACHANAd from further performance, without prejudice to the rights of either Party in respect of any previous breach of the Contract, and
 - (b) the sum payable by the Employer to the Contractor shall be the same as would have been payable under GC Clause 6.6 [Optional Termination, Payment and Release] if the Contract had been terminated under GC Clause 6.6.

7. Finishing the Contract

7.1 Completion

7.1.1 The Contractor shall request the Project Manager to issue a Certificate of Completion of the Works, and the Project Manager shall do so upon deciding that the whole of the Works is completed.

7.2 Taking Over

7.2.1 The Employer shall take over the Site and the Works within seven days of the Project Manager's issuing a certificate of Completion.

7.3 Final Account

7.3.1 The Contractor shall supply the Project Manager with a detailed account of the total amount that the Contractor considers payable under the Contract before the end of the Defects Liability Period. The Project Manager shall issue a Defects Liability Certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the Contractor within 56 days of receiving the Contractor's account if it is correct and complete. If it is not, the Project Manager shall issue within 56 days a schedule that states the scope of the corrections or additions that are necessary. If the Final Account is still unsatisfactory after it has been resubmitted, the Project Manager shall decide on the amount payable to the Contractor and issue a payment certificate.

7.4 Operating and Maintenance Manuals

- 7.4.1 If "as built" Drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals are required, the Contractor shall supply them by the dates stated in the **PC**.
- 7.4.2 If the Contractor does not supply the Drawings and/or manuals by the dates stated in the **PC** pursuant to **GC** Clause 7.4.1, or they do not receive the Project Manager's approval, the Project Manager shall withhold the amount stated in the **PC** from payments due to the Contractor.

7.5 Termination

- 7.5.1 The Employer or the Contractor may terminate the Contract if the other party causes a fundamental breach of the Contract.
- 7.5.2 Fundamental breaches of Contract shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
 - (a) the Contractor stops work for 28 days when no stoppage of work is shown on the current Programme and the stoppage has not been authorized by the Project Manager;
 - (b) the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to delay the progress of the Works, and the instruction is not withdrawn within 28 days;
 - (c) the Employer or the Contractor is made bankrupt or goes into liquidation other than for a reconstruction or amalgamation;

- (d) a payment certified by the Project Manager is not paid by the Employer to the Contractor within 84 days of the date of the Project Manager's certificate:
- (e) the Project Manager gives Notice that failure to correct a particular Defect is a fundamental breach of Contract and the Contractor fails to correct it within a reasonable period of time determined by the Project Manager;
- (f) the Contractor does not maintain a Security, which is required;
- (g) the Contractor has delayed the completion of the Works by the number of days for which the maximum amount of liquidated damages can be paid, as defined in the **PC**; or
- (h) if the Contractor, as determined by the Employer, based on reasonable evidence, has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract, pursuant to GC Clause 7.6 [Fraud and Corruption].
- 7.5.3 When either party to the Contract gives notice of a breach of Contract to the Project Manager for a cause other than those listed under GC Clause 7.5.2 above, the Project Manager shall decide whether the breach is fundamental or not.
- 7.5.4 Notwithstanding the above, the Employer may terminate the Contract for convenience.
- 7.5.5 If the Contract is terminated, the Contractor shall stop work immediately, make the Site safe and secure, and leave the Site as soon as reasonably possible.

7.6 Fraud and Corruption

- 7.6.1 If the Employer determines that the Contractor has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the Employer may, after giving 14 days notice to the Contractor, terminate the Contractor's employment under the Contract and expel him from the Site, and the provisions of GC Clause 7.5 [Termination] shall apply as if such expulsion had been made under GC Clause 7.5.2.
- 7.6.2 Should any employee of the Contractor be determined to have engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or obstructive practice during the execution of the work then that employee shall be removed in accordance with **GC** Clause 1.16.2.
- 7.6.3 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank Financing), as well as bidders, suppliers, and contractors, and their agents (whether declared or not), subcontractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts¹⁷. In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:

 $^{^{17}}$ In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

- (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "Corrupt Practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party¹⁸;
 - (ii) "Fraudulent Practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party 19 to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - (iii) "Collusive Practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties²⁰, designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party; and
 - (iv) "Coercive Practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party²¹;
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is
 - (v.1) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
 - (v.2) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under clause 1.12 [Inspection s and Audits by the Bank]
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly engaged in Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, Coercive or Obstructive Practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the Financing allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of such Financing engaged in Corrupt, Fraudulent, Collusive, Coercive or Obstructive Practices during the

¹⁸ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

¹⁹ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

²⁰ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

²¹ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

procurement or the implementation of that contract, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;

- will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing (d) Bank's sanctions procedures²², including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, (i) to be awarded Bank-financed contracts and (ii) to be a nominated 23 sub-contractor, consultant, supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by the Bank, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors and their subcontractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts and records and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

7.7 **Payment upon Termination**

- If the Contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the 7.7.1 Contractor, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done and Materials ordered less advance payments received up to the date of the issue of the certificate and less the percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, as indicated in the PC. Additional Liquidated Damages shall not apply. If the total amount due to the Employer exceeds any payment due to the Contractor, the difference shall be a debt payable to the Employer.
- 7.7.2 If the Contract is terminated for the Employer's convenience or because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Employer, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done, Materials ordered, the reasonable cost of removal of Equipment, repatriation of the Contractor's personnel employed solely on the Works, and the Contractor's costs of protecting and securing the Works, and less advance payments received up to the date of the certificate.

7.8 Property

²² A firm or an individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract: (i) upon completion

of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, or otherwise decided by the Bank; and through the application of the Proposal for the Implementation of a Sanctions Process within the African Development Bank Group; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an on-going sanction proceeding. See footnote 18 and paragraph $9\,$ of Appendix 1 of the Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works.

²³ A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding documents) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirement for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower."

7.8.1 All Materials on the Site, Plant, Equipment, Temporary Works, and Works shall be deemed to be the property of the Employer if the Contract is terminated because of the Contractor's default.

7.9 Release from Performance

7.9.1 If the Contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by any other event entirely outside the control of either the Employer or the Contractor, the Project Manager shall certify that the Contract has been frustrated. The Contractor shall make the Site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving this certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for any work carried out afterwards to which a commitment was made.

7.10 Suspension of Bank Financing

- 7.10.1 In the event that the Bank suspends the Financing to the Employer, from which part of the payments to the Contractor are being made:
 - (a) The Employer is obligated to notify the Contractor of such suspension within 7 days of having received the Bank's suspension notice.
 - (b) If the Contractor has not received sums due it within the 28 days for payment provided for in GC Clause 4.6.1, the Contractor may immediately issue a 14-day termination notice.

7.11 Eligibility²⁴

- 7.11.1 The Contractor shall have the nationality from an eligible country of the Bank in accordance with the Bank's **Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods and Works**, as listed in Section V, Eligible Countries. The Contractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Contractor is a citizen or is constituted, or incorporated, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country. This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the Contract including related services.
- 7.11.2 The materials, equipment and services to be supplied under the Contract shall have their origin in eligible source countries and all expenditures under the Contract will be limited to such materials, equipment, and services. At the Employer's request, the Contractor may be required to provide evidence of the origin of materials, equipment and services.

For the purposes of Eligibility, the provisions of the Bank's *Rules and Procedures for Procurement of Goods* and *Works* have been presented in detail at Section V, Eligible Countries.

7.11.3 For purposes of GC Clause 7.11.1, "origin" means the place where the materials and equipment are mined, grown, produced or manufactured, and from which the services are provided. Materials and equipment are produced when, through manufacturing, processing, or substantial or major assembling of components, a commercially recognized product results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics or in purpose or utility from its components.

Section VIII. Particular Conditions

| 1. General Provisions | | |
|-----------------------|---|--|
| GC 1.1.2.2 | The Employer is: Principal Secretary, MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE AND LIVESTOCK DEVELOPMENT | |
| GC 1.1 .2.4 | The Project Manager is: Project Engineer SIVAP Hill Plaza 9th Floor | |
| GC 1.1.2.6 | The Bank is: Africa Development Fund | |
| GC 1.1.2.7 | The Borrower is: Republic of Kenya | |
| GC 1.1.3.2 | The Commencement Date shall be: not later than 14 days after signing of the contract | |
| GC 1.1.3.3 | The Completion Date for the whole of the Works shall be: four 4 months after commencement of the works. | |
| GC 1.1.5.6 | If Sections are to be used: N/A | |
| GC 1.1.5.8 | The contract works include: Description of the works | |
| | The contract works include: Fencing of livestock sale yard using SHS steel as described in the bill of quantities and in the working drawings, construction of kiosks construction of toilets Construction of offices, Ramp construction (Animals loading area) and Construction of raised platform | |
| | Note: All the above works should be as per the drawings and Bills of quantities. | |
| GC 1.1.6.6 | LOCATION OF THE SITE The site for works is located at Karidundu, Karatina, Mathira Subcounty, Nyeri County. | |
| GC 1.2.3 | Sectional Completions shall not be applicable. | |
| GC 1.2.4(i) | The following documents also form part of the Contract: a) the Letter of Acceptance b) the Bid | |

| GC 1.3.1(a) | c) All Addenda, if any d) the Particular Conditions e) the General Conditions f) the Specification g) the Drawings; and h) the completed Schedules, The Electronic Transmission System is: None |
|--------------|--|
| GC 1.3.1(b) | The Employer's address for the purpose of communications is: Project Coordinator, Attention: Project coordinator Small Scale Irrigation and Value Addition Project State Department of Crop Development Ministry Of Agriculture And Livestock Development Hill Plaza, 9th Floor P.O. Box 30028, 00100 Nairobi Email: npcsivap@gmail.com The Contractor's address for the purpose of communications is: [state full address, telephone, fax and e-mail] |
| GC 1.4.1 | The governing law is that of: Republic of Kenya The ruling language is: English The language for communications is: English |
| GC 1.6.1 | The Parties shall enter into contract within 28 days after the Contractor receives the Letter of Acceptance. |
| GC 1.10.2(a) | Permits, approvals and/or licenses, or public service undertakings to be acquired by the Employer: as in the specifications |
| GC 1.10.2(b) | Permits, approvals and/or licenses, or public service undertakings to be acquired by the Contractor: as in the specifications |
| GC 1.11.1 | The individuals or firms in a joint venture, consortium or association shall be jointly and severally liable. |
| GC 1.17.1 | Schedule of Other Contractors: None |

| _ | | | | |
|--------------------|--|--|--|--|
| GC 1.21.1 | The minimum insurance amounts and deductibles shall be: | | | |
| | (a) for loss or damage to the Works, Plant and Materials: KES 100,000.00 | | | |
| | (b) for loss or damage to Equipment: KES 50,000.00 | | | |
| | (c) for loss or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) in connection with Contract: KES 50,000.00 | | | |
| | (d) for personal injury or death: | | | |
| | (i) of the Contractor's employees: KES 50,000.00 | | | |
| | (ii) of other people: KES 100,000.00 | | | |
| GC 1.22.1 | Site Investigation Reports shall include: design report, drawings and any other investigation as may be required by the engineer | | | |
| GC 1.28.1 | The Site Possession Date(s) shall be four 4 months after commencement of the works. | | | |
| GC 1.31.1 & 1.31.2 | Appointing Authority for the Adjudicator: Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, Kenya P.O. Box 50163 - 00200 Nairobi, Kenya Email Address: info@ciarbkenya.org | | | |
| GC 1.32.3 | Hourly rate and types of reimbursable expenses to be paid to the Adjudicator: as per as body's policy | | | |
| GC 1.32.4 | Institution whose arbitration procedures shall be used: Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, Kenya The place of arbitration shall be: Nairobi, Kenya] | | | |
| | 2. Time Control | | | |
| GC 2.1.1 | The Contractor shall submit for approval a Programme for the Works within 7 days from the date of the Letter of Acceptance. | | | |
| GC 2.1.3 | The period between Programme updates is 30 days. | | | |
| | The amount to be withheld for late submission of an updated Programme is: 10% of amount due in next certificate | | | |
| 3. Quality Control | | | | |
| GC 3.3.1 | The Defects Liability Period is 60 days. | | | |
| | 4. Cost Control | | | |
| GC 4.9.1 | The currency of the Employer's country is: Kenya Shillings | | | |
| | • | | | |

| GC 4.10.1 | The Contract "shall not" be subject to price adjustment, in accordance with GC Clause 4.10.1, and the following information regarding coefficients |
|--------------|---|
| GC 4.11.1 | The proportion of payments retained is: 10% |
| GC 4.12.1 | The Liquidated Damages for the whole of the Works are 0.05 of the final Contract Price, per day. The maximum amount of Liquidated Damages for the whole of the Works is 5% of the final Contract Price. |
| GC 4.13.1 | The Bonus for the whole of the Works is 0% of the final Contract Price, per day. The maximum amount of Bonus for the whole of the Works is 0% of the final Contract Price. |
| GC 4.14.1 | The Advance Payment shall be: 10% of the contract sum and shall be paid to the Contractor no later than: 60 days |
| GC 4.15.1 | The Performance Security amount is: 10% of contract sum in the form of: (a) Bank Guarantee: [A Bank Guarantee shall be unconditional (on demand) (see Section IX, Contract Forms). |
| | 7. Finishing the Contract |
| GC 7.4.1 | The date by which operating and maintenance manuals are required shall be: date of completion of works |
| | The date by which "as built" drawings are required shall be: date of completion of works |
| GC 7.4.2 | The amount to be withheld for failing to produce "as built" drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals by the date required in GC Clause 7.7.1 shall be: KES 100,000.00 |
| GC 7.5.2 (g) | The maximum number of days is: 30 days |
| GC 7.7.1 | The percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, representing the Employer's additional cost for completing the Works, shall be: 100% of work not done |

Section IX. Contract Forms

This Section contains Contract Forms which, once completed, will constitute part of the Contract. The forms for Contract Agreement, Performance Security and Advance Payment Security, when required, shall only be completed by the successful Bidder, after contract award

Table of Forms

| Letter of Acceptance | 178 |
|--------------------------------|-----|
| Contract Agreement | 179 |
| Option I: Performance Security | 181 |
| Option II: Performance Bond | 183 |
| Advance Payment Security | 185 |
| Retention Money Security | 187 |

Letter of Acceptance

| [on letterhead paper of the Employer] |
|---|
| [date] |
| To: [name and address of the Contractor] |
| Subject: [Notification of Award Contract No] |
| This is to notify you that your Bid dated [Insert date] for execution of the |
| You are requested to furnish the Performance Security in the amount of [insert amount (s) in figures and words and name(s) of currency(ies)] within 28 days ²⁵ in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section IX (Contract Forms) of the Bidding Document. |
| We accept the appointment of [Employer to insert full name and address of alternative appointee proposed by Bidder in Letter of Bid] as the Adjudicator. / We do not accept the appointment of [Employer to insert full name and address of alternative appointee proposed by Bidder in Letter of Bid] as the Adjudicator. And, consequently, the provisions of GC Clause 1.31 shall apply. ²⁶ |
| Authorized Signature: |
| Name and Title of Signatory: |
| Name of Agency: |
| Attachment: Contract Agreement |

 $^{^{25}}$ Or, the alternative deadline stipulated in the **Particular Conditions**.

²⁶ Use one of the two options as appropriate.

Contract Agreement

THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT is made on the [insert: number] day of [insert: month], [insert: year].

BETWEEN

(1) [insert complete name of the Employer], a [insert description of type of legal entity, for example, an agency of the Ministry of] of the Government of {insert name of Country of the Employer}, or corporation incorporated under the laws of { insert name of Country of the Employer } and having its principal place of business at [insert address of the Employer] (hereinafter called "the Employer"),

and

(2) **[insert name of the Contractor]**, a corporation incorporated under the laws of **[insert: country of Contractor]** and having its principal place of business at **[insert: address of Contractor]** (hereinafter called "the Contractor").

WHEREAS the Employer invited bids for the Works, described as [insert brief description of the Works] and has accepted a Bid by the Contractor for the execution and completion of these Works and the remedying of any defects therein, and the Employer agrees to pay the Contractor the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

The Employer and the Contractor agree as follows:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Contract documents referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other Contract documents.
- (a) the Letter of Acceptance
- (b) the Bid
- (c) the Addenda Nos.... [insert addenda numbers if any]....
- (d) the Particular Conditions
- (e) the General Conditions
- (f) the Specification
- (g) the Drawings; and
- (h) the completed Schedules,

- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the Contractor as indicated in this Agreement, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to execute the Works and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 4. The Employer hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of [insert name of the borrowing country] on the day, month and year indicated above.

Signed by: Signed by:

For and on behalf of the Employer for and on behalf the Contractor

In the presence of: in the presence of:

Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date

Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date

Option I: Performance Security

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

Date: [insert date (e.g., day, month, and year)]

Bidding Process Reference: [insert no. and title of bidding process]

Bank's Branch or Office: [insert complete name of Guarantor]

Beneficiary: [insert complete name of Employer]

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.: [insert Performance Guarantee number]

We have been informed that **[insert complete name of the Contractor]** (hereinafter called "the Contractor") has entered into Contract No. **[insert number]** dated **[insert day and month]**, **[insert year]** with you, for the execution and completion of **[insert description of the Works]** and the remedying of any defects therein (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a Performance Guarantee is required.

At the request of the Employer, we hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum(s) not exceeding [insert amount(s^{27}) in figures and words] such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing declaring the Contractor to be in default under the Contract, without cavil or argument, or your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand or the sum specified therein.

The Bank shall insert the amount(s) specified in the **PC** and denominated, as specified in the **PC**, either in the currency (ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

This Guarantee shall expire no later than the **[insert number]** day of **[insert month]**, **[insert year]**, ²⁸ and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office on or before that date. This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458, except that subparagraph (ii) of Sub-article 20(a) is hereby excluded.

[signatures of authorized representatives of the bank]

Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Employer might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Employer's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."]

Option II: Performance Bond

| By this Bond | as | Principal | (herein | nafter | called | "the C | Contractor" |
|---|------------|---|----------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------------|---------------------------------|---|
| and | | | | | | | as Surety |
| (hereinafter called "the Surety"), are held | l an | d firmly b | ound u | nto | | _ |] a |
| Obligee (hereinafter called "the Employ | er" | in the an | nount c | of | | | , for the |
| payment of which sum well and truly to | be | made in th | ne types | s and p | roportio | ons of c | currencies in |
| which the Contract Price is payable, the | | | • • | | | | |
| heirs, executors, administrators, successor presents. | | | | | • | | |
| WHEREAS the Contractor has entered in day of | | | _ | | | | |
| accordance with the documents, plans, sextent herein provided for, are by referenthe Contract. | spec | ifications, | and ar | nendm | ents the | ereto, v | vhich to the |
| NOW, THEREFORE, the Condition of promptly and faithfully perform the said this obligation shall be null and void; Whenever the Contractor shall be, and Contract, the Employer having performed | d C oth | ontract (in nerwise, it lared by th | cluding shall ne Emp | g any a remain oloyer t | mendm in full o be, in | nents the l force n defau | nereto), then and effect lt under the |
| may promptly remedy the default, or sha | ll pı | comptly: | - | | | | |

- (1) complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or
- (2) obtain a Bid or bids from qualified Bidders for submission to the Employer for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the Employer and the Surety of the lowest responsive Bidder, arrange for a Contract between such Bidder and Employer and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or a succession of defaults under the Contract or Contracts of completion arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the Balance of the Contract Price; but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which the Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. The term "Balance of the Contract Price," as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable by Employer to Contractor under the Contract, less the amount properly paid by Employer to Contractor; or
- (3) pay the Employer the amount required by Employer to complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions up to a total not exceeding the amount of this Bond.

The Surety shall not be liable for a greater sum than the specified penalty of this Bond.

Any suit under this Bond must be instituted before the expiration of one year from the date of the issuing of the Taking-Over Certificate.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than the Employer named herein or the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Employer.

| In testimony whereof, the Contractor has | s hereunto set his hand and | affixed his seal, and the |
|---|-----------------------------|---------------------------|
| Surety has caused these presents to be s | sealed with his corporate s | eal duly attested by the |
| signature of his legal representative, this | day of | 20 |

Advance Payment Security

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Date: [insert date (e.g., day, month, and year) of Bid Submission]

Bidding Process Reference: [insert number and title of bidding process]

[bank's letterhead]

Beneficiary: [insert legal name and address of Employer]

ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.: [insert Advance Payment Guarantee no.]

We have been informed that [insert name of the Contractor]. . . . (hereinafter called "the Contractor") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the Contract]. . . . dated [insert day and month], [insert year]. with you, for the execution of [insert name of contract and brief description of Works] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the Conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum ... [insert currency and amount in figures]²⁹.... (.... [insert currency and amount in words]....) is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Employer, we [insert name of the Bank]. hereby irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [insert currency and amount in figures]*. (. [insert currency and amount in words].) upon receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Contractor is in breach of its obligation under the Contract because the Contractor used the advance payment for purposes other than performing his obligations under the Contract or the costs of mobilization in respect of the Works.

It is a condition for any claim and payment under this guarantee to be made that the advance payment referred to above must have been received by the Contractor on its account number [insert Contractor's account number]. at [insert name and address of the Bank]. . . .

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment denominated either in the currency (ies) of the advance payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees, ICC Publication No. 458, except that subparagraph (ii) of Sub-article 20(a) is hereby excluded..

. [Seal of Bank and Signature(s)].

Note –

All italicized text (including footnotes) is for guidance on how to prepare this demand guarantee and shall be deleted from the final document.

Insert the expected expiration date of the Time for Completion. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Employer might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [insert number of months], in response to the Employer's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee.]

Retention Money Security

Demand Guarantee

| | insert Bank's Name, and Address of Issuing Branch or |
|---|--|
| Office] | |
| Beneficiary: | [insert Name and Address of Employer] |
| Date: | [insert date (e.g., day, month, and year)] |
| RETENTION MONEY O | GUARANTEE No.: [insert Retention Money Guarantee no.] |
| called "the Contractor") ha | insert name of Contractor] (hereinafter as entered into Contract No [insert reference and [insert date] with you, for the execution of [insert name of contract and brief description of Works] |
| (hereinafter called "the Cor | |
| Taking-Over Certificate ha Money has been certified f Retention Money", or, if when the Taking-Over C "the difference between | In that, according to the conditions of the Contract, when the is been issued for the Works and the first half of the Retention for payment, payment of [insert either "the second half of the the amount guaranteed under the Performance Guarantee, ertificate is issued, is less than half of the Retention Money, half of the Retention Money and the amount guaranteed ecurity"] is to be made against a Retention Money guarantee. |
| irrevocably undertake to p [insert amo | ployer, we [insert name of Bank] hereby ay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of unt in figures] (_) [insert amount in words] ¹ upon receipt by |
| Contractor is in breach of | n writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the its obligation under the Contract because the Contractor used purposes other than the costs of mobilization in respect of the |

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the second half of the Retention Money or, if the amount guaranteed under the Performance Guarantee when the Taking-Over Certificate is issued is less than half of the Retention Money, the difference between half of the Retention Money and the amount guaranteed under the Performance Security and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the second half of the Retention Money as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

| payment of the second half of the | 1 2 | E |
|---|------------------------|--------------------------------------|
| received by the Contractor on it | • | |
| account number] at | [insert name a | and address of the Bank]. |
| This guarantee shall expire, at the received a copy of the Performance Consequently, any demand for pathis office on or before that date. | rmance Certificate iss | sued by the Project Manager. |
| This guarantee is subject to the U No. | niform Rules for Dema | and Guarantees, ICC Publication 458. |
| [signature(s)] | | |

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.